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Values and highlights

Sainsbury's values underpin our goal to provide healthy,
safe, fresh and tasty food at fair prices

As aleading food retailer we focus onbeing

Best for food
and health

5,000

Over 5,000 of our own brand
products are labelled with
front of pack Multi Traffic

Light Iabelling

...that’s why we’re so committed to...

Sourcing with

integrity £ 2 8 0

million

We are Lhe world s largest
retailer of Fartrade

Andbecause we source from around the world
andsellin the UK we show

Respectfor our
environment

£5.7m

Through our supermarket Energy
Reset programme we saved E57
million, which has cut our energy
bill and environmental
footprint

..and play an activerole in the communities in which we operate

Making a positive
difference to our £100
community million

Active Kids We have donated qver
£100 mitlion worth of equipment
and experiences to date

All this is possible through the commitment of our
colleagues so we make Sainsbury’s

A greatplace

to work GOld.

We were the lirst retauler to be
awarded a gold accreditation from
investors in Peaple for our
commitment ta iImproving our
business by investing
inour colleagues




Our business model

About Sainsbury's

J Sainsbury plc was founded in 1869 and today operates a
total of 934 stores compnising 557 supermarkets and 377
convenience stores it jomntly owns Sainsbury's Bank with
Lloyds Barnking Group and has two property joint ventures
with Land Secunittes Group PLC and The Bnitish Land
Company PLC

The Samnsbury’s brand 1s built upon a heritage of providing
customers with healthy, safe, fresh and tasty food Quality
and fair prices go hand-in-hand with a responsible approach

to business Samnsbury's stores have a particular emphasis
on fresh food and we strive to innovate continuously and
improve products in line with our customer needs

We now have 21 million customer transactions a week and
have a market share of over 16 per cent Our large stores
offer around 30,000 products and we offer complementary
non-food products and services in many of our stores
Aninternet-based home delivery shopping service is also
available to over 93 per cent of UK households We employ
around 150,000 colleagues




Our business model continued
Five areas offocus - progress highlights

Great food at fair prices

2lm

Customer transactions
on average every
week, a million more
than last year

* 21 milhion customer transactions on average every week,
a mthon more than last year

* A16 3 per cent market share in the UK, up by O 2 per cent
on last year

¢ Over 5,000 new or improved own-brand products launched,
including the major re-launch of Taste the Difference

« Six food colleges opened as part of our Great Food
programme Up to 10,000 colleagues will receive training
at them each year

* Meat and Fish Retarler of the Year and Drinks Retailer of
the Year

Accelerating the growth of
complementary non-food
ranges and services

3x

Complementary non-food
grew more than three times
faster than food sales

¢ Non-food sales grew more than three times faster than
food sales, with many areas of general merchandise
growing in excess of 20 per cent

¢ TU clothing is now the seventh largest clothing brand in
the UK by volume

» We re-launched Sainsbury's Energy in a new partnership
with British Gas

* Sainsbury's Bank had a strong year, with pre-tax
operating profit up over 50 per cent

Reaching more customers

through additional channels

£1bn

Our convenience business
now provides annual sales
of over £1billton

s OQur convenience business now provides annual sales of
over £1 billion and we opened a further 47 stores this year

* We were awarded Convenience Retailler of the Year at
the annual Retail Industry Awards

* Qur online groceries business continues to grow, with
annual sales up over 20 per cent and weekly orders now
over 130,000

* Chick and Collect, allowing customers to order non-food
items onhne and collect in-store, has been rolled out to
over 160 stores this year

Growing supermarket space

15.9%

of gross new space added
since March 2009

* We exceeded our two-year space growth target of 15
per cent, as we have grown gross space by 15 9 per cent
since March 2009

» This year we opened 21 new stores, 24 extensions and
47 convenience stores

» We added a gross 1 5 milion sa ft of space this year,
equivalent to 8 5 per cent, and we expect to mamntam
this momentum into next year

* We were awarded Communty Retarler of the Year
at the annual Retail Industry Awards

Active property management

£10.5bn

Estimated market value of
freehold property

e Estimated market value of freehold property increased
to £10 S bilhion

# increase of £0 7 bithon on last year, including £0 5 bilhion
of property value created through our investment and
development activity

» Generated £275 milhon proceeds from sale and
leaseback of property with no further development
potential, contributing to tota!l property profits of
£108 million




Financial highlights

Sales

+7.1%

Sales (including VAT,
ncluding fuel) up 71%

Underlying operating profit

£738m

Underlying operating
profit up 10 0%

Underlying profitbefore tax

£665m

Underlying profit
before tax up 9 0%

Underlyingbasic earnings
per share

26.5p

Underlying basic
earnings per share

up 10 9%
Financial summary 2010/ 2009/10 Change
£m £m %

Sales (including VAT) 22,943 21,421 71
Sales (excluding VAT) 21,102 13,964 57
Underlying operating profit 738 671 00
Underlying profit before tax 665 610 90
Profit before tax 827 733 128
Profit after tax 640 585 94
Underlying basic

earnings per share 26.5p 239p 109
Basic earnings per share 34.4p 321p 72
Full year dividend per share  15.1p 4 2p 63
Notes

Underlying operating prafit underlying profit before tax before underiying net
finance costs and share of underlying post tax resulls fram Joint ventures

Underlying profit before tax profit before tax from continuing aperations before any
gain or loss on the disposal of properties investment property fair valye movements
Impairment of goodwill financing fair value movements, IAS 19 pension financing
(credity/eharge and one off Items that are material and infrequent in nature

uUncerlying basic earnings per share underlying profit, net of attributable taxation,
divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares inissue dyring the
period exctuding those held by the ESOP trusts which are treated as cancelled
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Key financial performance indicators

Like-for-like sales growth! (%) Total sales growth' (%)
Trading intensity per sq ft>*(E per week) Underlying EBITDAR* (%)

2006/07 £1930
2007/08 £1969
2008/09 £20.01
2009/10 £2042

2010/11 £20.04

Underlying operating margin® (%) Underlying profitbefore tax®{(£m)

Underlying basic earnings per share’ Net capital expenditure (Em)

2006/07 13.0p
2007/08 174p
2008/09 21.2p
2009/10 239p

2010/11 26.5p

Retum on capital employed® (%) Operating cash flow (Em)

Notes

1 Sales in¢luding VAT, excluding fuel

2 Trading intensity per 3q It sales per week (including VAT, excluding fuel) divided by sales area

3 gOOBIO9 andzla%ogflo adjusted for comparative purposes to remove the dilutive effect of the temporary VAT reduction to 15 per cent between 1 December 2008 and

1 December 9

4 Underslying EBITDAR uncertying profit before tax before underlying net fimance costs, underlying share of post tax results from joint ventures depreciation, amortisation
and rent, divided by sales excluding VAT, including fuel

5 Underlying operating margin underlylng profit before tax before underlying net finance costs and underlying share of post tax results from [aint ventures, divided by sales
excluding VAT, Including fue)

6 Underlying profit before tax profit before tax betore any profit or loss on the disposal of properties investment property fair value movements, impairment of goodwill
financing falr value movements, 1AS 19 pension financing efement and one off items that are material and infrequent In nature

T Underlying basic earnings per share underlying profit, net of attributable taxation, divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the pariod,
excluding those held by the ESOP trusts which are treated as cancelled

8 Return on capital employed underlying profit before interest and tax, divided by the average of apening and closing capital employed {net assets before net debt)
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Our CR commitments and progress

Title

Commitment

Progress

Best for food and health

Healthier baskets for our customers

We will make the most popular itemsn our
custamers' baskets healthuer, facusing an
products that contribute the most saturated
fat, salt or sugar to the UK diet, to deliver a
real impact on the nation's health

Achieved and ongoing - we continue to make
the most popular dems in our customers’
baskets healthier

Sourcing with integrity

Being best for British

We will source great tasting British
products when in season, wherever
these meet our customers’ expectations
for quahty and authenticity

Achieved and ongoing - we remain committed
to supporting UK farmers and continue to
source Bnitish products, both when in season
and in certain categories all year round

Being number one supermarket
for animal welfare

We will offer the widest range of higher
welfare products of any UK retailer

Achieved - we both offer the widest range
of Freedom Food higher welfare products
and sell mare than any other UK retatler
We are also the UK's biggest retailer of
sustanable fish

Sourcingresponsibly and ethically

We will be the targest UK retaller of
Fairtrade products (by sales value)}

Achieved - we are the world's largest retaiter
of Fairtrade by value

Respect for our environment

Reducing energy We will reduce our CO, emissions per m? by Ongoing - cur commitment on refrigeration,
25% by 2012, against a 2005/06 baseline Eco-stores and reset programme are helping
us to progress towards this target
Reducing packaging We will reduce our own-brand packaging Ongong - making progress both incrementally
weight, relative to sales, by 33% by 2015 through packaging redesign and through
against a 2009 baseline packaging innovation like moving away from
cereal boxes
Reducing food waste We will have all supermarkets and depots Achieved and ongoing - we now have all of our
connected to a zero food waste to landfill supermarkets and depots connected to a zero
programme by the end of 2009 food waste to landfill programme We continue
to provide colleague training on zero foed waste
Reducing waste We will have all supermarkets and depots Achieved and ongoing - alt supermarkets and

connected to a zero waste to landfill
programme for operational waste by
the end of 2010

depots were connected to our zero waste to
landfill programme

Making a positive difference to our community

Generating apositive economic

We will provide 6,500 new jobs in

Ongaing - over 6,000 jobs were created

impact on communities 2010/11 through our planned opening by opening 21 new supermarkets, 24 store
of {7 supermarkets and over 75 new extensions and 47 new conventence stores
convenience stores across the UK

Supporting local communities We will support community based fundraising  Actveved and ongoing - raised over
and colleague volunteenng, encouraging our  £1 5 midlion through our local chanty
customers and colleagues to make a positive partnership scheme
difference in the local community
We will offer local groups and charities Achieved and ongoing - this 1s happenmg
space i our stores to support community n many of our stores We have progduced
activities and events, helping bring the a Community toolkit to support stores i
community together furthering this activity

A greatplace towork

Supporting the development We will provide over 10,000 colleagues with Achteved and ongoing - we have exceeded our

of our colleagues Job opporturities, skills and qualfications forecast and reman committed to opening

through our "You Can’ programme by 2010

Samsbury’s up to a wide range of new recruits
and to help our colleagues develop new skiils
through our ‘You Can’ programme

We will improve our leadership capability by
investing in a development programme that
will touch every manager across the business
by the end of the 2010/11 financial year

Ongoing - programme has been developed and
will be rolted out throughout May and June 201
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Chairman’s statement

David Tyler
Chalrman

Our Performance

The Board s pleased with the performance of Sainsbury's over
the last year We have gained market share and we now have 21
million customer transactions a week, an increase of one milllon
on last year We have attracted new customers to our existing
estate as well as to our new stores This is a strong demonstration
of our umversal appea! in what has been a challenging year for
customers with Increases in the cost of hiving and uncertainty
about job prospects causing them to shop around for the best
value This performance has been achieved through continued
focus on providing great product at fair prices, this year alone we
launched over 5,000 new or improved products into our stores
and we have continued to communicate our great value, for
example through our Value where 1t matters campalgn

We have also made excellent progress against our strategic
objectives as we aim to continue to improve profitability by
appealing to an ever wider range of customers and increasing our
reach across the UK In particular, in the past two years we have
increased gross store space by 159 per cent, exceeding the target
we set ourselves in 2009 This increase in space, particularly
through supermarket extensions, has helped cur clothing and
general merchandise grow at over three times the rate of food in
the year Our online business has also seen significant growth of
over 20 per cent as we extend our offer and make it easier for
customers to shop online with us

Our Values

Our values are core to the way we conduct our business Our
customers expect us to trade responsibly and ethically without
compromising on quality or value, and this remains at the heart
of everything we do We are proud that we continue to be the
world's largest retailer of Farrtrade goods and also the UK's
largest retailer of RSPCA Freedom Food products Qur hat-trick of
awards at the 2010 Retall Industry Awards - Community Retailer
of the Year, Convemience Retailer of the Year and Seafood Retaiter
of the Year demonstrates that our strengths and values are
recognised throughout our industry

Our Colleagues

Our colleagues share Sainsbury’s values, and the Board and | are
indebted to them for the way they provide a great experience for
our customers with such energy and responsibibty | would like
to thank them all for ther commitment throughout the year

Our colleagues are also a great example of the benefits a diverse
workforce can bring New and different perspectives on the
many challenges we face help us to understand and adapt to the
changing needs of our customers | am delighted our colleagues
will share in a bonus of around £60 million this year

4 J Sainsbury plc Annual Report and Finanaial Statements 20n

Our Financial Results

We have delivered another strong set of results Good sales growth
combined with cost efficiency savings offsetting inflationary
increases, helped deliver growth in both operating margin and return
on capital Underlying profit before tax 1s up nine per cent to £665
milhon and underiying earnings per share are up 10 9 per cent

In addition to this, shareholders benefited from our progress
In increasing the estimated value of our property estate by
£07 billion to £10 S bilhon in the year The sale and leaseback
of a number of supermarkets that had no further property
development potential contributed to property profits of
£108 million

The Board recommends a final dividend of 10 8 pence per share,
making a full year dividend of 15 1 pence, an increase of 6 3 per
cent over the previous year

Qur Board

In June 2010, Mike Coupe and Darren Shapland assumed new
roles as Group Commercial Director and Group Development
Director respectively and John Rogers, Property Director,

was appointed {o the Board as the new Chief Financial Officer

In January 2011 Matt Brittin, UK and Ireland Managing Director
of Google, joined as a Non-Executive Director We also appointed
Helen Buck te the Operating Board as Convenience Director in
June 2010

In May this year, we announced that Darren Shapland intended
to stand down from the Board with effect from this year's AGM
Darren plans to pursue a number of personal interests in the
future but he will, however, remain with Sainshury’s as Non-
Executive Chairman of Sainsbury’s Bank | would like to thank
Darren very much for the extremely important role he has played
in helping to reposition Sainsbury’s from recovery to growth

Luke Jensen, whois currently Managing Director Non-Food, and
amember of the Operating Board, will take over the role of Group
Development Director assuming Barren's responsibilities except
for Convenience, the Bank and Property Direct responsibility for
Convenience and Property will move to Justin King and Jehn
Rogers respectively

It 1s testament to the strength in depth of the team and to the
Sainsbury’s brand that we are able to implement these changes
| would fike to wish each of these colleagues every success In
their new roles and | am sure thewr experience will serve us well

Outlook

We have a wonderful set of assets at Sainsbury's strong
relationships with our customers, a trusted and respected brand,
934 stores across the UK, deep knowledge of the sector, 150,000
loyal and dedicated colleagues and developing complementary
businesses With this background, we believe that significant
further value for shareholders can be created in the years ahead
by investing further (n the business 1n our products, tn our
channels, in our store portfohe, and in other related businesses
Even in the difficult economic environment for UK consumers that
we can anticipate during the next year, we expect to make further
good progress

David Tyler
Chairman




Operatingreview

Justin King Chief Executive

Good sales and profit performance; continued delivery against growth plans.

Financial summary

+ Total sales (including VAT, including fuel) up 71 per cent
to £22,943 million (2009/10 £21,421 million)

* Total sales (including VAT, excluding fuel) up 4 9@ per
cent, hke-for-like sales (including VAT, excluding fuel)
up 2 3percent

¢ Underlying profit before tax up 9 O per cent to £665
milhon (200910 £610 million)

* Underlying basic earnings per share up 109 per cent to
26 5 pence (2009/10 239 pence)

* Return on capital employed of 111 per cent, up 11 bps
(2009/10 110 per cent)

* Proposed full year dividend of 15 1 pence, up 6 3 per cent,
cover 175x (2009/10 14 2 pence, cover 168x)

Statutory

* Revenue (exciuding VAT, including fuel) up 57 per cent
to £21,102 mullion (2009/10 £19,964 million)

¢ Profit before tax up 12 8 per cent to £827 million
(2009/10 £733 million)

* Basic earnings per share up 7 2 per cent to 34 4 pence
(2009/10 32 1pence)
Operating highlights

* Qutperformed the market in challenging environment,
increasing market share

» Weekly customer transactions now 21 million, up one
million on last year

+ Over 6,000 jobs created through store investment

* Hat-trick of awards at 2010 Retail Industry Awards
Community Retailer of the Year, Convenience Retailler
of the Year, Seafood Retailer of the Year

¢ Cost savings fully offset inflationary increases

¢ Underlying operating margin accretion of 14 bps
(20 bps at constant fuel prices)

Making Sainsbury's Great Again

* food Opened six new food colleges to train over 10,000
colleagues each year Successful re-faunch of £1billion
‘Taste the Difference’ brand Largest ever investment in
own-brand underway with review of 6,500 'by Sainsbury's’
products

* Non-food Growing at more than three times rate of food
Now UK's seventh largest clothung retailer

* Channefs Convenience now £1bilhion business, groceres
online growing at over 20 per cent, ‘Click & Collect’ in
over 160 stores, Sainsbury’s Bank pre-tax operating
profit up over 50 per cent

e Space 15 milhon square feet gross new space this year,
exceeding 15 per cent two-year target

¢ Property Value of portfolio now £10 5 billion, up
£07 bilion £275 milhion net proceeds from sate and
leasebacks and £108 million property profits

J Salnsbury ple Annual Report and Financial Statements 2011 5
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Operating review continued

Overview

Sainsbury's has continved to grow market share with
customers responding well to our offer of healthy, fresh
and tasty food at great value Customer numbers are
now at an all-ttme high with 21 million transactions a
week, which is one million higher than this time tast year

We have made strong progress 1n each of our five areas

of focus Offering great food at fair prices remains at the
heart of our offer, as we have continued to invest in our
own-brand products For example, we had a major re-launch
of our Taste the Difference range, whilst our Great Food
inttiative 1s ensuring we offer the very best quality and
service at our fresh food counters We are accelerating the
growth of complementary non-food and services with an
expansion of our range, which we have made avallable to
more customers through the development of our estate
and online offer We are reaching meore customers through
additional channels, with our convenience stores now
bringing 1n annual sales of over £1 billion and onhine sales
continuing to grow strongly We continue to grow
supermarket space successfully and have exceeded the
space growth target of 15 per cent we set ourselves two
years ago Finally, we continue to focus on active property
management and during the year we generated £275
millien proceeds from the sale and leaseback of stores
with no further property development potental,
contributing to total property profits of £108 million

Trading and operational review

Sainsbury's has continued to outperform the market in
challenging economic ¢conditions Total sales (excluding
fuel) were up 4 9 per cent, with ike-for-like safes up

2 3 per cent Thus was delivered during a period when
household budgets have been under significant pressure,
most notably from record fuel price inflation Customer
transactions are now at an all-time high of 21 millien per
week We attracted new customers not only to our new
stores but also to our existing stores, demonstrating the
strength of our universal customer appeal In particular,
we have worked hard to keep our prices as low as possible
despite the nsing costs of ingredients, while not
compromising on quality or choice

Trading intensity in our existing estate continued to grow
However, this progression was offset by a greater number
of new stores whose sales are still in their growth stage,
the higher proportion of space dedicated to non-food and
the disruption expenenced at the increased number of
extenstons this year Overall trading intensity therefore
decreased year-on-year

Over the year, we have doene much to help customers
manage their weekly spend as they are increasingly savvy
with their shopping and look around for the best value Our
Value where it matters campaign offers savings on leading
brands, we check over 30,000 competitor prices each
week to ensure our prices remain great value and this s
supported by other campatgns such as offering over 1,000
products for £1or less Our meal planner tip cards have
also been very popular, helping shoppers feed a family of
four with five tasty and nutritious meals cooked from
scratch for £20 In addition, sales of our expanding Basics

6 J Salnsbury ple Annual Repart and Financial Statements 2011

range of over 650 products are growing year-on-year,
as customers continue to look for ways to save money

In addition we benefit from the competitive advantages
the Nectar loyalty programme brings us The scheme)s
now even stronger through the addition of British Gas and
easyJet, offering our customers even more ways to earn
or spend thewr points There are now 17 5 million Nectar
card hofders and there are 800,000 more card holders
shopping at Sainsbury's than this time last year

Responsible sourcing

We moved all our own-brand canned tuna to pole and line
caught in 2009, and as a result this year we were rated
No.1by Greenpeace for responsible sourcing We have
stnce seen tinned tuna sales rise by nearly 15 per cent 1n the
final quarter. We also announced that all tunaused as an
ingredient would be moving te pole and line caught by the
end of January 2011 Tuna s the third biggest-selling fishin
Sainsbury's and the move will now see 1,500 tonnes of fish
move tothe more sustaimable catch method every year.



Operating review continued

Customers have enjoyed targeted offers through our
coupon at bl programme, uruque 1n the UK, and in the last
year alone we1ssued over 240 mithon coupons Qur abihty
to apply the umque insight Nectar data provides was
recognised at the Data Strategy Awards with the Best

Use of Data in Retai award

More than ever, customers expect tugh ethical standards
In our sourcing and this shows in our sales figures For
example, having been rated by Greenpeace as the best UK
retailer for sustainable tuna and, through wider recognition
of our sustainable sourcing methods, sales of our tinned
tuna rose by nearly 15 per cent Iin the final quarter alone
Also, Christmas sales of our Freedom Food Norfolk Black
turkeys were up 30 per cent on last year In fact, despite
the challenging weather conditions, we had a record-
breaking Christmas Cur colleagues worked extremely
hard to provide great service to our customers, serving
over 24 6 million of them in the seven days up to and
including Christmas Eve

We continue to look for opportuntties to streamline our
operations, improve the customer shopping experience
and make things simpler for colleagues, while also making
significant cost savings We now offer the option of self-
scan checkouts in nearly 700 stores and they account for
over 40 per cent of transactions in these stores We have
reduced the amount of paper used for store receipts by
two fifths, equivalent to over 350 tonnes annually, by using
double-sided printing Over the last four years our Energy
Reset programme has saved the equivalent energy needed
for 90 supermarkets, reducing energy usage by 16 per cent
in each store

We have also introduced further efficiencies within our
supply cham to get products onto our shelves more quickly
and to improve the efficiency of our warehouses, vehicle
use and driver deployment For example, we have reduced
the distance our products travel from depot to store by
around 2 5 per cent and our investment in new supply
chain technology will signuficantly reduce waste and cut
CO, emissions by almost 70,000 tonnes a year Additionally
we have reduced own-brand packaging by 8,000 tonnes in
the fast year, as we make it easier for our customers to

Reducing our packaging
Some highlights from the last year

Fresh tomatoes saved

150 tonnes

Soft fruit saved over

440 tonnes

Total own-brand packaqging saved

8,000 tonnes

reduce, re-use and recycle On Easter eggs alone we have
reduced our packaging by nearly 60 per cent since 2008

Our in-house procurement team has helped keep a tight
contro! on operating costs and was independently
recogmised as world-class for its effechiveness and
efficiency This, together with productivity savings and
our strong sales performance, has increased underlying
operating margins by 14 bps and has helped to actueve
good underlying profit before tax growth of nine per cent
We are proud of the strong actuevements we have made
and are pleased that colleagues will share in a bonus of
around £60 million as a result of their hard work This is
less than last year’s record bonus award as we set
ourselves stretching targets and will continue to do so

Cur five areas of focus

We continue to operate arcund our five areas of focus that
are key to actueving a successful business performance
These areas of strategic focus are underpinned by our

five key values which help us to priontise and ensure we
conduct ourselves in an ethical and sustainable manner
We believe they set us apart from other retailers

J Sainsbury ple Annual Report and Financial Statements 2001 T
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Operating review continued

Greatfood
atfair prices

Offering safe, healthy, fresh and tasty food 1s at the heart
of what we do A major area of development this year has
been our Great Food programme, which aims to ensure

we continue to have a market-leading food and wine offer
In particttar, our investment in our food counters has
made them a destination for many of our customers

We refreshed the offer, from the range to the display, in

110 stores and have now introduced fresh pizza counters to
nearly 140 stores Over the coming year we will recruit and
train more than 500 new counter and café colleagues to
meet increased demand at the counters and to support the
growth in our cafés These recruits, as well as up to 10,000
colleagues already working on the meat, fish, deh, hot food
counters and cafés, will receive training at one of the six
food colleges we have opened across the UK The colleges
provide in-depth training from experts in areas like product
knowledge and food preparation, helping us to offer the
very best food and service to customers

Customers rematn very loyal to our own-brand products
and we sell more proportionately than any of the major
supermarkets This gives us a significant competitive
advantage and 1s an important way of offering our
customers great value We have invested across all our
own-brand ranges this year, with over 5,000 new or
improved products introduced, including @ major re-faunch
of our Taste the Difference range prior to Chnistmas This
re-launch covered the entire range of over 1,000 products
and was our largest ever one-off investment in own-brand
Our core ewn-brand range offers quafity equal to or better
than the leading brand but 1s at least 20 per cent cheaper
Over the next year we will be reviewing this 6,500 product
range individually and benchmarking all aspects, including
taste, nutntion and packaqing, to ensure we offer the best
products on the market This will be our largest ever
investment in our own-brand products

We go {o great lengths to source with integrity, and
continue to support Bnitish agnculture In recognition of

8 J Salnsbury pl¢ Annual Repert and Financial Statements 2011

Taste the Differencere-launch

In September we re-launched our premium Taste the
Difference range, a range of over 1,000 products, to give
our tastiest food range ever. This was our biggest ever
investment in own-brand, with over 700 new and improved
preducts There-launchtncluded a new ‘Bistro’ range which
offers a selection of restaurant-quality starters, mains and
desserts made using premium ingredients and the very
best cooking methods Sales of Taste the Difference were up
by nearly ten per cent over Christmas

this, we were awarded a BBC Radio 4 Food and Farming
Award for our work 1n helping farmers reduce their carbon
footprint We offer British products at their best, when

In season and when quahty meets our customers'
expectations In Spring, we were number one in the UK for
British asparagus and Jersey Royals We are also number
one for English pears and we sell almost one in four of all
British apples when in season We continued our direct-to-
store inibiative, with over 80 stores receiving strawberries
or potatoes direct from local farmers Nearly 80 per cent
of our bakeries bake a selection of products from scratch
and they only use Bnitish flour for this

Our British seasonal fish sales were up over 50 per cent
over the year and we now offer 100 per cent fresh fish
(never frozen) on our counters, in adcdition we were the
first UK supermarket to sell fresh dab as a way to reduce
fish being discarded from the catch We are also proud
to be the UK's leading retailer of Marine Stewardship
Certified (MSC) fish, with over 80 different sustainable
MSC products In recogrition of our efforts, we were
awarded Seafood Retarler of the Year at the 2010 Retail
Industry Awards, a credit to our buying teams and a
reflection of our commitment to do the nght thing for
our environment and sustatnable sourcing

Ethical issues remain important to our customers and,
with over 12 per cent of our own-brand products coming
from certified sustainable sources, we are meeting their
needs One pound in every four spent on Fairtrade in the
UK 1s spent at a Sainsbury's store and, as more products
have been added, our sales of Fairtrade products have
reached over £280 million this year Having been the first
ever UK retailer to offer eggs from cage-free birds, all
our fresh eggs now meef this standard and the RSPCA
Freedom Food criteria The RSPCA recognised our
commitment to ammal welfare with the Most Progress
award at their annual Good Business Awards




Operatingreview continued

Six new Food Colleges

This year we opened six new food colleges across the
country, to help us deliver the very best food and service

to customers. The colleges offer training to colleagues
working on the meat, fish, deli and hot food counters, as well
as our cafés and we anticipate that over 10,000 colleagues
will pass through the colleges each year. The food colleges
follow an from the successful opening of Sainsbury’s bakery
college earlier inthe year.

£1in £4 of all Fairtrade salesinthe UK
are at Sainsbury’s

000 -

2

Accelerating
the growth of
complementary
non-food and
services

At present, supermarkets account for less than 15 per cent
of the UK non-food market and this represents a significant
opportunity for us This year we have made excellent
progress In the development and accessiility of our non-
food ranges and sales are growing at more than three
times the rate of food Our focus on high street style at
supermarket prices s clearly popular with customers

and, together with the convemence of buying general
merchandise at the same time as shopping for food,

this has helped to grow our market share

it has been an outstanding year for the quality and value of
our products and cur high standards have been recognised
by many other industry awards this year In July, we won
Meat and Fish Retailer of the Year at the Supermeat and
Fish Awards, we won over 100 awards at the Nantwich
International Cheese Awards, and we won nine Quality
Food Awards, more than any other retailer Great food s
complemented by great wine and our new House range I1s
now one of the UK's fastest-growing wine brands We won
Drinks Relailer of the Year at the Drinks Business Awards
and enjoyed the most wins at both the International Wines
and Spints Competition and the Qualty Drnink Awards

Our leadership position in offering great food, whichs
also sustainably and ethically sourced, remains key to
our customers and we will continue to invest further
in our offer as we strive to exceed the standards they
expect of us

Clothing market share positions

Schoolwear 4qm
Childrenswear 7t
Womenswear gth

Clothing ™

(Source Sales by velume, Kantar 24 weeks ending 20 March 2011}

In clothing, our TU brand 1s now the seventh largest In

the UK market by volume, which underlines our fashion
credibihty In womenswear, we are expanding successfully
into accessories and lingerie Our childrenswear 15 now
seventh in the market by volume, with sales having grown
by over 20 per cent year-on-year, and the success of our
Back to School range makes us now fourth in that market,
up from sixth last year Menswear has also grown by over
18 per cent on last year As we continue to expand our
ranges, we were delighted to announce that Gok Wan will
create a number of wormenswear collections for us, with
the first collection hitting the shelves later this year
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Operatingreview continued

Our general merchandise ranges have been important

to our non-food growth We are enjoying growth rates of
over 20 per cent in many areas, including books and home
textiles In entertainment and electricals market-feading
offers on key titles have been a great success For example,
prior to Christras, nearly one in four of all copies of Shrek
4 DVDs sold in shops were bought at Sainsbury's These
figures will continue to become more significant as it 1s
expected that 40 per cent of new space will be devoted to
our non-food ranges, which will account for one third of
our supermarket sales growth As a result of the growth
of our non-food business, and the further development

of direct sourcing in this area, we have seen an Iincrease

in the levels of our inventory at the end of the year

There Is a clear opportunity to turn more of our
supermarkets inte larger, destination stores Our new
100,000 sq ft stores in Crayford, Lincoln and Stanway are
good examples They represent a major change in the scale
and presentation of our clothing, general merchandise
and electrnical goods ranges, and feature leading popular
brands such as Disney, Clarks, O, and Speedo To support
our growth in non-food we have also invested in people,

IT and the supply chain Our Shanghat office 1s improving
our buying capacity and we have strengthened our
clothing sourcing capabilities by opening an office in
Bangladesh Through these and logistics efficiencies in
warehouse operation and route planning we ensure we
keep the environmental footprint of our non-food business
as low as possible

We are extending our brand into other complementary
non-food areas, while also maximising the benefits of the
Nectar scheme for customers Samsbury's Energy, in
partnership with British Gas and linked to Nectar, offers
customers convernent access to products such as solar
panels and insulation, as well as advice such as home
energy assessments, to help make their homes more
efficient, keep their bills down and reduce their impact
on the environment

Sainsbury’s Bank, providing insurance products, banking
services and transactional services such as travel money,
had a strong year with pre-tax operating profit growing by
over 50 per cent We have continued to focus on growing
customer loyalty and have strengthened our relationship
with our customers through the Double Nectar Reward
proposttion, which 1s now available on five finance
products Our insurance business has also grown
strongly, with new business up 25 per cent on the year
We now have 118 travel money kiosks in our stores,
attracting over half a million customers this year alone,
and we also provide our customers with over 1,200 ATM
machines

Our industry-leading offer has been recognised by a
number of high-profile consumer and industry awards

in the tast year including Best Credit Card Provider
{Consumer Moneyfacts Awards 2011), Best New Credit
Card and Best Personal Loan Provider (Moneynet Personal
Finance Awards 2011), and Best Overall Online Provider
(Your Money Awards 2010}
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Sainsbury’s Energy re-launch

In February, Sainsbury's Energy was re-launched in a
ground-breaking partnership with British Gas We are
working together to help Bnitish households get the right
information about how they can produce and manage their
energy now and in the years ahead. Our atm I1s to become
the number one destination for customers fooking for new
energy technologies, energy efftciency measures and great
enerqgy deals, so we can help them to reduce costs, while
also reducing carbon emissions.

3

Reaching

more customers
through
additional
channels

With 377 stores and over 900,000 sq ft of space our
convenience store business s well established and delivers
annua! sales of aver £1bithon with like-for-like sales growth
ahead of our supermarkets The stores give our customers
an opportunity to top up their supermarket shop, while
providing local communities with a strong fresh food offer,
easy shopping and excellent customer service, which was
recogrused with the award of Convenience Retailer of the
Year at the Retail Industry Awards




Operating review continued

The convenience store market is still unconsolidated, with
supermarket chains owning only 15 per cent of the
market's 50,000 shops We opened 47 new stores this
year and we plan to open one {o two stores per week over
the next year, with a healthy pipeline of prospective stores
and opportunities for leasehold sites We have also
recently opened a trial Fresh Krtchen store in Central
London, serving hot and cold food and drink for breakfast
and lunch customers

Our online grocenes business continues to grow, with
annual sales up over 20 per cent and weekly orders now
regularly over 130,000 The service can now reach over 93
per cent of UK households, through 187 stores Non-food
online sales also continue to grow, supported by the
introduction of our Click and Colfect service, now in over
160 stores, which allows customers the freedom to pick up
non-food items ordered online at a store and time
convenient for them, rather than waiting at home for a
delivery

Click and Collect

Over

160 1in3

of non-food online

stores orders

This was rolled out to over 160 stores over the year and now
takes more than11n 3 of non-food online orders

Growing

supermarket
space

We continue to take advantage of the unique opportunity
that we have to grow our space This year, we cpened 21
new stores, 24 extensions and 47 convenience stores,
equivalent to 15 million sq ft of gross new space, or 8 5 per
cent growth year-on-year In the two years to March 2011
we have grown our gross space by 159 per cent, beating
the 15 per cent target we set in March 2009 Of our new
stores opened in the last two years, over 70 per cent were
n Scotland, Wales or the South West where we are under-
represented Our extensions are largely in the South and
East where we are principally introducing or extending our
non-food offer We expect to maintain this momentum into
next year, growing gross space by seven to eight per cent
in 2011/12 including 15-20 new stores, 15-20 extensions and
one to two convenience stores a week

In future years, we plan to add around 125 million sq ft of
new space per year and we expect to continue to be able to
secure new development opportunities as guickly as we
open stores, which offers us growth potential for many
years to come We now have a strong property pipeline
with clear line of sight on new stores and extensions we will
open in the future This pipeline 1s supported by over 70
planning consents for future store extensions At the same
time, econormes of scale are enabling us to carry out our
store expansion programme more cost-effectively and
build to standard specifications with mimimum customer
disruption Over the past three years we have reduced
standard build and fit-out costs by 15-20 per cent per sq ft
and we continue to improve on this As a result of our cost
efficiency savings and good sales growth we have achieved
growth in return on capitat employed in spite of the
cumulative effect of our accelerated investment in space
growth since June 2009 and the greater proportion of

our stores yet to reach maturity We expect to achieve

a pre-tax rate of return in excess of 15 per cent on our
investment programme

J Sainsbury plc Annual Report and Financiat Statements 2011 11
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Operating review continued

Growing our space Environmentally responsible
In the last two years we have opened development

59

New supermarkets

As we grow our estate we now include several
environmental features as standard These include rain
water harvesting to supply water for flushing all the toilets,
€O, refrigeration, biomass bollers, which reduce mains
37 energy use by 30 per cent and CO, emissions by ten per
cent, sun pipes to maximise use of natural ight through
Extensions the roof, daylight dimming for the electric hghts across the
sales area, and our Zera Waste to Landfill programme,

As we grow our estate, we are conducting industry-leading
initiatives aimed at reducing our environmental impact as
our aim s to grow our sales but mimirmise our emissions
These include rainwater harvesting, biomass boilers which
reduce mains energy use by 30 per cent and CO, emissions
by ten per cent, and the use of natural ight and energy-
98 saving ighting The extension of our Crayford store also
achieved a world first by using Geo Exchange technology
Convenience to capture unused heat and store it deep underground
stores for later use Despite the store doubling in size, we have
capped its carbon emissions at the same level as the
former store

We set out to generate a positive economic and social
impact in the communities we serve Inthe past year alone,
we have created over 6,000 new Jobs through our store
expansion plans and over the next three yvears we will
create over 20,000 new full and part-time positions,
with opportunities to suit all members of the commumnity
We know the success of our business relies on lively,
productive and customer-focused colleagues and through
our You Can training and skills programme we aim to be
the employer of choice in the retail sector Our progress s
demonstrated through being the first-ever major food
retailer to have been awarded a gold accreditation from
Investors in People Our colleagues invest a large amount
934 of time supporting local charities and commumity groups,
through our suppeort for local chanties, over £1 5 million
has gone to local causes in the last year and our colleagues
have volunteered over 6,500 days Our efforts have been
recogrised with the Community Retadler of the Year award,
which acknowledged in particular the time and investment
qiven by our colleagues in their local communities

Storenumbers

Stores n total

12 J Salnsbury ple Annual Report and Financial Statements 2011




Operating review continued

Supporting the community

Last year we donated

Over £1.5m

Food donations

Over £1.5m

Donated to local charities

5

Active property
management

At19 March 2011, the market value of the property we own
was estimated at £10 5 billion, an increase of £0 7 tillion
over the year Of this increase, £0 5 bilhon has been from
an improvement in yields and a further £0 5 billion has
come from the value created through our development
actvity, offset by disposals of £0 3 billion Owning this
valuable property asset allows us to retain operationa!
flexibility, provide securnity for funding, make the most

of development oppartumties, as well as unlock value
through sale and ieasebacks when these properties are
fully developed All of these factors serve to maximise
value for shareholders

We belhieve we have built and maintained a very strong
property portfolo It includes 304 freehold and long
leasehold supermarkets, plus 41 stores in property jomt
ventures in which we have a 50 per cent share Our
freehold to leasehold spht across our supermarket
property porifolio remains around 65 per cent Of the
supermarkets we own, 86 are in our development plan,
with a further 16 having potential for mixed-use schemes,
and 143 having longer-term potential subject to planning,
economic and physical viatulity Of the properties held
inJoint ventures, 16 are n the development plan, with a
further 16 having longer-term potential There are also
three potential mixed-use schemes

Growth in property value

In the last two years our estimated property value has
increased by

Over £3bn

This i1s due to £2 2 billion yield improvement, £1.2 billion
from our investment and development of assets, and
£(0 4) billion from disposals

A key etement of our property strategy 1s recycling capital
to invest in profitable growth Stores which are fully
developed, we cansider for sale By taking advantage of
attractive yields on these assets, we generated £275
million proceeds during the year contnibuting to property
profits of £108 miilion, up from £27 million last year

Going forward, the creation of value through our property

portfolio and our growth in supermarket space Is key to
increasing the return on our investments
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Corporateresponsibility review

Anna Ford
Chair of the
Corporate
Responsibility
Committee

As chair of the Corporate Responsibility Committee,

I report to the Board twice a year on our plans and the
progress made on each of our values. Sainsbury's
approach to Corporate Responsibility 1s not just an add-on,
these values are an integral part of our daily actions and
are at the heart of our policy and deciston-making Here
we highlight some of the challenges and opportunities
presented by sustatnability, alongside key achievements
which have been recognised by awards. We were proud to
be awarded Sector (eadership and Gold Class in the Dow
Jones Sustainability Index, as welt as awards for our
approach to supporting farmers and high animal welfare
standards, from Radio 4 Food and Farming, Compassion In
World Farming and the RSPCA, to name but a few

With an average of 21 mulhon customer transactions each
week, as well as around 150,000 colleagues and more than
2,000 suppliers, Sainsbury's has a real impact on the
economy, environment and society Qur values underpin
our goal to provide healthy, safe, fresh and tasty food at
fair prices They are at the heart of our business, they
determine our prionties and ensure we conduct ourselves
in an ethrcal and sustainable manner As a leading food
retaiter we focus on being 'Best for food and health

which 1s why we are commutted to "Sourcing with integrity’
As we source from all over the world to sellin the UK we
aim to always show ‘Respect for our environment' and
play an active role in ‘Making a positive difference to our
commumty' All this 1s possible through the commitment
of our colleagues, so that Sainsbury’s 1s "A great place

to work’

We raised a record breaking sum of £11 4 milhon for
Comic Relief during this economically challenging year
and | would like to extend my sincere gratitude to all

of our colleagues and those customers that contributed
so willingly to such a great cause

MAAS |

Anna Ford
Chair of the Corporate Responsibility Committee
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An award-winning year for Corporate
Responsibility at Sainsbury’s

Dow Jones Sustainability Index 2010/11
- Gold Class and Sector leader

FTSE4Good Index

Business in the Community Corporate Responsibility
Index - Platinum status

Gold accreditation from ‘Investorsin People’

‘Community Retailer of the Year’ and ‘Seafood
Retailer of the Year’ at the Retail Industry Awards

‘Best Volumte Supermarket’and 'Good
Chicken Award’ atthe Compassionin
World Farming Awards

‘Retailer of the Year' at the Farm Business Award

‘Best Retail Initiative' at BBC Radio 4
Food & Farming Awards

‘Most Progress in Animal Welfare'at the
RSPCA Good Business Awards

‘Green Retaller of the Year’ at Drinks Business
Green Awards 2011




Corporate responsibility review continued

Corporate Responsibility Governance

The tmportance we attach to our values s reflected in our
corporate responsibiity governance structure, where
members of our Operating Board are responsible for each
of our five values and sit on our Corporate Responsibilty
Steering Group To complete the governance process, our
plc Board oversees Corporate Responsibihty through its
own committee

The '"Materiality’ Process

When we set our goals and priorities, we are guided

by a ‘'matenality’ process which enables us to focus
our attention on those areas of greatest impact and
importance We chart all related sustainability 1ssues
against the level of potential concern and how much
the 1ssue could affect cur business We are then able to
make a direct ink between the sustainability challenges
we face and our commercial strategy Examples of the
most significant 1ssues are clear nutrition labeliing,
supporting suppliers and farmers, and ensuring we
have a diverse workforce

MBIADY SSauIsng

We map a wide range of 1ssues to the level of stakeholder
concern and potential to impact our business The outputs
of this process have been used to inform our CR strateqy,
set new commitments and select the topics covered in
this report

Customers and many other interested parties trust
Sainsbury's to act responsibly on thewr behalf They also
look to us to take the lead in encouraging people to shop
with the emvironment and ethics in mind Throughout the
challenging economic environment, customers have told
us that ethical and environmental 1ssues remain important
tothem Therefore, while customers have demanded
better value from their purchases, this has not been at
the expense of the environment or society Sainsbury's
pubhshes an extensive Corporate Responsibility report
that covers our five values in more detail and this s
available at www J-sainsbury co uk/cr We have reported
on Corporate Responsibility in some form since 1996,
when we were the first UK food retailer to pubhsh an
Environment Report

Best for food and health

Strategy

Our goal 1s to offer our customaers great quality food at fair
prices and, as a leading food retailer, we aim to be ‘Best for
food and health’” Our approach s to help and inspire
customers to eat a healthy, balanced diet by promoting
healthy eating and active lifestyles In addition to making
healthy, high-qualty and tasty food easily available in our
stores, we ensure that we have clear and straightforward
labelhng to help people make more informed choices
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Corporate responsibility review continued

Challenges and opportunities

We respond rapidly to changing customer needs For
example, after heavily promoting the benefits of a
healthier diet, we saw an increase in demand for healthy
products and responded by mtroducing 20 new and
improved hines to our Be Good to Yourself range We also
saw an increase in demand for products designed for
customers with allergies and intolerances Rather than
lose customers who are not able to buy our own-brand
products due to these allergies, we reformulated much of
our range and provided detalled relevant information on
our website We have also increased our Freefrom range,
which now accounts for 22 7 per cent of the allergy and
intolerance market

In March 2011 the Coalition Government launched its Public
Health Responsiility Deal involving the Department of
Health, industry and the third sector We were pleased to
have been part of the discussions about the Responsibility
Deal from the outset and to have signed up to pledges that
buld on the work we have done over a number of years,
for example to make food products healthier and to
address rresponsible alcohol consumphion

We encourage our customers to make informed chotces
about the alcohol they purchase by printing the umts of
alcohol per glass or bottle on all cur own-brand beers, wines
and spints We are aware of the reputational and financial
risks associated with the irresponsible sale of alcohol

and as a responsible retailer take every effort not to sell
alcohol to those under 18 We adopt a Think-25 policy in
all our stores, mearung if the customer looks under 25,
we ask for proof of age We are also an active supporter
of Drinkaware, a charity that increases awareness of

the results of alcohol abuse and helps individuals make
informed choices about their drinking New product
development of lower alcohol wine has increased choice
for our customers

Achlevements and performance
* 18 per cent of our own-brand products are from healthy
ranges

e Over 5,000 of our own-brand products are labelled with
front of pack Multi Traffic Light labelling

Sourcing with integrity

Strategy

'Sourcing with integnity’ is central to our ability to provide
great products at fair prices In practice this means
working with our suppliers to build sustainable supply
chains, taking into consideration their economic,
environmental and social impacts We aim to bring value
to the communities we source our products from, as well
as promoting high standards of animal welfare and
responsible sourcing Our strategy 1s to be a world leader
in seling food using certified sustainable sources
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Challenges and opportunities

While we are a UK retailer of food, we source products
from across the world In the longer term, the impact of
population growth and land use pressures could lead to
increases in costs By working with our supphers on
iutiatives such as our development groups, we are
working together to meet these challenges, and becoming
more efficient in managing social, ethical and
environmental issues

The development groups are an entirely new way of
working with our suppliers in our mawn agricultural supply
chains We share best practice across a supply group,
providing traiming on new farmmg techriques as well as
introducing technology where it 1s heipful and appropriate
Since 2006 we have invested over £30 milhon in
developing these relationships, inthially with our dairy
development group and more recently broadening out to
cover the main agricultural supply chains We currently
have aver 2,000 farmers and growers participating in cur
development groups This approach will ensure that the
majonty of our own label products come from supply
chains that are dedicated to us, and are environmentally
sustainable, ethical and fit for the future

Achievements and performance

* 12 2 per cent of our own-brand products are from
certified sustainable sources, such as Marine
Stewardship Council, Fairtrade, RSPCA Freedom Foods,
Forest Stewardship Council, Soil Association, equivalent
to over £1billion in sales in 2010/11

o Qver £280 milhon of our sales in 2010/11 were from
Fairtrade products alone, making us the world's largest
Fairtrade retailer by value Despite the challenging
economic climate our customers’ interest tn Fartrade
has continued, with sales increasing by 19 per cent from
the previous year

Respect for our environment

Strateqgy

We manage our envtronmental impact threugh our chimate
change strategy This divides the business into three
elements our operations, our products and our customers
We aim to reduce our environmental impact by introducing
programmes of co-ordinated activity across the business
between now and 2020, with the aim of becoming the UK's
greenest grocer

Challenges and opportunities

Chimate change represents a significant challenge both for
our business and the world’s population We take a long-
term view of our environmental impact and intend to
reduce our direct environmental footprint, as well as
manage the environmental impact of our supply chain In
the UK we anticipate the increase in direct costs associated
with environmental regulation will nse over the coming
years, and 1s already impacting the business through, for
example, changes to the Carbon Reduction Commitment
It 15 important that we continue to work closely with our
supphers to mimimise their impact on the environment and
manage the challenges presented by chimate change, such
as water scarcity and land use




Corporateresponsibility review continued

Over the tast two years we have opened 14 per cent more
supermarket sales space with no net increase in carbon
intensity, meaming that while our business grows, our
environmental footprint does not By working in this way
we enhance our environmental credentials as well as
reducing our operating costs over time

Achievements and performance
¢ Through our supermarket energy reset programme we
saved £57 mulhon

* We have reduced our own-label packaging by 8,000
tonnes over the last year

Making a positive difference to our community

Strategy

Qur stores are at the very heart of the communities

they serve, and our successful planming apphcations
demonstrate how we will provide local employment and
enhance a local community by taking an active role in
communtty hfe Our Local Chanty Partnership imitiative
ensures our stores support the charities most relevant

to the communities we serve Our aim 15 to be the food
retaller of choice for local communities, by standing out as
being ‘more than a store’ Our commitment as the first ever
Paralympic Games only sponsor complements our aim to
promote a healthier lifestyle across all ages and abilities

Challenges and oppartunities

The challenging economic climate of recent years has
had a significant impact on the communities in which we
operate This, combined with the way in which the retail
sector competes for customers’ weekly shop, means that
we need to use all store benefits to ensure we are the
retaller of choice when new planning applications are
considered Qur Company values play a key role in the
planning process and can be the difference in winring

or losing an application

Through new store openings and extensions we create new
jobs and opportunities We look to recruit from the local
community and, in many cases, provide employment for
people who traditionally find 1t hard to get work, such as
the long-term unemployed or people with disabihties
Through our support of Comic Relief and our Active Kids
programme, we regularly see anincrease In sales as well
as improving levels of colleague invoivement

Achievements and performance
+ Over 6,000 new jobs created over the last financial year

« £22 9 milhon raised by colleagues, customers and
suppbhers through donations and chantable activity

A great place to work

Strateqy

Being ‘A great place to work’ s rooted in Sainsbury's
hentage and vatues It also plays a crucial role in achieving
our business goals We rely on our colleagues to provide
great service to our customers every single day

We champion equality, diversity, inclusion and flexible
working ophions for our colleagues We aim to recruit and
retain the best people, from backgrounds that reflect the
communities we serve We believe we should encourage
every colleague, no matter where they work or what role
they perform, to develop therr skills and make the best
use of them

Challenges and opportunitles

In an industry that traditionally has a tugh labour turnover,
and faces competttion for talent from competitors, it

15 vital that Samnsbury's provides 'A great place to work’,

to ensure we are able to attract and retain the best
colleagues Turnover of employees, and absenteeism,

add significant costs to our business, and managing

these challenges requires investment in training and
development We are already seeing a reduction in turnover,
which s down by 11 per cent over the past four years

From our research it 1s ¢lear that colleagues who are more
‘engaged’ are more productive, so It 1s essential we use all
of our communication channels to ensure this In addition,
we beheve satisfied colleagues will recommend us to their
neighbours, and enhance our reputation in the commumity
We are investing in training that will ncrease the skills of
our colleagues This not only helps us run our business
better, but has been shown to make a huge difference to
job satisfaction and employee retention

A healthy workplace is always a more productive one and
that 1s why safety 1s a key part of all our training and
management systems Over 86 per cent of our colleagues
believe that safety s taken seriously at Sainsbury’s - this is
a one per cent year-on-year improvement, building on an
already strongly positive base

Achievements and performance

® 88 per cent average colleague engagement score
Talkback, our colleague engagement survey, provides a
regular check of how our colleagues are feeling There s
a clear correlation between high engagement scores and
high productivity, therefore at a high average score of
88 per cent we know our colleagues are very engaged
with the business

» We were the first retailer to be awarded gold
accreditation from ‘Investors in People’ for our
commitment to improving our business by investing
in our colleagues
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Financialreview

John Rogers Chief FInancial Officer

Sainsbury’s has increased its market share in an
Increasingly challenging economic environment, whilst
delvering its growth strategy and maintaining the strength
of its balance sheet Sainsbury's is also investing in the
long-term growth of the business and taking advantage of
market conditions to generate funds from the sale and
leaseback of supermarkets that have no further
development potential This leaves the Company well
placed to deliver sustainable growth going forward

Sales (including VAT) Increased by 7 1per cent to £22,943
mullion (2009/10 £21,421 miltion} Underlying profit before
tax improved by 9 O per cent to £665 miilion (2009/10
£610 million) Profit before tax was up 12 8 per cent, at
£827 milhon (2009/10 £733 million), supported by

property profits of £108 million (2009/10 £27 milhion)
and a surplus on the revaluation of properties within the
joint ventures (“JV*} of £39 million (2009/i0 £123 million)

Underlying basic earnings per share increased to 26 5
pence (2009/10 239 pence), up 10 9 per cent This was
higher than the growth in underlying profit before tax, as
the impact of additional shares from the June 2009 equity
placing was more than offset by a lower tax rate Basic
earnings per share increased to 34 4 pence (2009/10

32 1 pence) This was higher than the underlying basic
earmngs per share due mainly to the property profits

and the surplus on the revaluation of JV properties

A hinal dividend of 10 8 pence has been proposed by the
Board (2009/10 10 2 pence) making a full year dividend of
151 pence, up 6 3 per cent year-on-year (2009/10 14 2 pence)

Summary Income statement 2om 2010 Change
52 weeks to 19 March 201 £m £m %
Sales {including VAT)' 22,943 21,421 71
Sales (excluding VAT) 21,102 19,964 57
Underlying operating profit 738 671 100
Underlying net finance costs? (97) 9 (22 8)
Underlying share of post tax profit from Jvs? 24 18 3313
Underlying profit before tax 665 610 90
Profit on disposal of properties 108 27 n/a
Investment property fair value movements 39 123 nfa
Financing fair value movements 7 (15} nfa
1AS 19 pension financing credit/(charge) 3 (24) nfa
One-off items 5 12 nfa
Profit before tax 827 733 128
Income tax expense aa7r) (148) (26 4)
Profit for the financial period 640 585 94
Underlying basic earnings per share 26.5p 239p 09
Baslc earnings per share 34 4p 321p 72
Dividend per share 151p 14 2p 63

1 The standard rate of VAT Increased from 15 per cent to 17 5 per cent on 1 January 2010 and to 20 per ¢ent on 4 January 2011
Z Net finance costs before financing fair value movements and the 1AS 19 pension financing element
3 The underlying share of post tax profits from joint ventures s stated before investment property far value movements and Tinancing fair value movements
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Financial review continued

Sales (including VAT) and space

Sales (including fuel) increased by 71 per cent through a
combination of market-beating hke-for-ike (“LFL") sales
growth in difficult trading conditions, an increased
contrnibution from new space and higher fuel sales, driven
by good volume growth as well as higher fuel prices

The 71 per cent growth includes a 2 4 per cent contrnibution
from net new space (excluding extensions and
replacements) LFL sales (inctuding fuel) were up 47 per
cent, higher than for sales excluding fuel due to the impact
of higher fue! sales

Sales growth (including VAT, including fuel) 201 2010
52 weeks 10 19 March 201 % 9%
Like-for-hke sales (tncluding fuel) 47 30
Easter impact! - 03
Net new space {excluding extensions and replacements) 2.4 18
Total sales growth 71 51

1 Like-for Iike sales growth in 2009/10 included an element of growth due to the iming of Easter In 2009

Sales (excluding fuel) grew by 4 S per cent LFL growth
of 2 3 per cent was below Sainsbury's medium-term
planning assumption of between three and four per cent,
but ahead of the market Sainsbury's market share for
the year to 19 March 2011 grew by 18 bps, to 16 3 per cent
(as measured by Kantar)

LFL sales growth was 2 O per cent in the first half,and 2 6
per cent in the second half The second half performance
reflected a strong third quarter, with LFL sales up 3 6 per
cent, but a more subdued fourth quarter, with LFL growth
of 10 per cent The contribution from net new space
(excludhing extensions and replacements) of 2 6 per cent
was tn fine with Sainsbury’s expectations Non-food sales
grew at more than three times the rate of grocery growth,
and online sales increased by over 20 per cent

Sales growth (including VAT, excluding fuel) 2on 2010
52 weeks ta 19 March 201 % %
Like-for-like sales’ 23 43
Easter impact? - 04
Met new space (excluding extensions and replacements) 26 20
Total sales growth 4.9 67

I Thisinctudes O 6 per cent growth from stores extended 1n 2010/11 net of disruption

2 Like for Iike sales growth in 2009/10 included an element of growth due to the iming of Easter in 2009

Average trading intensity excluding fuel (“T1") decreased
from £20 42 to £20 04 per sq ft per week Whilst the Tl
those stores not newly opened or extended continued to
increase, this progression was offset by the increased
proportion of stores not trading at matunity, the higher
proportion of space dedicated to complementary non-food,
which trades less intensively than food, and the disruption
caused at the 29 supermarkets replaced or extended in the
year (2009/10 16 replacements or extensions)

Samnsbury's added a gross 1,516,000 sq ft of selling space
in the year (including extensions and replacements),

an increase of 8 5 per cent since the start of the year
(2009/10 6 8 per cent) Sainsbury’'s has opened a gross
2,659,000 sq ft of selling space since March 2009,
equivalent to a15 9 per cent increase, and ahead of its
two-year target of 15 O per cent

The pace of supermarket property activity continued

with 1,416,000 sq ft either opened or extended (2009/10
1,021,000 sq ft) The number of stores opened or extended
(45 stores) was slightly lower than in 2009/10 (51 stores),

which included the acquisition of former Co-op and
Somerfield stores The 2010/11 opening programme
included 21 new supermarkets, of which five were
replacement stores These created an additional 829,000
sq ft of gross selling space {net 673,000 sq ft} and there
were no other closures apart from the replaced stores
The 24 supermarket extensions added 558,000 sq ft of
selling space, with a further 29,000 sq ft from five fuli

and 26 minor refurbishments In the last two years, over
70 per cent of supermarket new store openings have been
In areas in which Sainsbury's has been under-represented,
such as Scotland, Wales and South West England

There was also continued growth in the convenience
estate, with 47 stores added during the year, of which one
was a replacement, and 19 stores refurbished

Net of replacements, ¢clasures and disposals, closing space
of 19,108,000 sq ft was 1,358,000 sq ft htgher than last
year (20 March 2010 17,750,000 sq ft) The 77 per cent
year-on-year increase was a further step-up from the
2009/10 growth of 6 3 per cent
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Financial review continued

Store numbers and retailing space

Supermarkets

Convenlence

Total

at 19 March 201 Number Area Number Area Nusmber Area
000 sqft 000 sqft 000 sq 1t
At 20 March 2010 537 16,909 33s 841 arz 17,750
New stores 21 829 a7 104 68 933
Disposals/closures (5) 156} 6)] (3] (6) (158)
Extensions/downsizes/refurbishments - 587 - (4 - 583
Reclassifications’ 4 30 (4) (30 - -
At 19 March 2011 557 18,199 377 909 934 19,108
Memorandum
Extensions 24 558 - - 24 558
Refurbishments/downsizes 31 29 19 (4) 50 25
Total projects 55 SB87 19 {4) 74 583

1 Four stores previously classified as convenlence now operate under the supermarket fasoa

Gross space growth of seven to eight per cent 1s expected
it 2011/12 Net new store space excluding extensions and
replacements I1s expected to contribute around 2 5 per
cent to total sales growth (excluding fuel) in 2011/12

Underlying operating profit

Underlying operating profit increased by 10 O per cent to
£738 million (2009/10 £671 million) Thus reflected the
sohd sales performance and the delivery of cost efficiency
savings which have fully offset cost inflation as wel! as
supporting sustained investment in the customer offer

Underlying operating margin improved by 14 bps, to 3 50
per cent (2009/10 3 36 per cent), which was an increase
of 20 bps at constant fuel prices Underlying EBITDAR
margin improved to 7 81 per cent and increased by 17 bps
at constant fuel prices

Underlying operating profit Change at

52 weeks to 19 March 2011 constant
20m 2010 Change fuel prices

Underlying operating protit (Emy 738 671 100%

Underlying cperating margin (90)2 3.50 336 14bps 20bps

Underlying EBITDAR {(Em)? 1,649 1555 60%
Underlying EBITDAR marqin (96)* 781 779 2bps 1Tbps

¥ Underlying earnings before Intesest and tax before Sainsbury s share of post tax
profits from jont ventures

2 Underlying operating prefit divided by sales excluging VAT

3 Underlying operaling profit before rent deprecialion and amartisation

4 Underlying EBITDAR divided by sales excluding VAT
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Cost inflation for 2011/12 15 expected to fall at the higher
end of the two to three per cent medium-term range,
with cost savings expected to offset around 75 per cent
of this infiation

Salnsbury's Bank joint venture

Sansbury’s share of Sainsbury’'s Bank post-tax profit
amounted to £11 million (2009/10 £7 million) The bank
performed strongly in a challenging economic climate
with loans and advances to customers contmuing to grow
aganst the backdrop of strong back book management
The Sainsbury's Bank JV Is expected to contribute a
further step-up n profit in 201112

Property joint ventures

Sainsbury’s underlying share of post-tax profit from the

JV with British Land was £11 million (2009/10 £10 million)
its underlying share of post-tax profit from its JV with Land
Securities was £2 million (2009/10 £1million) Property
JVs are expected to deliver a similar level of profit

in 201/12

At the year end, a total surplus on revaluation of £39
million was recognised within the share of post-tax profit
from the JVs in the income statement (2009/10 £123
million) This represents an increase on revaluation of
these properties to an average yreld of 4 9 per cent
(2009/10 5 2 per cent)



Financial review continued

Underlying net finance costs

Underlying net finance costs increased by £18 milion to
£97 million (2009/10 £79 million), in part as a result of the
higher RPI rate, which increases the rate on Sainsbury's
inflation-linked debt

Interest cover was 79 times (2009/10 8 7 times) and fixed
charge cover was 2 3 times (2009/10 2 3 times)

Earnings per share

Underlying basic earnings per share increased by 10 9 per
cent to 26 5 pence (2009/10 23 9 pence), refiecting the
improvement in underlying profit before tax and the year-
on-year reduction in the underlying tax rate These more
than offset the full-year effect of the additional shares
1ssued in June 2009

The weighted average number of shares in issue rose by

2 0 per cent to 1,858 7 mullion 2009/10 1,8217 million)
Basic earnings per share wereup 7 2 per cent, at 34 4

pence (2009/10 32 ipence)

Underlying net finance costs 201 2010
52 weeks to 19 March 2011 £m Em
UnderlyIng finance income' 19 33
Interest costs (143) (127)
Captalised interest 27 15
Underlying finance costs' (116) M2)
Underlying net finance costs’ 97) 79

1 Finance income/costs pre financing fair value movenents and IAS 19 pension
financeng element

Sainsbury's expects underlying net finance costs in 2011/12
to increase by £10 to £15 mullion due to the effect of the
increase in RPI on the interest rate charged on its inflation-
inked debt The interest rate on the inflation-linked debt
resets annually in April by reference to the RPI rate
(capped at five per cent) prevailing in January

Taxation

The income tax charge was £187 million {2009/10

£148 mithon), with an underlying tax rate of 26 O per cent
{2009/10 28 S per cent) and an effective tax rate of

22 6 per cent (200910 20 2 per cent) The underiying rate
1s lower than last year primarily due to the resolution of a
number of outstanding items and the effect of the change
in the corporation tax rate on deferred tax balances These
factors, in addition to the non-taxable profit on disposal of
properties and investment property fair value movements,
result in the effective tax rate being lower than the
statutory rate

Underlying earnings per share calculation 20n 2010
52 weeks to 19 March 200 peance pence
Basic earnings per share 34.4 321
Adjustments (net of tax) for
Profit on disposal of properhies (5 6) (2 3)
Investment property fair value movements 21) 67
Financing fair value movements (0 2) g6
1AS 19 pension financing element [(B ) 09
One-off items {0 3) [}
Revaluation of deferred tax balances 04 -
Underlying basic earnings 26.5 239

Dividends

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 10 8 pence
per share (2009/10 10 2 pence), which will be paid on

15 July 2011 to shareholders on the Register of Members at
the close of business on 20 May 2011, subject to approval
This will increase the full year dividend by 6 3 per cent to
151 pence per share (2009/10 14 2 pence) The proposed
final dividend was recommended by the Board on 10 May
201 and, as such, has not been included as a hability as at
19 March 2011

The dividend 1s covered 175 times by underlying earnings
{2009/10 168 times), In ine with Sainsbury’s pohcy of
providing cover of between 150 and 175 times

Return on capital employed
The return on average capital employed (*“ROCE") over

Underlying tax rate calculation Profit Tax rate  the 52 weeks to 19 March 201 was 111 per cent, a year-on-
52 weeks o 19 March 201 £m Em *_ year increase of 11bps (2009/10 11 0 per cent) ROCE
Profit before tax, and tax thereon 827 187 226 growth was lower than last year in part due to the
Adjustments (and tax thereon) for cumulative effect of Sainsbury’s accelerated investment in
Profit on disposal of properties (108) {3} spac th June 2009 This h itally dilubive
Investment property tair value pace growih since June 15 has an In ¥ dilut
movements 39) - impact on profits as the stores mature, whilst increasing
Financing fair value movements %4 {3 the value of capital employed
{A519 pension financing element (3) i
COne-off items {9 -
Return on capital employed
Revaluation of deferred tax S2weeks to 19 Margn 201 ploy 26n 2010
batances - L Underlying operating profit (Em) 738 67
Underlying profit before tax, uUnderlying share of post tax profit from joint
and tax thereon 665 173 26.0 ventures (Em) 24 18
Underlying profit before interest and tax (Em) 762 689
Sainshury's expects the underlying tax rate to be around Average capital employed (Em)' 6,877 6,281
27 per cent In 2011/12, with the impact of disallowable Return on capital employed (%) 11 no
depreciation being partly offset by the further reduction Year-on year improvement Nops  85bps

in the statutory corporation tax rate

1 Average of opening and closing net assets before net debt

J Sainsbury pte Annual Report and Financial Statements 2011 21

M3IADL SSBUISNgG



MDIASI SSouUIsSng

Financialreview continued

Net debt and cash flows

Sansbury's net debt as at 19 March 2011 was £1,814 million
(20 March 2010 £1,549 milhon), a year-on-year increase
of £265 milllon Thencrease was driven pnimarily by the
accelerated estate development, partially funded by sale
and leasebacks, and the increase in working capital

Working capital increased by £78 million, mainly due to
increased inventories, which are £10 mullion higher than
at 20 March 2010 with higher levels of non-food stock to
support sales growth and an increase in the level of goods-
in-transit, driven by increased direct sourcing operations

Summary cash flow statement 2on 2010
52 weeks to 19 March 201 £m fm
Operating cash flow before changes in

working capital 1,216 1,14

{Increase)/decrease m working capital (78) 92

Cash generated from operations 1,138 1,206
Interest paid {126) (1)
Corporation tax paid {158) (B
Net cash from operating activities 854 1,006
Net cash used in investing activities {902) (900)
Proceeds fromissue of shares 17 250
Proceeds from borrowings 45 235
Repayment of horrowings (79) (15
Bividends pad (269) (241
(Decrease)/increase in cash and

cash equivalents {(334) 235
Increase/(decrease) in debt Fal (83)
Fair value and other non-cash movements (2) (30
Movement in net debt {265) 122

Sainsbury's expects net debt to be around £2 0 billion at
the end of 2011/12

22 J sainsbury ple Annual Report and Financial Statements 201

Financing

Sainsbury’s seeks to manage its financing by diversifying
funding sources, mmimising refinancing nisk and
maintaining sufficient stand-by hquichty Sainsbury's has
overali debt and credit faciities of £3 billion at its disposal

The principal elements of Samnsbury's core funding
comprise two long-term loans of £1,069 milhon due 2018
and £840 milhon due 2031, secured over property assets
In addition, Sainsbury's has unsecured debt of £180 milhion
and €50 million due between 2012 and 2015, together with
£120 milhon of convertible bonds due July 2014

In October 2010, Sainsbury's terminated its syndicated
£400 million and £163 mullion revolving credit facilities
andits £50 million bilateral revolving credit facility and
replaced them with a £690 million syndicated revolving
credit facility due October 2015 There were £Enil drawings
under the facility as at 19 March 2011 (20 March 2010

£nil drawings)

Capital expenditure

Core capital expenditure increased by £252 million to
£1,138 million (200910 £886 mihon), driven by an
acceleration of Samnsbury’s extensions programme
Acquisition of freehold and trading properties reduced
as 2009/10 included the purchase of 33 stores from the
Co-op/Somerfield

Sainsbury's also took advantage of good property yields
to increase its sale and leaseback activity of mature

stores with no further property development potential,
generating proceeds of £275 million (2009/10 £131 million),
which contributed to a total profit on disposal of properties
of £108 million (200910 £27 million) Net capital
expenditure was £880 million (2009/10 £915 rmillion)

Capital expenditure 20n 20i0
52 weeks to 19 March 207 Em £m
New store development 547 496
Extensions and refurtishments 470 320
Other - ncluding supply chamn and IT 121 70
Core capital expenditure 1,138 886
Acquisition of freehold and trading properties 17 160
Proceeds from property transactions (275} (131)
Net capital expenditure 880 915

Sainsbury's expects 2011/12 core capital expenditure of
around £12 billion



Financial review continued

Summary balance sheet

Shareholders' funds as at 19 March 2011 were £5,424
million (20 March 2010 £4,966 milhon), a rise of £458
million, mainly attributable to the continued profitable
growth of the underlymg business

Property, plant and equipment assets have increased by
£581 million as a result of increased space growth and
the increase In the value of properties held within the
property Jvs

Net debt 1s £265 million higher than at 20 March 2010, less
than the increase in non-current assets mainly as a result
of the sale and leasebacks and the timing of capital
expenditure and property disposals Gearing increased to
33 4 per cent (2009/10 312 per cent), as a resuit of the
higher net debt

Summary balance sheet 20m 2010 Movement
at 19 March 201 £m £m £m
Land and buildings {freehoid

and long leasehold) 6,440 6,059 381
Land and buildings

(short leasehold) 622 559 63
Fixtures and fittings 1,722 1,585 137
Property, plant and equipment 8,784 8,203 581
Qther non-current assets 842 an 31
Inventories 812 702 1o
Trade and other recewvables 303 215 B8
Cash and cash eguivalents 501 837 (336}
Debt (2,315) (2,386) T
Net debt (1,814) (1.549) {265)

Trade and other payables

and provisions (3,262) (313) (149)
Retirement benefit obligations,

net of deferred tax {241) (303) 62
Net assets 5,424 4966 458

As at 19 March 2011, Sainsbury's estimated market value
of propertresis £10 5 bilhon (20 March 2010 £9 8 billion),
equivalent to a yield of 4 9 per cent and Including a

50 per cent share of properties held within its property
joint ventures

Penslons

As at 19 March 201, the post-tax pension deficit was £241
miltion (20 March 2010 £303 million), supported by a nine
per cent increase In the value of plan assets Liabilities
increased by £0 3 billion, with a O 2 per cent reduction

in the real discount rate being offset by adopting the
legislative change to apply CPf rather than RPHin the
calculation of future pension increases

The IAS 19 pension service cost inctuded within UPBT was
£55 rmilhon, £7 milion higher than last year Sainsbury's
expects this to be around £60 million in 2011/12

Retirement benefit obligations 2on 2010
at19 March 2011 £m Em
Present value of funded obligations (4,945) (4,649)
Fair value of plan assets 4,614 4,237
Pension deficit (33 (412)
Present value of unfunded obligations (9) (9
Retirement beneftt obligations (340) 42n
Deferred income tax asset 99 18
Net retirement benelit obligations {241) (303}
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J Sainsbury plc: Board of Directors
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JSainsbury plc: Board of Directors continued

1 David Tyler Chairman *

Appomnted to the Board on 1 October 2009 David became Chairman
on1November 2009 He s Non-Executive Chairman of Logica plc
and a Non-Executive Director of Experian plc and Burberry Group
plc, where he also chairs the Remuneration Committee He was
previously Finance Director of GUS plc (1997-2006) and has held
senior financial and genera! management roles with Christie s
International plc (1989-96), County NatWest Limited (1986-89) and
Unilever PLC (1974-86) He was also Chairman of 31 Quoted Private
Equity pic (2007-09) and a Non-Executive Director of Reckitt
Bencliser Group ple over the same period Age 58

2 Justin King Chief Executive ¥

Appointed to the Board on 29 March 2004 Justinis also Chairman
of the Operating Board He has been a Non-Executive Director of
Staples, Inc since September 2007 and was appointed to the board
of the London Organising Committee of the Olympic Games and
Paralympic Games in January 2009 He s a member of the CBI
President’s Commuttee, 1s a patron of Skillsmart Retail, the national
sectar skilfs council for retail, and s a Visiting Fellow of Oxford
University's Centre for Corporate Reputation Justin was formerly
Director of Food at Marks and Spencer Group plc and prior to this
held a number of senior positions at ASDA/WalMart and Hiagen
Dazs UK He spent much of his early career with Mars Confectionery
and Pepsi International Age 49

3 John Rogers Chief Financial Officer

Appointed to the Board on 19 July 2010 John s also a member of
the Board of Satnsbury's Bank plc John joined Sainsbury's in March
2005 as Director of Corporate Finance and then became Director

of Group Finance from March 2007 te June 2008 in June 2008
John was appointed to the Operating Board as Property Director
Prior to Sainsbury’s, John was Group Finance Director for Hanover
Acceptances, a diversified corporation with wholly owned
subsidianies in the foed manufacturing, real estate and agri-business
sectors Age 42

4, Mike Coupe Group Commercial Director

Appointed Group Commercial Director on19 July 2010, and 1s
responsible for trading, marketing, IT and online Mike has been

a member of the Operating Board since October 2004 and an
Executive Director since 1 August 2007 He joined Sainsbury's from
Big Food Group where he was a Board Birector of Big Food Group plc
and Managing Dwrector of Iceland Food Stores He previously worked
for both ASDA and Tesco, where he served in a variety of senior
management roles He is also a member of the superwisory board

of GSI UK Age 50

S Darren Shapland Group Development Director

Appomnted Group Development Director on 19 July 2010 and 1s
responsible for Convenience, Property, Samnsbury's Bank, Strategy
and New Business Development Before taking on this role, Darren
was Chief Financial Qfficer from 1 August 2005 He is also Chairman
of Sainsbury s Bank plc Darren was appointed a Non-Executive
Directar of Ladbrokes plc in November 2009 He was formerly
Group Frinance Director of Carpetnight plc (2002 05} and Finance
Director of Superdrug Stores plc (2000-02) Between 1988 and
2000, Darren held a number of financial and operational
management roles at Arcadia pic in¢luding Joint Managing Director,
Arcadia Home Shopping, Finance Director of Arcadia brands,
Finance Director, Top Shop/Top Man (Burton Group), and Director
of Supply Chain Programme (Burton Group) Age 44

6 Val Gooding Non-Executive Director ¢ %

Appointed to the Board on 11 January 2007 Val was formerly Chief
Executive of BUPA (1998-2008), which she joined from British
Airways Sheis a Non-Executive Director of Standard Chartered
Bank plc, the Lawn Tenms Association, the BBC and the Home
Office She s a Trustee of the Bribish Museum and the Rose Theatre
She was formerly a Non-Executive Director of Compass Group ple
and BAA plc Age 60

7 Gary Hughes Non-Executive Director @ %

Appointed to the Board on 1 January 2005 Gary s Chief Financial
Othcer of the Gala Coral Group, a Director of the Scottish Exhibition
Centre Limited and an adwisor to Ibis Capital plc Formerly he was
Chief Executive of CMP Information Limited - a division of United
Business Media plc (2006-08), Group Finance Director of Emap plc
(2000-05), Group Finance Director of SMG plc (1996 2000), and
Deputy Finance Director of Forte pic (1994-96) Prior to thes Gary
held a number of senior management positions with Guinness pic
inthe UK and in North America Age 49

8 Bob Stack Non-Executive Director ¢ >

Appointed tc the Board on 1 January 2005 Bob was a Director

of Cadbury plc until Becember 2008, having yjoined Cadbury
Beverages in the US in 1990, and was {irst appornted to the Board
of Cadbury Schweppes plc in May 1996 as Group Human Resources
Director In March 2000 he was appointed Chief Human Resources
Officer and toek on responsibihity for commumication and external
affairs in addibion to HR Bob s Trustee and Non-Executive Director
of Earthwatch International and also a Non-Execulive Director and
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee of IMI pic Age 60

9 John McAdam Non-Executive Director @ %

Appointed to the Board on 1 September 2005 John is the Senior
Independent Director He 1s Chairman of Rentokil Inihal plc and
United Utihties plc He s also a Non Executive Director of Rolls-Royce
Group plc and Sara Lee Corporation John joined Unilever PLC as a
management trainee n1974 and went on to hold a number of semor
positions in Birds Eye Walls, Quest and Unichema, before the sale

of the Specialty Chemical Businesses to IC1in 1997 He was Chief
Executive of ICI plc, unti its sale to Akzo Nobel, and was formerly

a Non-Executive Director of Severn Trent plc (2000-05) Age 63

10. Anna Ford Non-Executlve Director ¢ k¥

Appointed to the Board on 2 May 2006 Anna retired from the BBC
in 2006, after 32 years in News and Current Affairs She is a Non-
Executive Director of N Brown Group pi¢ and has been a Trustee of
the Royal Botanical Gardens in Kew, London, a Fellow of the Royal
Geographical Society, a Trestee of Forum for the Future, Chancellor
of Manchester University, and an Honorary Bencher of Middle
Temple Age 67

11. Mary Harris Non-Executive Director @k w

Appointed to the Board on 1 August 2007 Mary 15 a member of
the supervisory boards of TNT NV and Uniba-Rodamco S E She
previously spent much of her career with McKisey & Company,
most recently as a partner, and her previous work experience
tncluded working for PepsiCo 1n Greece and the UK as a sales
and marketing executive Age 45

12 Matt Brittin Non-Executive Director @ %

Appointed to the Board on 27 January 2011 Matt 1s Managing
Director of Google in the UK & Ireland Before joming Google at
the start of 2007, Matt spent much of his career in media and
marketing, with particular interastsin strategy, commercial
development and sales performance This included Commercaial
and Digital leadership roles in UK media He s also a Director of
charities The Climate Group and The Media Trust Age 42

Lord Sainsbury of Preston Candover KG
Lite President

Key to Committee members

¢ Remuneration Committee

@& Audit Committee

* Nomination Committee

¥ Corporate Responsibility Committee
+ @k ¥ Denotes Chairman of Committee

Following the year-end, an announcement of management changes
was made on9 May 2014, see page 28

J Sainsbury ptc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2011 25

$10)32.1G JO paeog



Operating Board continued

1

1 Justin King See page 25

2. John Rogers See paqe 25

3 Mike Coupe See page 25

4 Darren Shapland See page 25

5 Gwyn Burr Customer Service and Colleague Director

Gwyn s responsible for Human Resources, Customer Service,
Corporate Responsibility and Corporate Communications as well as
our key sponsorship schemes where she will tead our important
Paralympic Games programme She joined the Operating Board in
2004 and became a Director of Sainsbury’s Bank plc in 2007 Gwyn
has over 25 years' business expenence, including five with Nestle
Rowntree and over 13 with ASDA/WalMart where she held various
board level positions Before joiming Sainsbury’s, Gwyn founded her
own marketing consultancy, The Resultant Team She s currently
chair of the Business in the Community, Cause Related Marketing
Leadership team

6. Tim Fallowfield Company Secretary and

Corporate Services Director

Timjoined Sainsbury's in 2001 as Company Secretary and1s a
member of the Operating Board n addition to tus role as Company
Secretary, Tim 1s responsible for Corporate Services comprising
Leqgal Services, Insurance, Safety, Central Secunty and Shareholder
Services Tim joined Sainsbury's from Exel plc, the global logistics
company, where he was Company Secretary and Head of Legal
Services (1994-2001) Prior to this he worked at the international law
frm Clifford Chance for six years and 15 a quahfied sohcitor

10

7 Roger Burnley Retatl and Loqistics Director

Roger joined the Operating Board in March 2006 as Supply Chain
Drector before assuming the role of Retail and Logistics Director

in April 2008 He was previously Supply Chan Director at Matalan
Roger spent s early career in retai management and buying at
B&Q betore joining ASDA/WalMart, where he held a number of
positions before becoming their Supply Chain Durector in 2001

He 15 currently Vice President of the Chartered Institute of Logistics
and Transport (UK)

8 Luke Jensen Managqing Director Non-Food

Luke joined Sainsbury s and the Operating Board i June 2008 as
Dwrector of Strategy He was appanted to the position of Managing
Director Non-Food in 2009 In this rofe he s responsible for driving
the profitable growth of Sarnsbury’s in General Merchandise,
Clothing and Entertainment and for the development of the
Company’s Far East direct sourcing operation, Sainshbury's Asia
Previous roles include Director/Partner and Head of the Consumer
and Retail Practice of OC&C Strategy Consultants (2004-08) and
Founder and Group FD/Executive Director of M8 Group (internet
and mail order specialist retailer} (2002-04)

9 Neil Sachdev Property Director

Neil was appotnted Property Director in July 2010 and 1s also
responsible for Samnsbury’s environmental strategy He joined the
Company as Commercial Director in 2007 where he helped drive the
growth of the Company as well as reduce running costs Neil has
awealth of retail expenience following 28 years at Tesco He was
appointed to the Joint Advisory Board of the Grantham Institute for
Climate Change in 2010 and since 2008 has been a member of the
Business in the Community Mayday Leadership team focusing on
the cimate change sector Neilis also a Non-Executive Director

and member of the Audit and Remuneration Committee of Capital
Shopping Centres plc Currently, Neil1s Chairman of the IGD Board
and Director of the Board of IGD Services Limited

10 Rob Fraser IT Director

Rob joined the Operating Board as IT Director i July 2009, bringing
many years of both IT and retail experience to the role Rob was
previously Vice President, Retail, Consumer & Transport at CSC,
and spent ten years at Boots where he undertook a variety of IT
rolesincluding Group IT Director He was also a member of the
Boots Executive Committee and has worked for Rank Xerox and
Marks & Spencer

11 Helen Buck Convenience Director

Helen was appointed to the Operating Board on 19 July 2010 as
Convenience Director Helen joined Sainsbury's in 2005 and, after
spending four years running Brand Communications, moved to
Trading as Business Urut Director, Grocery in 2009 Before joinung
Sansbury's, Helen held a number of semor posstions at Marks &
Spencer, Woolworths and Safeway and was a senior manager at
McKinsey & Company She sits on the General Media Panel
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Directors’ report

The Directors present thewr report and audited financial statements
for the 52 weeks to 19 March 2011

Principal actlvities
The Company's principal activities are grocery and related retaling

Business review

The Business review sets out a comprehensive review of the
development and performance of the busingss for the 52 weeks
ended 19 March 2011 and future developments The Business review
15 set out on pages 1to 23 of this report All the information detailed
In these pages 1s incorporated by reference into this report and 1s
deemed to form part of this report

Corporate governance statement

The corporate governance statement as required by the Disclosure
and Transparency Rules7 2 11s set out on pages 30to 37 and 1s
incorporated by reference into this report

Dividends

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dvidend of 10 8
pence per share (2010 10 2 pence), making a total dividend for the
year of 15 1 pence per share (2010 14 2 pence), anincrease of 6 3
per cent over the previous year Subject to shareholders approving
this recommendation at the Annua!l General Meeting (“AGM"), the
diwvidend will be paid on 15 July 2011 to shareholders on the register
at the close of business on 20 May 2011

Chanqges to the Board

John Rogers was appointed Chief Financial Officer of the Company
on 19 July 2010 and Darren Shapland, prewicusly Chief Financial
Ofticer, was appotnted Group Developrnent Director Mike Coupe,
previously Trading Director, became Group Commercial Director

In addition, Matt Brittin, UK & Ireland Managing Director of Google,
was appointed a Non-Executive Director and joined the Board on
27 January 201

0On 9 May 2011 we announced that Darren Shapland had informed the
Board that he intends to stand down from his position as a Director
with effect from the AGM on 13 July 2011 Darren plans to pursue a
number of personal interests in future but he will, however, remain
with Sansbury’s as Non-Execubive Chairman of Sainsbury's Bank

Luke Jensen, currently Managing Director Non-Food, and a member
of the Operating Board, will take over the role of Group Development
Director assumeng Darren's responsibihties except for Convenience,
the Bank and Property Luke will continue to be a Director on the
Operating Board

Justin King will assume chirect responsibiity for the Convenience
busmess whilst John Rogers will add Property to his remit

Re-election of Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association, John Rogers and
Matt Brittin, who were appointed to the Board since the last AGM,
will retire and seek election at the AGM

The new UK Corporate Governance Code provides for all directors of
FTSE companies to be subject to election by shareholders every year
Accordingly all members of the Board, other than Darren Shapland,
will retire and seek re-election at thrs year's AGM Full biographical
details of all of the current Directors are set out on page 25

Annual General Meeting

The AGM will be held on Wednesday, 13 July 2011 at The Queen
Ehzabeth Il Conference Centre, Broad Sanctuary, Westminster,
London SW1P 3EE at 11 00am The Chairman's letter and the Notice
of Meeting accompany this report, together with notes explaiming
the business to be transacted at the meeting

At the meeting, resolutions will be proposed to declare a final
dividend, to recerve the Annual Report and Frnancial Statements and
approve the Remuneration Report, to re-elect all of the Directors,
other than Darren Shapland, and to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors In addition, shareholders
will be asked to renew both the general authority of the Directors to
1ssue shares and to authorise the Birectors to1ssue shares without
applying the statutory pre emption nights In this regard the Company
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will continue to adhere to the provisions in the Pre emphion Group's
Statement of Principles

Shareholders will be asked to authorise the Company to make market
purchases of its own shares Shareholders will also be asked to renew
the Directors’ authonty to operate the Saving-Related Share Option
Plan for a further ten years and to authonise the Directors to hold
general meetings at 14 clear days’ notice (where this flexibility 1s
mented by the business of the meeting and is thought to be in the
interests of shareholders as a whole) A resolution to renew the
authonty to make ‘political donations’ as defined by Part 14 of 2006
Companies Act will also be proposed

Share capltal and controf
The following information is given pursuant to Section 992 of the
2006 Companies Act

Except as descnibed below in relationto the Company’s employee
share schemes, there are no restrictions on the voting rights
attaching to the Company's ordinary shares or the transfer of
securities in the Company, no person holds securities in the Company
carrying special nghts with regard to control of the Company, and

the Company 1s not aware of any agreements between holders of
secunties that may result in restnictions in the transfer of securities or
voting nghts Further details on the nghts, restrictions and obhgations
attaching to the share capital of the Company, including voting rights,
are contained in the Company's Articles of Association The Articles
of Assocration may only be changed with the agreement of
shareholders

Shares acquired through the Company's employee share plans
rank pari passu with shares in1ssue and have no special nights
Where, under the Company’s All Employee Share Qwnership Plan,
participants are beneficial owners of the shares but the Trustee

15 the registered owner, the voting rights are normally exercised
by the registered owner at the direction of the participants The

J Sainsbury Employee Benefit Trusts waive their nght to vote and
to dividends on the shares they hold which are unaltocated Some
of the Company’s employee share plans include restrictions on
transfer of shares while the shares are held within the plan

At the AGM held in July 2010, the Company was authonsed by
shareholders to purchase its own shares, within certain firuts and
as permitted by the Articles of Associabion The Company made
no purchases of its own shares during the year and no shares
were acquired by forfeiture or surrender or made subjecttoa
hen or charge

All of the Company’s employee share pians contain provisions relating
to a change of control On a change of control, options and awards
granted to employees under the Company's share plans may vest and
become exercisable, subject to the satisfaction of any applicable
performance conditions at that time

The Company 1s not party to any significant agreements that would
take etfect, alter or terminate upon a change of control following a
takeover tud

Ordinary shares

Details of the changes to the ordinary issued share capital during
the year are shown on page 80 At the date of this report,
1,871,567,531 ordinary shares of 284/ pence have been 1ssued,
are fully paid up and are listed onthe London Stock Exchange

Major interests in shares

As at 10 May 2011, the Company had been notified by the following
investors of their interests in 3 per cent or more of the Company's
shares These interests were notified to the Company pursuant to
Disclosure and Transparency Rute 5

9% ¢f vouing rights

Judith Portrait (a trustee of various settlements,

including charitable {rusts) 409
Legal and General Group plc 399
Lord Sainsbury of Turwille 499
Qatar Holdings LLC 2599




Directors’report continued

Directors’ Interests

The beneficial mterests of the Directors and thesr families in the
shares of the Company are shown in the Remuneration Report on
page 47 The Company's Register of Directors’ Interests contains
full detas of Directors’ interests, shareholdings and options over
ordinary shares of the Company

Puring the year, no Director had any material interest in any contract
of sigruficance to the Group's business

Directors’ indemnities

The Directors are entitled to be indemnifted by the Company to the
extent permitted by law and the Company’s Articles of Association
in respect of all losses arising out of or in connection with the
execution of their powers, duties and responsibiities The Company
has executed deeds of indemnity for the benefit of each Director n
respect of labibties which may attach to themn their capacity as
Directors of the Company The Company purchased and maintained
Directors’ and Officers’ iabihty insurance throughout 2010/11, which
has been renawed for 2011/12 Nesther the indemmities nor the
insurance provide cover in the event that the Director s proved to
have acted fraudulently

Market value of properties

The Directors believe that the aggregate open market value of
Group properties exceeds the net book value as set out in note 1
on page 68 to the frnancial statements

Essential contracts

Sainsbury's has contractual and other arrangements with numerous
third parties in support of its business activities None of the
arrangements s individually considered to be essential to the
business of Sainsbury's

Policy on payment of creditors

The policy of the Company and its principal operating companies
15 to agree terms of payment prior to commencing trade with a
supphier and to abnde by those terms on the timely submission of
satisfactory invoices The Company is a holding company and
therefore has no trade creditors Statements on the operating
compames’ payment of supphers are contained in their financial
statements

Corporate responsibility

Sainsbury’s has a strong record inits commitrnent to corporate
responsibility, which s an everyday part of how the Company does
business Sainsbury’s company values underpinits goal to provide
healthy, safe, fresh and tasty food at fair prices Details of the
Company's princtpal corporate responsibiity initiatives and
actities are set out on pages 14 to 17 This year, we have further
integrated the reporting of corporate responsibility into this Annual
Report and Financial Statements to Mustrate how our values
underpin and influence our broader business strategy

The Company's Corporate Responsibility Report will be 1ssued
alongside our annual report In June 2011 This report will be available
onhne (www j-sainsbury co uk/crreport2011), and provides a
comprehensive statement on corporate responsibility and describes
the Company's policies and progress made in relation to our five
corporate responsibility principles *Best for food and health’,
‘Sourcing withintegrity’, Respect for our environment’, ‘"Making a
positive difference to our community' and A great place to work’

As part of ‘A great place to work’ the Company has weli-developed
policies tor fair and equal treatment of all colleagues, employment of
disadvantaged persons and colleague participation 1t 1s our policy
that people with disabilities are given full and just consideration for all
vacancies and over the year we have conducted a number of traiming
sesstons to raise awareness and understanding of our customers and
colleagues with disabilities and how we can better support them
Under the banner of ‘You Can, the Company also actively works with
a number of organisations which seek to promote employment for
disadvantaged persens and incluston within the workplace These

include Local Employment Partnerships, The Employers' Forum on
Disabthty (Gold member), the Shaw Trust, Remploy and Mencap

The Company's quarterly, intecim and annual results are presented
to all semor management and communicated to all colleagues
Colleagues have always been encouraged to held shares inthe
Company

Donatlons

Sainsbury s1s committed to making a positive difference to the
communibies i which it operate We support many charitable
organisations and community projects through either donating
cash, making in-kind denations or through colleague volunteering

During the year, Sainsbury’s ¢olleagues, customers and suppliers
raised £22 9 milon (2010 £15 7 milhon) for chantes through events
supported by the Company, tncluding Comic Relief Cash and in-kind
donations totalled £2 1 millton (2010 £19 mullion}

The Company made no pohtical donations in 2011 {2010 Enil)

Post balance sheet events
There are no post balance sheet events

Financial risk management
The financial nsk management and policies of the Group are
disclosed in note 28 on pages 84 to 88 to the finanaial statements

Going concern

The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to
affect its future development, performance and position are set out
in the Business review on pages 1to 23 The financial position of the
Group, its cash flows and hguidity are mighlighted in the Financial
review on pages 18 to 23 The Group manages its financing by
diversifying funding sources, confrguring core borrowings with
long-term maturities and maintarming sufficient standby hquidity
Full details of the Group's financing arrangements can be found in
note 20 on pages 75 and 76 to the financial statements In addition,
notes 28 and 29 on pages B4 to 93 to the financial statements
include the Group's objechives, polictes and processes for managing
its capital, its financial sk management objectives, details of its
financial instruments and hedging activities, and its exposures to
credit nisk and liquidity nisk

The debt refinancing in March 2006 removed the Group's reliance on
unsecured credit markets for medium and long-term finance and the
Group's first sigrficant re financing exposure 15 not until 2015

As a consequence, the Directors believe that the Group i1s well placed
to manage its business nisks successfully despite the current
challenging economic cutlook The Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company has sufficient resources to continue In
aperation for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements
which are shown on pages 50 to 102

Disclosure of information to auditors

Each of the Directors has confirmed that, so far as he/she 15 aware,
theres no relevant audit information of which the auditors are
unaware Each Director has taken all steps that he/she ought to have
taken as a Director in order to make himself/herself aware of any
retevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are
aware of that information

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have expressed their willingness to be
reappointed as auditors of the Company Upon the recommendation
of the Audit Commuttee, resolutions to reappoint them as auditors
and to authonise the Directors to determine thew rerguneration will
be proposed at the AGM

By order of the Bodrd
Tim Fallowfield
Company Secretary
10 May 201

J Sainsbury pte Annyal Report and Financlal Statements 2011 29

SIURUIIACD



9IUBUIAA0D

Corporate governance statement

David Tyler
Chairman

Dear Shareholder,

Since the financial cnsis, there has been a great deal of focus on
ensuring effective corporate governance in the UK's largest
companies An extensive consultation process resultedn the
Financial Reporting Council issuing the new UK Corporate
Governance Code in May 2010 (the *2010 Code’), which updated
the existing code and which set out the standards of governance
for Iisted compantes that apply to financial years beginning on or
after 29 June 2010

Although the 2010 Cade 15 not applicable to Sansbury’s in the
2010/11 financial year, the Board believes that we are well placed to
comply with its key principles which emphasise the need for well
balanced, effective boards, strong oversight of risk management,
alignment of remuneration pohaies with shareholder interests and
sound shareholder relations The following pages explain how

we apply these principles in order to help to create long term,
sustainable growthin value for shareholders | ¢an alsc confirm
that we are adopting the 2010 Code's recommendation for annual
election of all directors at this year s AGM

One of the new governance principles requires an external review of
Board perfoermance to be conducted every three years The Board
agreed i the autumn that we should appoint independent
consultants to faciitate such an evaluation so that we could consider
the way in which we carry out our role and conduct ourselves, as
well as our structure and processes | am pleased to report that the
thorough exercise by Manchester Square Partners confirmed that
the Board is seen as being effective, with a number of specific
strengths Some of the conclusions were that

* The Board has mgh standards of ethics, organisation, information,
analysis and governance, with an open culture between Executives
and Non-Executives

¢ Decision-making processes are effective

* Theres a high degree of alignment among Directors on current
strategic priorities

# Our Committees are well run and effective
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The evaluation exercise also enabled us to confirm the pricrities on
which we will focus over coming years in order ta continue to dnive
shareholder value

The report commented that the different backgrounds and

styles of the Non-Executive Directors create a good balance of
complementary skills and approaches which enhance the breadth,
qualty and openness of Board debate There has been much recent
discussion about ensuring that there 1s appropriate diversity on
boards, and Sainsbury 5 has an excellent record of appointing
women at Board and senior execufive levels, and throughout the
business, based on ment Three of our Board Directors are women,
we have had between two and four women on our Operating Board
over the last six years, and women currently hold more than a third
of our 40 most senior executive positions Of all our 150,000
colleagues, 55 per cent are women Qur diversity 1s one of our
strengths and we will maintain our successful ment-based approach
into the future

'—DM/\AK’/E \

David Tyler
Chairman




Corporate governance statement continued

Compliance

The following sections explam how the Company applies the mamn
principles of Section 1 of the UK Combined Code on Corporate
Governance Code 2008 (the “Code™) The Board is commutted to
strong governance and, during the year, the Company has comphed
with all the provisions of the Code

The role of the Board

The Board 1s chared by David Tyler and, at the year-end, there
were four Executive Directors and seven Non-Executive Directors
John McAdam i1s the Semor Independent Director The Directors'
biographical details are set out on page 25

The Board's key focus in helping to create long-term sustamnable
value for shareholders is on strategic leadership, performance
management, tnvestor relations, nsk management and governance
and succession planning, each of which s described below We have
a scheduled forward programme of Board meetings to ensure that
the Board can allocate sufficient time to each of these key areas
This enables us to plan Board and Commuttee meetings
appropriately and use the time most effectively There 1s sufficient
flexibility in the programme to enable specific items to be added to
any particular agenda and this ensures that the Board can focus on
the key matters relating to the business at the appropniate time

We ensure that all Directors are aware of the key discussions and
decisions of each of the four principal Committees - the Chairman of
each Committee provides a detailed summary to all Directors at the
Board meeting following the relevant Committee meeting Minutes
of Board and Commttee meetings are circulated to Directors shortly
after those meetings take place The Board has a schedule of
formally reserved powers and receives a number of significant
presentations during the year on other key matters including
pensions, treasury, brand management, vatues and governance

During the year, we increased the number of informal meetings of
the Beard and these enable all the Directors to spend more time
together and to discuss speaific areas of the business with individual
Operating Board members

The Board continued to focus on strategic matters duning the year
We hold a two day Strategy Conference in the autumn, with the
Operating Board Directors in attendance for the first day This
enables the Board to conduct an in-depth review of the market and
key opportunities and threats, consider the draft budget and
corporate plan and agree the strategic goals for the short term and
longer term perspectives The Board receives a detailed half-year
update on progress against the agreed prionties and then, to
complete the cycle, agrees the objectives and principal areas of
focus for the next conference Specific projects are considered at
other meetings during the year as necessary

Performance management against delivery of the agreed key
targets s reviewed at every meeting with particular reference to
the detailed management accounts The Chief Executive, Group
Commercial Director and Chief Financial Otficer comment on the
market and current trading at each meeting

The Board reviews the Company's principal risks on an annual basis,
in addition to receiving regular updates on nsk management and
internal controls from the Chairman of the Audit Committee after
each committee meeting The Board also recewves an annual update
on all matters relating to safety, supported by regular quarterly
updates, together with updates on relevant controls and
governance Any specificissues on these and other matters which
might aftect the Company’s reputation are reported to the Board

as they occur

Turning te investor relations (“IR"), the Board receives an annual
independent survey at the Strategy Conference which reports on
the views of major shareholders and analysts, together with regular
updates throughout the year on the IR programme and feedback
from mayjor shareholders

Succession plans and management development are considered by
the Nom:nation Committee each year at the time of the Strategy
Conference with specific tollow up and updates thereafter as
necessary InJune 2010, we announced changes to the Board and
Operating Board which were the result of this detailed succession
planning process

These changes were supported by a number of other internal
promotions at seruor levels in the business, showing the strength
of the talent ptpeline in the Company and the effectiveness of the
long-term succession planning process

The Nomination Committee also reviews succession to the Board In
January 2011, we announced that Matt Brittin, Managing Director of
Google UK & Ireland, had been appointed a Non Executive Director,
to complement the skills and experience of the existing Beard

Division of responsibilities

There s a clear division of responsibifities between the Chairman
and the Chief Executive which s set out 1n writing and has been
approved by the Board The Chairman s responsible for leadership
of the Board, ensuring its effectiveness and setting its agenda to
enable the Board to fullil all aspects of its role As set out above, we
ensure that the Board has sufficient time to allocate toits key areas
of focus throughout the annual cycle of Board meetings The
Chairman ensures effective communication with shareholders and
that the Board i1s aware of the views of major shareholders He
facilitates the contnbution of the Non-Executive Directors through
a culture of openness and debate, and ensures constructive
relations between the Executive and Non-Executive Directors

The Chief Executive is responsible for the day-to-day management
of the Company and executing the strategy, once agreed by the
Board He creates a framework of strategy, valugs, orgamsation and
objectives to ensure the successful delivery of results, and allocates
decision making and responsibilities accordingly He takes a leading
role, with the Chairman, in the relationship with all external agencies
and in promobing Sainsbury's

Independence

The Non-Executive Directors bring wide and varied commercial
expernence to Board and Committee deliberations On appointment
they confirm that they will have sulficient time available to be able
to discharge their responsitilities effectively They are appointed for
aninibal three-year term, subject to election by shareholders at the
first AGM after their appointment, after which thewr appointment
may be extended for a second term, subject to mutual agreement
All members of the Board (other than Darren Shapland) will retire by
rotation and seek re-election by shareholders at this year s AGM In
accordance with the 2010 Code

The Chairman satistied the independence criteria of the Code on
hus appointment to the Board in October 2009 and all the Non-
Executive Directors are considered to be independent according

to the provisions of the Code The Board s satisfied that the
independence of the Directors who have executive or non-executive
roles with other companes s not compromised and that they all
have sufficient time available to devote to the Company
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Corporate governance statement continued

The 2006 Companies Act provides that directors must avoid a
situation where they have, or can have, a direct or indirect interest
that conilicts, or possibly may conilict, with a company’s interests
Directors of public compames may authonse conflicts and potential
conflicts, where appropnate, if a company s articles of association
permit Shareholders approved the appropriate amendments to the
Company's Articles at the 2008 AGM The Board has established
procedures for the disclosure by Birectors of any such conflicts,
and als¢ for the cansideration and authonisation of these conflicts
by the Board In accordance with the Act, the Board considered and
authorised each Director's reperted potential conflicts of interest
during the year Whenever a Director takes on additional external
responsibihties, the Board considers any potential confhcts that may
arise and whether the Director continues to have suificient time to
fulid his or her role as a Director of the Company The Board will
continue to monitor and review potential conflicts of interest on a
regular basis

Information and development

The Charrman s responsible for ensuring that all Directors are
properly brieted onssues ansing at Board meetings and that they
have full and timely access to relevant information The quality and
supply of informatron provided to the Board 15 reviewed as part of
the Board evaluation exercise

We have a programme for meeting Directors’ traiming and
development requirements Newly appointed Directors who do

not have previous public company experience at Board level are
provided with detailed training on thear role and respensibilities All
new Directors partictpate in a comprehensive and tailored induction
programme including store and depot visits and meetings with other
members of the Board, members of the Operating Board, senior
management and external adwisors The induction programme
includes a full review of corporate responsibilty Subsequent
traiming 1s available on an ongoing basis to meet any parbicular
needs During the year the Company Secretary, Trm Fallowfield, has
provided updates to the Board on relevant governance matters, new
legistation and on Directors’ duties and obhgations, whilst the Audit
Commuttee regularly considers new accounting developments
through presentations tfrom management and the external auditors
The consultants to the Remuneration Committee advise the
Committee on relevant governance and trends in remuneration The
Board programme includes both presentations from management
and informal meetings whech increase the Non Executive Directors’
understanding of the business and the sector During the year the
Board held a Board meeting at a suppher’s site and recewved
presentatrons from members of the supplier's management team,
as well as from colleagues from withun the Satnsbury’s Trading
Diision Directors have wisited stores and other sites as part of
their continuing engagement with the business

All Birectors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary He has responsitility for ensuring that Board procedures
are followed and for governance matters The appointment and
removal of the Company Secretary s one of the matters reserved
for the Board There 15 an agreed procedure by which members of
the Board may take independent professional advice at the
Company's expense in the furtherance of their duties

Board evaluation

The Board agreed that this year's evaluation exercise should be
facilitated by Manchester Square Partners who have noother
relationshup with Sainsbury’s The key objectives agreed with the
Chairman were to ask the Board to assess itself by definingits

own abjectives and analyse how it was performing agamst these
objectives over a number of dmensions The review was conducted
through a discussion framework circulated in advance to Directors,
followed by one-to one in depth interviews with all Directors and
the Company Secretary and a review of relevant papers The
performance of the Board Committees was also reviewed, and
Birectors provided feedback on each others’ contributions
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Manchester Square Partners presented their detalled report to
the Board and it was discussed at a meeting held for that specific
purpose It identified the ways in which the Board was working
well and the areas for further consideration As described in the
Charrman's statement above, the report concluded that the Board
was working effectively across many dimenstons The Board
identified actions to develop some aspects of Board succession
and management transition, and to strengthen further the focus
on strategic imtiatives

The Semor Independent Director reviewed the Chairman's
performance with the other Directors and subsequently met him to
provide feedback The Chairman provided feedback to each Director
on thewr individual contrnibution to the Board and considered their
development priorities with each of them

Attendance

The table shows the attendance of Directors at scheduled Board and
Commuttee meetings The Board scheduled eight meetings during
the year, including the two-day Strategy Conterence, and additional
ad hoc conference calls were also convened to deal with specific
matters which required attention between scheduled meetings

Audit CR Nomination Remuneration

Board Commttee Committee Committee Commitlee

Matt Brittin j1¢)} 1(n - - -
Mike Coupe 8(8) - - - -
Anna Ford B8(8B) - 2(2) 33 5(5}
Val Gooding 8(8) - - k1K) 5(5}
Mary Harrnis 8(8) 4(4) 2(2) CIK)] -
Gary Hughes 8(8) A(4) - 3D -
Justin King B(8) - 2(2) - -
John McAdam 8(8) 4(4) - A3 -
John Rogers 5(5) - - - -
Darren Shapland B(®) - - - -
Bob Stack 8(8) - - 3(3) 5(5)
Dawid Tyler 8(8) - - (3 -

The maxrmum number of meetings hetd durng the year that each Director could
attend s shown in brackets

As referred to above there was an increased number of informat
meetings during the year and Directors have met indvidual members
of the Operating Board to receive updates on their specific areas of
responsibiity In addibion, the Chairman and Non Executive Directors
met without the Executive Directors being present, and the Non-
Execufive Drrectors also met without the Executive Directors or the
Chairman being present

Investor relations

The Company 1s committed to maintaining good communications
withinvestors Normal shareholder contact 15 the responstbility

of Justin King, John Rogers and Enca Judge, Head of Investor
Relattons The Chairman 1s generally available to shareholders and
meets with institutional and other large investors as required

The Company regularly meets with its large investors and
institutional shareholders who, along with sell-side research
analysts, are invited to presentations by the Company immed ately
after the announcement of the Company’s interim and full year
results They are also mvited to participate in conference calls
following the announcement of the Company's trading statements
The content of these presentations and conference calls are
webcast and are posted on the Company's website (www j-sainsbury
co uk/investors) so as to be available to all investors

The Board reqularly recewves feedback on the views of major
investors and the IR programme |n addition, Makinson Cowell
provide investor relabions consultancy services to the Company and
give an external analysis to the Board on the views of institutional
nvestors and sell-side analysts Non-Executive Directors also
recewve regular market reports and broker updates from the
Company s IR department




Corporate governance statement continued

Shareholders have the opportunity to meet and question the Board
at the AGM, which this year will be held on 13 July 201 There will
be a display of vanious aspects of the Company's activities and
Justin King will make a business presentation A detailed
explanation of each itern of special business to be considered at

the AGM is included with the Notice of Meeting which will be sent

to shareholders at feast 20 working days before the meeting All
resolutions proposed at the AGM will be taken on a poll vote This
follows best practice guidelines and enables the Company to count
all votes, not just those of shareholders who attend the meeting

Information on matters of particular interest to investors 1s set out on pages
104 to 106 and on the Company's website (www j sainsbury co uk/investors)

Board Committees

The Board delegates certain responsibilities to its principal
commuttees The Audit Committee ensures the integrity of financial
information, the eftectiveness of the financial controls and the
internal control and risk management systems The Remuneration
Committee sets the remuneration policy for Executive Directors and
determines their individual remuneration arrangements The
Nomination Committee recommends the appointment of Directors
and conducts a review of succession planning at Board and Operating
Board levels The Corporate Responsibility ("CR"} Committee reviews
key CR policies, taking into account the Company's CR objectives and
the overall strategic plan Further details are set out below

Operating Board

Day-to-day management of the Group s delegated to the Operating
Board, which1s chaired by Justin King The Operating Board held
ten scheduled meetings duning the year and each Director's
responsibthties are set out on pages 25 and 27 It has formal terms
of reference setting out its key responsibilities Minutes are coped
to the Chawrman and Non-Executive Directors

The Operating Board has delegated certain powers to the Trading
Board, the Retall & Logistics Board, the investment Board, the Group
Satety Commuttee and the Corporate Responsibility Steering Group,
each of which has approved terms of reference setting out therr
areas of responsibility

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Commuittee 1s chaired by David Tyler and comprises
each of the Non-Executive Directors Justin King 1 not a member of
the Comrmittee although he 15 invited to attend meetings

During the year the Commuttee was fully engaged in the succession
planming which resulted i the Board changes announced in June
2010 whereby Darren Shapland became Group Development
Director, Mike Coupe took on additional responsibilities and became
Group Commercial hirector and John Rogers was appointed to the
Board as Chief Financial Gfficer

In addition, the Committee reviewed the structure of the Board
dunng the year and recommended that a further Non-Executive
Director be appainted Search consultants, Egon Zehnder, were
instructed in connection with this process The skills, knowledge,
background and experience required for the role were considered,
and a job specification was prepared The Committee specified the
time commitment expected of the role Following an extensive
search, the Committee recommended to the Board that Matt Brittin
be appointed He was appointed to the Board on 27 January 201

The Committee’s terms of reference are available on the website
(www J-samsbury co uk/governance) and set out the Committee s
responsibiities The Committee conducts a review of management
development and succession planning at the time of the Strategy
Conference and meets on such further occcasions as are necessary
and in 2010/1 held three meetings in total

Remuneration Committee

The Commuttee 1s chaired by Bob Stack, with Anna Ford and Val
Gooding asits other members The Remuneration Report 15 set out
on pages 38 to 47

Corporate Responsibllity Committee

The Committee 15 chaired by Anna Ford, and Justin King and Mary
Harns are its members Dawvid Tyler attends each meeting It met
twice dunng the year These formal meetings are supported by CR
strategic meehings hosted by Anna Ford and Justin King Each
meeting 1s based around one of the five CR principles and key
external stakeholders are invited to attend During the year five
such meetings were held, relating to each of the five prninciples

The Commuittee 1s supported by an internal corporate responsibility
governance structure whereby members of the Operating Board
have responsibility for each of our five values and sit on our
Corporate Responsibihty Steening Group, which meets quarterly
and is chaired by Justin King Other members of the Steering Group
are shown on page 15

A summary of the Company s corporate responsibiity prionities and

activities 1s set out on pages 14 to 17 This year's Corporate
Responsibiity Report will be published in June 201
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Corporate governance statement continued

Audit Committee

The Commuttee 1s chared by Gary Hughes with John McAdam,

Mary Harris and Matt Brittin as its other members, all of whom are
ndependent Non-Executive Directors Matt Bnittin was appointed on
27 January 2011 The Board has determined that Gary Hughes has
recent and relevant financial experience The Chairman, Justin King,
John Rogers, Susannah Hall {Director of Internal Audit), other semor
members of the Finance Division and the external auditors are
invited to attend Commuttee meetings Tim Fallowfield is secretary
to the Commuttee

The Committee’s terms of reference, which are available on our
website (www j-sainsbury co uk/governance), set out the
Commuttee’s responsibilities

During the year the Committee met on four occasions, the agendas
being organised around the Company's reporting cycle The
Commuttee regularly meets with the external auditors without
management being present tt momitored the integrity of the
financal statements and any formal announcements relating to
the Company's financial performance and reviewed any significant
financial judgements contained in them

As descnbed in detail below the Commuttee has also reviewed

+ the effectiveness of the Company's financial controls and the
systems of internal control by approving the Internal Audit plans
twice yearly and reviewing the findings quarteriy, and by reviewing
the scope of work and reports of the external auditors The detailed
actions for resolution of any identified weaknesses are ciosely
monitored through to completion, and

the management of nsk by reviewing the risk assessment process
and corporate and divisional risk registers twice yearly The risk
registers guthne the key risks faced by the busmess including
theirr impact and hkelihood along with the relevant mitigating
controls and actians, and they form the basis of the Internal
Audit planning process

The Committee also regularly reviews the Company's funding and
ligquidity position and has considered its wmpact on the Company s
financial and operational capabilities The Committee’s detailed
review of the year-end position assisted the Board in making the
gotng concern statement set out on page 29

The Comnuttee reviewed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP s (“PwC"™)
overall work plan and approved theirr remuneration and terms of
engagement and considered in detail the results of the audit, Pw('s
perfermance and independence and the effectiveness of the overall
audit process PwC have been the Company s auditors since 1995
PwC are required to rotate the audit partner responsible for the
Group and subsidhary audits every five years Richard Hughes, the
current audit partner, was appointed in 2010 and he has undertaken
a programme of induction meetings during the year The Committee
recommended PwC's re appointment as auditors to the Board and
this resolution will be put to shareholders at the AGM

The Committee has implemented the Company's pelicy which
restncts the engagement of PwC in relation to non-audit services
The majority of the non-audit work undertaken by PwC during
2010/ related to indirect tax, sustainability and pensions
accounting advice The non-aucht fees for the year were £0 2 million,
and the audit fee for the year in respect of the Group, Company and
its subsidhartes (including the fee for the interim review) totalled

£0 8 million
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The policy was reviewed during the year and 1s consistent with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards No 5 - Non Audit
Services The policy s designed to ensure that the prowision of
such services does not have animpact on the external auditors
independence and objectivity It identifies certamn types of
engagement that the externat auditors shall not undertake,
ncluding mternal audit and actuarial services relating to the
preparation of accounting estimates for the financial statements
It also requires that indnvidual engagements above a certain fee
level may only be undertaken with appropnate authonty from the
Commuttee Chairman or the Committee The policy also recogmises
that there are some types of work, such as accounting and tax
advice, where a detailed understanding of the Company's business
1s advantageous The policy 1s designed to ensure that PwC s only
appointed to provide a non-audit service where it 1s considered

to be the most suitable suppher of the service The Committee
receves areport at each meeting on the non-audit services being
provided and the cumutative total of non audit fees Inthe event
that cumulative non-audit tees exceed the audit fee then all
subsequent non-audit expenditure must be approved by the
Committee Chairman

The Commuttee has regularly reviewed the Internal Audit
department’s resources, budget, work programme, results and
management’s implementation of its recommendations Susannah
Hall, who was appointed to the role of Director of Internal Audtt
during the year, has direct access to all members of the Committee
including the Chairman and the Committee Chairman She has
regular meetings with all Committee members

The Company's 'whistleblowing’ procedures ensure that
arrangements are in place to enable colleagues and suppliers to
raise concerns about possible improprieties on a confidential basis
All issues raised have been inveshigated and appropnate actions
taken Anysignificant 1ssues have been highlighted to the Audit
Committee

The Company has a fraud policy and a Serious Fraud Comrmttee,
which convenes in the event of serious tncidents to oversee case
management and ensure appropriate actions are taken The Audit
Committee receives an update at each meeting on all matenal
frauds

The Committee receives an update at each meeting about matters
discussed at the Sainsbury's Bank Audit Commuttee and on any other
key matters Given the economic chmate it has continued to focus
on the Bank's liquidity and cash flows, capital adequacy and risk
management processes

Grocery Supply Code of Practice

In February 2010 a new Grocery Supply Code of Practice (“GSCOP")
was implemented following the recommendation of the Competition
Commussion Each grocery retailer to which it applies had to appoint
a Code Compliance Officer whose duties include hearing disputes
between suppliers and the relevant retailer Sainsbury s has appointed
the Director of Internal Audht as its Code Compliance Officer

GSCOP requires that each grocery retaiter to which it apphes must
delwer an annual comphance report to the Office of Fair Tradmng
which has been approved by the chaw of the audit committee
Furthermore, a summary of that comphance report must be
included in our Annual Report and Financoial Statement
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Summary Annual Compliance Report

Samnsbury’s has nvested significant ti'me and resource i providing
comprehensive training to all relevant colleagues as required under
GSCOP This traming 1s reinforced by online knowledge testing and
turther supported by training and reference materials on our
intranet Sainsbury’s has also dedicated internal legal resource to
provide all relevant colleagues with day-to-day advice and guidance

A very smalt number of alleged breaches of GSCOP has been
recewved in the reporting penod, all of which have been resolved to
the supplier s satisfaction within the Trading Dwiston using our
standard internal escalation procedure None of the alleged breaches
has required any involvement by the Code Compliance Cfficer

Risk management and Internal controls

The Board has overall responsibibty for risk management and the
system of internal controls and for reviewing their effectiveness
Certain of these responsiilities have been delegated to the Audit
Committee as outhned on page 34 The system s designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of fatlure to achieve the
Company’s business objectives and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance agamnst matenal misstatement or loss

The nsk management process and the system of internal controls
have been in place for the whole year, up to the date of approval of
the Annual Report and Financial Statements, and accord with the
Turnbull guidance and the UK Corporate Governance Code

The Audit Commuttee has reviewed the effectiveness of the system
of internal controls and has ensured that any required remedial
action on any identified weaknesses has been, or is being taken

Risk management

Accepting that risk 1s an inherent part of doing business, the risk
management system s designed to identify key nisks and to provide
assurance that these risks are fully understood and managed The
effectiveness of the process is reviewed twice a year by the Audit
Commttee The Board carries out an annual review of the
significant risks facing the business

The Operating Board mamntains an overall corporate nisk register
which 1s reviewed twice yearly by the Audit Committee and formally
discussed with the Board The risk reqister contains the significant
risks faced by the business and identifies the potential impact and
likelihood at both a gross fevei (before consideration of mitigating
controls) and net level (after consideration of mitigating controls)
Where further actions have been identified to mitigate nisks to a
level deemed acceptable, these are agreed with specific timelines
for dehvery and are momitored closely untt fully implemented

The nisk management process is cascaded from the Operating Board
through to each of the cperating divisions of the business as follows

* the divisional operating management teams are respansible
for managing the risks to their business objectives and for
identification and implementation of internal controls so as to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the risksin
their areas of responsibiity are appropnately identified, evaluated
and managed,

¢ this divisional risk process 1s achieved through twice yearly
workshops held by the divisional management and facilitated by
Internal Audit Each divistonal management team produces and
marntains a divistonal! key risk register The hkelhood and impact
of each key risk 1s evaluated and actions deemed necessary
to mibgate them are identified In addition, the risks and the
robustness of the mitigating cantrols are regularly reviewed by
divistonal management as part of their normal business activities,

« management cerbify annually that they are responsible for
managing their business objectives and that the internal controls
are such that they provide responsible but not absolute assurance
that the nisks in thewr areas of responsibility are appropriately
identified, evaluated and managed,

* the Operating Board reviews and challenges the output of the
divisional risk process and then updates the overall corporate risk
reqister as appropriate,

» the corporate and divisional nsk registers form the basis of the risk
based plan of Internal Audit for the subsequent half-year period, and

¢ Internal Audit provides independent assurance to management and
the Audit Commuttee as to the existence and effectiveness of the
risk management process

Internal controls

The system of internal control encompasses all controls including
those relating to financial reporting processes (including the
preparation of consolidated accounts), operational and compliance
controls, and those relating to risk management processes It also
in¢ludes the controls over Sainsbury s interests in Sainsbury's Bank
and property joint ventures

IIUBUIGAOY)

The Audtht Committee assesses the effectiveness of the internal
controls systems on an ongoing basis, enabling a cumulative
assessment to be made The processes used duning the year to
support this assessment are as follows

* discussion and approval by the Board of the Company's strategy,
plans and chjectives, and the risks to achieving them,

* review and approval by the Board of budgets and forecasts,
including those for both revenue and capital expenditure,

* regular reviews by management of the nisks to achieving objectives
and mitigating controls and actions,

* regular reviews by management and the Audit Committee of the
scope and results of the work of Internal Audit across the Company
and of the implementation of their recommendations,

+ regular reviews by the Audit Committee of the scope and results
of the work of the external auditors and of any sigmificant 1ssues
ansing,

* regular reviews by the Audit Commuttee of accounting polictes and !
levets of delegated authonty, and

* ragular reviews by the Board and the Audit Committee of matenal
fraudulent activty and any significant whistleblowing by colleagues
or supphers, and actions being taken to remedy any control
weaknesses
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The nsk management process is closely ahgned to accelerating

our growth plan which focuses on growing the business through

the addition of new range, space, channels to market and property
management Riskis aninherent part of doing business The system
of risk management used to identify the principal risks the Group
faces and to develop and closely monitor key controls, 1s described
on page 35 The management of the rnisks 1s based on a balance of
risk and reward determined through careful assessment of both

the potential likelihood and impact Consideration s given to both
reputatronal as well as financial impact, recognising the sigmificant
commercial value attnibutable to the Samnsbury's brand The principal
risks identified by the Board and the corresponding mitigating
cantrols are set out below i no order of prionity

o Business continuity and acts of terrorism

Risk
A major incident or act of terronsm could impact on the Group's
ability to trade

Mitigation

Samnsbury's has detalled plans in place, supported by senmor
representatives who are tramed in dealing with major incidents and
have the authority levels to make decisions, in the event of a
potentially disruptive tncident

The Business Continuity Steening Group meets quarterly to ensure
that the business continuity ("BC") policy and strategy s fit for purpose
In addition, it oversees the mitigation of all risks associated with BC
and IT disaster recovery In the event of any unplanned or unfareseen
events the Business Continuity Management Team 1s convened at
short notice to manage any associated nisk to the business

All key strateqic locations have secondary backup sites which would be
made available within pre-defined timescales and are regularly tested

o Business strategy

Risk

If the Board adopts the wrong business strategy or does not
implement its strategies effectively, the business may be negatively
impacted Risks to delivering the strategy need to be properly
understood and managed to deliver long term growth for the
benefit of all stakeholders

Mitigation

A clear strategy remains in place with five key areas of focus

« Great food at farr prices,

* Accelerating the growth of complementary non-food and services,
* Reaching more customers through additional channels,

* Growing supermarket space, and

* Active property management

Progress against these areas of focus and any nisks to delivery,
such as the availability of suitable new store sites, are reqularly
reviewed by the Board and the overall strategy 1s reviewed at the
two-day Strategy Conference The Operating Board also holds
regular sessions to discuss strategy This activity 1s supported by a
dedicated Strategy team To ensure the strategy 1s communicated
and understood, the Group engages with a wide range of

stakeholders including shareholders, colleagues, customers and
suppliers on a continual basis
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0 Colleague engagement, retention and capability

Risk

The Group employs around 150,000 colleagues who are critical

to the success of our business Attracting and mantaining good
relations with talented colleagues and investing in their training and
development 1s essenhial to the efficiency and sustainabihty of the
Group's operations

Mitigation

The Group’s employment pohicies and remuneration and benefits
packages are regularly reviewed and are destgned to be competitive
with other companies, as well as providing colleagues with fulfilling
career opportunities Colleague surveys, performance reviews,
commurucations with trade urigns and regular communication

of business activities are some of the methods the Group uses to
understand and respond to colieagues’ needs, whilst processes

are alson place to identify talent and actively manage succession
planning throughout the business

o Environment and sustainability

Risk

Environment and sustamability are core to Sainsbury’s values

The key risk facing the Group in this area relates to reducing the
environmental impact of the business with a focus on reducing
packaging and new ways of reducing waste and energy usage across
stores, depots and offices

Mitigation

A number of initratives are m place, which are being led by the
Environmental Action Team and the Corporate Responsibility
Steering Group to reduce our environmental impact and to meet our
customers’ reqguirements in this area Further details are included in
the Corporate responsibility review on pages 14 to17

G Financial strategy and treasury risk

Risk

The matn financial risks are the availlabihty of short and long-term
funding to meet business needs, counterparty labthibies and
fluctuations in interest and foreign currency rates which continue
to be impacted by the turbulence in the financial markets

Mitigation

The central Group Treasury tunction is responsible for managing the
Group's hquid resources, funding requirements, and interest rate
and currency exposures and the associated risks as set out in note
28 on pages 84 to 88 The Group Treasury function has clear
polictes and operating procedures which are regularly reviewed

and audited

o Fraud

Risk
As with any business, there 1s always a risk of fraudulent activity

Mitigation

The Group has a strong control framework in respect of potential

fraud or other dishenest behaviour, which 1s regularly reviewed by I
tnternal Audit A set of policies are in place to provide colleagues

with clear guidance on behaviour In addition, there are ‘
‘whistleblowing’ procedures in place to enable colleagues and |
suppliers to raise concerns about possible improprieties on a ‘
confidential basis Internal Audit undertakes detailed investigations

and highhights its findings to the Audit Comnuttee
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© Healthandsafety

Risk

Prevention of injury or loss of hfe for both colleagues and customers
15 of utmostimportance In addition, it 1s paramount to mamtaining
the confidence our customers have in our business

Mitigation

Clear policies and procedures are in place detathng the controls
reguired to mitigate health and safety risks across the business
These capture the end-to-end operation, from the auditing and
vetting of construction contractors, to the health and safety
processes in place in our depots, stores and offices Compliance
to these processes 1s closely momitored and reported

Process compliance 1s supported by external accreditation and
internal tramning programmes, which are aligned to both health and
safety laws and Sainsbury's internal policies In addition, resource I1s
dedicated to manage the risk effectively, in the form of the Group
Safety Committee and specialist teams including Convenience Risk
Managers and Logistics and Commercial Safety Specialists

° IT systems and infrastructure

Risk

The Group s rehiant on its IT systems and operational infrastructure
in order to trade efficiently A failure in these systems could have a
significant impact on our business

Mitigation

The Group has extensive controls in place to maintain the integnty
and efficiency of its systems including detailed recovery plans in
the event of a significant fallure New innovations and upgrades to
systems are ongoing to improve both the customer experience and
colleague efficiency Prior to introducing system changes nigorous
testing 1s completed

o Pensionrisk

Risk

The Group operates a number of pension arrangements which
includes a defined benefit scheme This scheme 1s subject to nsks
inrelation toits habihities as a result of changes in life expectancy
inflation and future salary increases, and to risks regarding the
value of investments and the returns derived from such
investments

Mitigation

Aninvestment strategy is in place which has been developed by the
pension trustee, in consultation with the Company, to mitigate the
volatiity of hatnlities, to diversify investment risk and to manage cash

@ rrocuctquatity

Risk

The quality and safety of our products is of the hughest importance
and any failure in standards would sigrificantly affect the confidence
of our custorners

Mitigation

There are stringent controls in place to ensure product safety and
integrity Foed hygiene practices are taken very seniously and are
monitored regularly to ensure compliance with standards All
aspects of product safety are governed through the Group Safety
Comrmuttee All suppliers are expected to conform to the Group's
code of conduct for Socially Responstble Sourcing which launched in
1998 and covers fair terms of trading, protection of ¢hildren, worker
health and safety, equal opportumbies, freedom of association,
freedom of employment, hours of work and wages

0 Regulatory environment

Risk

The Group's operations are subject to a broad spectrum of
requlatory requirements Key areas subject to regulation include
planming, compehititon and environmental issues, employment,
penstons and tax laws and regulations over the Group's products
and services

Two key pleces of new legislation are the Grocery Supply Code of
Practice (GSCOP), which came into effect tn 2010/1, and the Bribery
Act 2010, which 1s expected to come into force in the second half

of 201

Fatlure to comply with laws and regulations could lead to civil and/or
criminal legal prosecution and fines or impnisonment imposed on
Sainsbury's or our colleagues In addition, a breach could lead to
reputational damage

Mitigation

There 15 an established governance process in place to monitor
regulatory developments and to ensure that all existing and
forthcoming regulations are complied with Regular reviews are
completed across the estate to ensure comphance and that training
needs are addressed as required

Sainsbury’s has invested significant bme and resource in providing
comprehensive training to the relevant members of the Buying
Team in the requirements of GSCOP This training 1s reinforced by
online post training testing and supported by training and reference
matenals on our intranet Sainsbury's also has a dedicated internal
legal resource to provide its Buying Team with advice and gusdance

° Trading Environment

Risk
The continued economic downturn could affect the performance of
the Group in terms of sales, costs and operations, through

* the ongoing challenges to household disposable income,
* competitor pricing positions, and

* commodity costs driving up the cost of goods

In addition, the downturn may also affect the risk of supplier or
other counterparty failure, with possible operational or financial
consequences for the Group

Mitigation

We continue to focus on delivering quality products with ‘uruversal
appeal’, at a range of price points ensuring value for all our
customers Thisis achieved through the continuous review of our
key customer metrics, active management of price positions,
development of sales propositions and increased promotion and
marketing activity While external cost pressures including ol related
costs, commodity pncing and business rates affect our business, the
Group conhinues to work hard te mitigate the impact of these cost
pressures on custorners and on our overall profitabihity through the
delivery of cost savings Sainsbury's undertakes credit checks on
suppliers and maintains regular, open dialogue with key supphers
concerning their ability to trade
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Remunerationreport

Bob Stack
Chairman,
Remuneration
Committee

Dear Shareholder,

Once agam, 1t has been a challenging but successful year for
Sansbury's Notwithstanding a tough consumer environment and a
highly competitive market place, the Company has defivered another
year of strong performance, increasing both its customer base and
market share Under the expenenced leadershup team, sustained
growth across a range of key financial indicators has been achieved
over time, as highltghted in the tables below

Building on this context, | would hke to share with you a summary of
Sainsbury's remuneration policy and practice over the last year

+ Below inflation salary increases were awarded to the Executive
Drectors at the start of the 2011/12 financial year, consistent with
the approach taken across the wider Company Justin King s salary
was last increased in March 2009, and it rose from £900,000 to
£920,000 (2 2 per cent) in March 2011
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* As covered in the Chairman's statement on page four, Darren
Shapland will be stepping down from the Board at the AGM on
13 July 201 and he will be appointed as Non-Executive Chairman of
Sainsbury's Bank, details of Darren's remuneration are provided on
page 45 John Rogers responsibilities will be expanding following
Darren s departure from the Board and his salary will increase in
July 201 as a consequence, as noted an page 40

Sainsbury's performed well during the year, particularly when
compared toits closest competitors The bonuses awarded to

the Executive Directors for 2010/11 averaged 48 per cent of the
maximum bonus opportunity, reflecting the highly stretching
performance targets that were set at the start of the financiat year

The Deferred Share Award demonstrates the hink between
Sansbury's strateqic goals and its incentive plan framework
Awards made under the second plan cycle, covening 2010/11,
recogntsed the progress that has been made on the annual targets
that are firmly focused on building teng-term, sustainable success
Most of the targets set were either achieved or exceeded, further
contributing to the creation of shareholder value, and awards will
be made at B3 per cent of the maximum available under the plan

The Committee gave consideration to the short-term incentive plan
awards that could be earned by the Executive Directors reporting to
Justin King It agreed that the maximum award that could be earned
by them for the annual bonus plan and the Deferred Share Award
would each nse by 10 per cent of salary to 90 per cent of salary

The award opportunity under each of these plans for Justin King
remains unchanged at 125 per cent of salary

The third cycle of the Value Builder Share Plan, which covers the
three financial years to 19 March 201, incentivises growth in return
on capital employed and cash flow per share Awards vested at 48
per cent of the maximum opportunity, one half of the shares to vest
become exercisable in May 2011, and the balance will be exercisable
in May 2012

The Executive Directors continue to marmtain a high level of
persenal share ownership in accordance with Sainsbury’s
shareholding guidehines, and this i1s detailed on page 43

Foltowing the Committee’s annual review of the Value Builder Share
Plan, the performance matrix has been refined for the 2011/12 grant
cycle The threshold targets have been increased on both the return
on capital employed and cash flow per share measures to maintain
a suitable degree of stretch Recogrising that Samnsbury's has

now progressed beyondits turnaround phase, the maximum cash
flow per share growth target has been reduced, whilst remaining
appropriately demanding As a consequence of these refthements,
the scale of awards within the vesting matrix has been readjusted,
proviching a mare even-handed performance and reward profile

Finally, annual share grants through the Value Buitder Share Plan will
be restricted to a smaller poputation of Sainsbury s top 200 leaders
from 2011/12 onwards, including the Executive Directors Thus focuses
the plan on the senior management who are best positioned to drive
the Company's long-term perfermance and grow shareholder value
An alternative reward framework has been designed for supermarket
store managers and managers of an equivalent grade, containing
measures and targets tailored to their roles

Sainsbury s continues to move through the next phase of its growth
strategy, the performance achieved in 2010/11 demonstrates its
abihty to make year-on-year tmprovements across all key areas

The outlock for 2011/12 remains challenging in terms of the
custemer environment, but our remuneration policy and framework
provide a platform to incentivise, mohivate, retain and reward our
expenenced leadership team

Bot Tt

Bob Stack
Chairman, Remuneration Committee




Remunerationreport continued

This report is made by the Board on the recommendation of

the Remuneration Committee The first part of the report sets
out the remuneration policy, while the second part details the
remuneration, pensions and share plan interests of the Directors
for the 52 weeks to 19 March 2011 The Directors confirm that this
report has been prepared In accordance with the Companies Act
2006 and reflects the provision of Schedule 8 of the Large &
Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts & Reports)
Regulations 2008

A resolution will be put to shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting ("AGM") on 13 July 2011 asking them to approve this report

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises Bob Stack {(Remuneration
Committee Chairman), Anna Ford and Val Gooding, all of whom are
independent Non-Executive Directors The Committee met five
times during the year

Tim Fallowheld, Company Secretary, acts as secretary to the
Committee Dawid Tyler, Justin King and Gwyn Burr are inwvited to
attend Committee meetings, in addition to the Director of Corporate
HR and the Head of Executive Reward The Committee constders
their views when reviewsng the remuneration of the Executive
Directors and Operating Board Directors individuais who attend
Remuneration Cammittee meetings do not participate in discussions
concerning thewr own remuneration

The responsibilities of the Committee include

¢ determining and agreeing with the Board the broad remuneration
pohcy for the Chairman, Executive Directors and the Operating
Board Directors,

¢ setting indwidual remuneration arrangements for the Chairman and
Executive Directors,

* recommending and monitoring the level and structure of
remuneration for those members of senior management within the
scope of the Commuttee, namely the Operating Board Directors and
any other executive whose satary exceeds that of any Operating
Board Director, and

* approving the service agreements of each Executive Director,
in¢luchng termination arrangements

The Committee's terms of reference are available on the Company’s
website (www -sainsbury co uk/governance)

The Committee 1s authorised by the Board to appaint external
advisers if 1t considers this beneficial Over the course of the year,
the Committee was supported by Its appointed advisers, Deloitte
LLP ("Deloitte”), whose consultants attended four Committee
meetings Deloitte provided the Company with unrelated advice and
consultancy regarding online strategy, internal audit training and
across a range of accountancy and tax areas Towers Watson
provided comparative data which was considered by the Committee
in setting remuneration levels and it also provided the Company with
pension scheme services in the year Total Shareholder Return
("TSR") calculations are supplied by UBS, who provided broking and
banking services o the Company during the year

Remuneratien Policy

The Commuttee considers that the Remuneration Policy should drive
performance and complement the overall strategy of the Company
It believes that the ongoing growth and success of the Company
during challenging market conditions 1s testament to this approach
It 1s commutted to ensuring that the management team 1s rewarded
for continuing to deliver the Company’'s growth plans and fong term
shareholder value The Company's current arrangements, therefore,
incorporate performance metncs which link to the business strategy
and specadically the five areas of focus (as described in the Business
review) which are directed towards generating good long term
growth

The Company’s Remuneration Policy is as follows:

It remains the Committee’s intention that Directors' remuneration
should be competitive, both in terms of base salary and total
remuneration This approach is designed to promote the
Company’s short and long-term successes through the securing
of high calibre executive talent This, In turn, is one of the key
ways in which shareholder value can be further ¢created and
strengthened

* Basic salanes should be market competitive, determined by
drawing on a range of factors The Committee considers the
individual's experlence, potential, performance, job size and
scope, along with data that takes into account the remuneration
of similar executive roles in similar companies The Committee
also has regard to the external business environment and the
general level of increases apphed across the Company

The design and scale of pension provision and other employment
benefits should be in line with wider market practice, placing a
particular emphasis on the retall sector

Incentive plans should be linked to stretching performance
measures and targets, covering a mix of financial and non-
tinancial measures The measures are revlewed and monitored
to ensure that they do not drive unacceptable behaviours or
encourage excessive risk-taking Incentive plan awards are not
pensionable

L3

A significant proportion of the total remuneration package is
performance-related, aligning management's and shareholders’
interests Exceptional levels of performance will be rewarded
with exceptional levels of total reward

The Committee expects the Executive Directors and Operating
Board Directors to acquire and maintain a shareholding in

the Company sufficient to align their interests with those of
shareholders

When reviewing or amending remuneration arrangements, the
Committee considers any Impact on the cost to the Company,
employee behaviour, stakeholders (including shareholders,
governance bodies and employees), share dilution, best practice
corporate governance and market competitiveness, particularly
within the retall sector

Components of remuneration

The main remuneration camponents for the Executive Directors and
Operating Board Directors comprise basic salary, ncentive plans,
pensions and benefits The balance between the fixed (basic salary
and penston) and vanable {annual bonus, Deferred Share Award and
Value Builder Share Plan) elements of remuneration changes with
performance, and the variable propertion of total remuneration
increases significantly for increased levels of performance

The Commuttee beheves that it 1simportant to align the interests of
both management and shareholders and therefore a significant
proportion of the Executive Directors’ remuneration s made in the
form of shares

During the year, the Commttee reviewed the short-term incentive
opportunity avarlable under the annual bonus plan and the Deferred
Share Award for the Executive Directors reporting to the Chief
Executive Takinginto account a number of factors, including the
strategic importance of the roles and the market competitive
position, the Committee agreed that for 2011/12 cnwards, the
maximum potential under each of these plans will nise from 80 to 90
per cent of salary The award opportumity under these plans for
Justin King witl remain unchanged at 125 per cent of salary For
awards to be granted under the Value Builder Share Ptan in 201112,
the Commuittee has determined that grant levels will remain
unchanged from last year

The following diagram shows the balance between the fixed and
variable remuneration components for 2011/12 The analysis
assumes that target performance »s achieved and it indicates that
around 60 per cent of the package i1s vanable
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Remunerationreport continued

The secttons below describe each component of the Executive
Directors’ remuneration package

i) Fixed remuneration

Basic salary

Basic salary for each Executive Director is determined by the
Commuttee, taking account of a number of elements, including the
Director's performance, experience, responsibilitries and job size and
scope, as well as external pay data Furthermore, the Committee
considers such information as economic factors, remuneration
trends and the general level of salary increases awarded throughout
the Company The Committee also uses this approach when
reviewing the salanies of the Operating Board Directors

The external pay data provided to the Committee 1s sourced from
relevant roles within the UK retail sector, in companies with annual
sales revenues over £5 billion and also tn companies with a market
capitalisation ranging from £3 to £10 bullion This approach ensures
that the most appropriate available benchmark for the Director’s
specific position 15 obtained, however, in hne with best practice, the
Committee applies jJudgement when considering market data

On 21 June 2010, the Company anngunced changes at Executive
Director and Operating Board Director level, which realigned
responsibibties across a number of areas In recogmtion of the
increased breadth to Mike Coupe’s role as Group Commer¢ial
Director, the Committee agreed that his annual basic salary would
nise from £510,000 to £560,000 on 19 July 2010 Darren Shapland
was appointed to the role of Group Development Director and his
salary remained unchanged at £560,000 John Rogers was
appomted as Chief Financial Cfficer ¢n an annual basic salary

of £425,000, with effect from 19 July 2010

The Commuttee reviewed the Executive Directors’ salaries for the
201/12 tinanoial year It agreed a set of salary increases that were
broadly in hne with the range of awards applied te management
and non-management central colleagues, and these took effect on
20 March 201

+ Justin King's annual basic salary, which has remained at £900,000
since March 2009, increased by 2 2 per cent to £920,000

* Mike Coupe and Darren Shapland were each awarded an increase
of £5,000 (0 9 per cent) taking thewr annua! basic salanes from
£560,000 to £565,000

= On appointment to the Board as Chief Financial Officer, John
Rogers’ salary was set at a conservative level against the market
The Committee considered that it was important to recognise the
progress that John s making since his appointment, and increased
his salary by £20,000 to £445,000 (4 7 per cent) Subsequently,
following Darren Shapland's decision to step down from the Board,
John will assume responsibility for the Company's property
division As a consequence of this expanston to his role, Jehn's
salary will increase to £500,000 in July 201
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Pensions

The Company’s Defined Benefit Pension Plan was closed to new
members on 31 January 2002 and none of the Executive Birectors
participate in 1t In heu of pension plan partictpation for 2010/11,
Justin King received a pension supplement of 30 per cent of salary
Darren Shapland and Mike Coupe each received pension
supplements of 25 per cent of salary

John Rogers participates in the JS Sell Invested Pension Plan,

a defined contnibution arrangement which 1s open to all senior
management In return for contnbuting five per cent of his salary,
the Company contributes 12 5 per cent of his salary up to an internal
earnings cap {(£123,600 for 2010/11) For 2010/11, he received a
pension supplement of 25 per cent of the pensionable salary he was
paid in excess of the earmings cap

Benefits
Benefits for Directors include the provision of company car benefits,
Iife assurance, colleague discount and private medical cover

i1} Varlable remuneration - current plans

Annual bonus plan

All bonus plans across the Company are aligned under a set of
common principles For 2010/14, Board and management plans
retained the same key metrics based on profit and sales growth,
product availability, plus an element for individual performance
Bonus awards are weighted to the achievement of profit, and ¢
continues to act as the overall "gateway™ measure for the plan
reflecting the emphasis on growing profit For Executive Directors,
at least half of the bonus i1s based on profit, and the remainder 1s
based on sales, product avallabulity and the achievement of
mdividual objectives

The profit, sales and availabihty targets were also shared across all
store colleague bonus plans Availability 1s measured across all
stores on a reqular basis by an independent third party, conducting
random and unannounced store visits Individual performance
objectives are set annually for each Executive Director and are
reviewed by the Committee These objectives cover a variety of
financial and operational targets that contnibute to the achievement
of longer-term strategsic goals, some of these objectives relate,
either directly or indirectiy, to the Company's corporate values

The maximum cash benus that could have been earned for 2010/11
was 125 per cent of salary inrespect of Justin King and 80 per cent
of salary in respect of the other Executive Directors

In determining bonus payments for 2010/11, the Committee took into
account performance agatnst each of the plan's measures in
addition to individual cbjectives The Company has continued to
out-perform in a tough consumer environment to dehver a strong
set of results During the year, sales and profit grew consistently and
avaiability in stores was improved However, the highly stretching
nature of the bonus targets has led tg lower overalt levels of
payments, compared to last year Awards ranging from 46 to 50 per
cent of the maximum opportunity will be paid to the Executive
Dwrectors in respect of 2010/

The 2010/11 bonus plan for store colleagues was based on the
achtevement of a corporate sales target as well as availabihty and
customer service targets measured in thetr individual stores No bonus
awards are paid unless a threshold levet of corporate profit 1s met
The Company s performance has enabled over 124,000 colleagues
to earn awards from a bonus pool totalling around £60 million

For 2011/12, the bonus measures will remain unchanged and the
targets will be set to incentivise stretching year-on-year growth




Remunerationreport continued

Deferred Share Award

The Deterred Share Award (“DSA") was introduced to replace the
Deferred Annual Bonus Plan at the start of 2009/10 Thus incentive
arrangement targets a diverse range of business-cntical financial
and non-financia! scorecard measures These are intended to reward
Drectars for driving the short-term objectives that will directly tead
to building the sustainable, long-term growth of the Company

The DSA covers broadly the top 40 managers in the Company,
including Executive Directors Share-based awards will be made
to participants subject to performance against a basket of key
strategic measures which will be aligned under four broad
categories

1 financiat performance,
2. returns to shareholders,
3 relatve performance against peers, and

4 strategic goals

At least 50 per cent of the award will be based on the delivery of
financial performance (e g profit, earmings per share and sales) and
returns to shareholders (e ¢ TSR} The balance will be based on
measures which will assess the Company's performance relative to
its competitors {e g market share) as well as key strategic/corporate
goals, hnked to the five areas of focus In addition, no shares will be
awarded unless the profit gateway target (as applied to the annua!
bonus plan) s achieved

Performance against the targets s measured over one financial
year, but any shares awarded will be deferred for a further two years
to ensure that management s interests continue to be aligned with
those of shareholders The shares are subject to forfeiture if the
parbicipant resigns or 1s disrmissed for cause prior to their release
date Dividends accrue on the shares that vest in the form of
additional shares

When developing the DSA, the Commuttee gave careful
consideration to the selection of its performance measures and
targets, as well as to the robustness of the plan design Inreviewing
the plan for 2010/11, the Committee agreed that as the Company's
values underpin its goals, appropriate corporate responsibility
targets would be added within the strategic goals category

Durmng 2010/11, the Comrmuittee conducted an interim appraisal to
gauge the progress of performance and the plan's effectiveness
based on half-year results

The Company has performed well in 2010/1, and thus has flowed
through to the basket of measures that the Committee considered
for the purposes of making awards under the DSA Although some
of the specific measures and targets are commercially sensitive, the
sections below present a selection of performance tughfights within
each of the four categories

Financial Performance

Underlying profit before tax improved by rine per cent year-on year
to £665 millton Underlying basic earmings per share increased by
109 per cent to 26 5 pence

Return to Shareholders

Underpinming performance in the year was a 2 3 per cent nse in
like-for-like sales (including VAT and excluding fuel) Thisis the sixth
consecutive year of growth and it has enabled the Company to
mantain a good level of shareholder returns The recommended full
year dwvidend of 15 1p s 6 3 per cent hugher than last year TSR was
assessed on both a relative and absolute basis over one, three and
five year periods

Relative Performance

The Company has a 16 3 per cent market share in the UK, up by
0 2 per cent on last year, and therefore sales grew ahead of the
market 1n spite of the tough consumer environment There were
on average, 21 milhon ¢customer transactions each week - a year-
on-year increase of one million - demenstrating, more than

ever, customers’ recognition that Sainsbury’s offers great food
at fair prices

Strategic Goals

The Company s strategy centres around five areas of focus These
areas are underpinned by Samnsbury's strong heritage and brand
which cansistently set 1t apart from major competitors Further
details on the corporate objectives are contained on the inside front
cover, and details on corporate responsibility are summarnised on
pages14to17

« Significant investment has continued across the Company's own-
brand ranges, with over 5,000 new or improved products launched
inthe year, including the major re launch of the Taste the Difference
brand Further progress was made on the Great Food Programme
by the opening of a bakery college and six food colleges, providing
technical trasming to colleagues This 1s an industry-leading
approach to customer service, and it 1s anticipated that over
10,000 colleagues will receive training by the end of 2011/12

* Non-food sales centinue te grow at over three himes the rate of
food, and one in three of all non food onhine orders placed is by
Chck and Collect which s now offered in over 160 stores In Clothing,
the TU brand i1s now seventh in the market by volume The non-
food ofter has been further strengthened by an investment made
across the infrastructure, with improved IT capabihty and additional
resources put into the sourcing offices to build strateqic supplier
relationships

* Sainsbury's Bank has performed strongly in the year, returmng
year-on-year pre-tax profit growth of over 50 per cent It has
intreduced several new products, including a gold credit card, fixed-
rate savings bonds and a cash ISA Convenience s now a £1bilion
business, and the Company opened 47 new convenience stores
1n 2010/, with plans to open one to two stores per week over
the next 12 months It won Convemmence Chain of the Year at the
Retasl Industry Awards in 2010 While the grocery online business
continues to grow at over 20 per cent year-on-year, and s reaching
more geographic locations than ever before

Expanding the store estate continues to be at the heart of the
Company's strategy During the year, we added a gross 1 5 milhion
sq ft of space achveved through the opening of 68 new stores and
the extension of a further 24 stores, to beat the 15 per cent space
growth target set in 2009 Of the new stores openedin the last
two years, over 70 per cent are located in Scotland, Wales and the
Saouth West, where the Company has been under-represented in
the market The Company has a strong pipeline of sites for future
development, which will extend its customer reach across the UK
supported by over 70 planming consents which have been obtained
for future store extensions

The market vatue of the Company's freehold property portfolio
has increased to £10 5 billion - an increase of £0 7 tullion over the
year, including £0 5 bithon of property value from investment and
development actvity By taking advantage of attractive yields on
dry assets, the Company generated £275 million proceeds during
the year and a property profit of £108 million, up from £27 million
on {ast year

The Company's corparate responsibiity commitments touch
each part of the business, and have anmpact from suppliers

to customers It 1s proud to be a sponsor of the London 2012
Paralympic Games The biggest ever donation to Comic Rehef was
made in 201 of £11 4 mulhon through store and customer fund-
rarsing Duning the year, the Company won an array of awards
forits scurcing policies and environmental initiatives, meluding
Community Food Retarler of the Year, and was the first food
retailer to be awarded a gold accreditation by Investors in People,
reinforcing its commitment to be *A great place to work’
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Remmunerationreport continued

Following the year-end, the Committee conducted a rigorous
assessment of performance Consistent with the underlying principles
of the DSA, the Committee assessed achievements in the round, and
also considered the manner in which these strateqic goals had been
delivered, in particular how the overall performance of the Company
had contributed to its future, sustainable growth and success

The Committee agreed that for 2010/11, awards would be made at
83 per cent of the maximum level This translates into a share award
of 104 per cent of salary for Justin King and 66 per cent of salary
for the other Executive Directors

The Committee has reviewed the DSA's performance framework for
20112, the tour performance categories and metrics will remain
consistent with those agreed for 2010/11

Long-term Incentive Plan 2006 ("Value Bullder Share Plan")
The Value Builder Share Plan 15 the Company s long term incentive
arrangement Since its launch in 2006, 1t has covered the Company s
core management from the Chief Executive to supermarket store
managers Under the plan, a core award of shares in the Company

1s granted to all participants, calculated as a percentage of their
salaries and scaled according to grade As set out below, dependent
upon performance, core awards can grow by up to four times No
awards vest for performance below the threshold levels

As in pnior years, the vesting of awards s based on the performance
of two stretching co-dependent measures return oncapital
empioyed ("ROCE") and a cash flow per share measure, both of
which are assessed over a three-year performance period There 1s
nore-testing The performance measures and the targets are
common for all participants

These performance measures were selected to butld on the sales-led
recovery plan and focus on creating further shareholder value
ROCE measures the efficiency with which new cash 1s invested and
through which existing capital delwers profit, driving both cost
savings and operationat efficiencies Cash flow per share growth
captures the Company's operational efficiency as well as its ability
to generate cash for future investment or return to shareholders
The plan’s measures are key indicators of business success and
therefore create a direct link between the interests of management
and shareholders

No awards will vest unless threshold ROCE and cash flow per share
targets are achieved The performance measures are reviewed each
year by the Committee, before a new grant 15 made, to ensure that
they remain relevant and stretching

For the purposes of the Value Builder Share Plan, ROCE Is calculated
on a pre tax, adjusted basis It 15 based on shareholders’ proportion
of underlytng operating profit far the business, including the share
of underlying profit ansing from joint ventures The capital
employed figure excludes the impact of movements in the 1AS19
pensian deficit and the one off impact of capital spend in the year

n which the calculation s made

Cash flow per share 15 calculated at the end of the performance
penod from two components

* The underlying operating profit or loss for the business before
depreciation and amortisation (with all non cash IAS 19 pensions
accounting entries replaced with the actual cash contributions in
respect of future service benetits to the Company s defined benefit
pension scheme), less interest and taxes (adjusted to strip out the
impact of one-off items and financing fair value mavements) in the
final year of the performance peniod (“cash profit™) This reflects
the Company’s improved ability to generate sustainable cash flows
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* The improvement in normalised worling capital over the
pertormance period This reflects the Company's aggregate
contribution to cash from improvements in working capital over
the three-year pertod

These components are then added and expressed as a per share
figure The improvement in cash flow per share 1s expressed as a
percentage of cash profit per share in the base year and)s
annualised The working capital element s capped 50 as not to
comprise more than one third of the improvement in the cash flow
per share figure (the two components being considered on an
absolute basis)

Performance 1s measured at the end of the performance pericd
Vesting 1s calculated by applying a performance multipher to the
core award on a stiding scale up to four times Straight-line vesting
will be carred out if performance falls between two points If the
required threshold level of performance has been reached, 50 per
cent of the award will be released at the end of year three Subject
to participants remaining in employment for a further year, the
balance will then be released Diwidends accrue on the shares that
vestin the form of additional shares

The Committee has the discretion to make adjustments to the
calculation of the perfermance measures (for instance for material
acquisitions and disposals) to ensure they remain true and fair
reflections of performance

Each year, the Commuittee reviews the Value Buitder Share Plan,
which includes its performance conditions, targets and matrix scale
From 2011/12 onwards, participationin the plan will cover around
200 of the Company s top leaders only, including the Executive
Directors An alternative reward framework has been designed for
supermarket store managers and other managers of an equivalent
grade, which incentivises them against a range of operational and
financial measures that are closely aligned to their roles

For 2011/12 awards, the Commuttee has refined the performance
matrix, to align with the Company’s objectives over the next
pertormance cycle The Committee approved raising the threshold
targets to maintain a huigh degree of stretch in the measures
Accordingly, ROCE will increase from 11 per cent to 12 5 per cent, and
cash flow per share growth will increase from three per cent to four
per cent per annum Furthermore, as the Company has progressed
beyond its turnaround phase, the Committee has narrowed the
performance range so that the maximum target applied to cash flow
per share growth will reduce from 15 per cent to 12 per cent per
annum Overall, the degree of challenge inherent in the targetsis
commensurate with stretch performance from both an internal as
well as a UK food sector perspective

Finally, the Commuttee approved a rebatancing of the vesting
multiphers withun the performance matnx to complement the new
target ranges and to ensure that parhicipants continue to be
appropnately rewarded for delivering against each performance
outcome This rebalancing exercise has resulted in the development
of a more symmetnical nsk and reward profite, which the Committee
considers to be even-handed and appropriate

The matrices overleaf detail the performance targets and
corresponding vesting multiphiers that apphed to awards made in
2010/11, and that will apply to awards for 2011/12
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200/

Pre tax adjusted Cash flow per share

ROCE 3% 6% o% 12% 15%
5% 15 25 30 35 40
14% 10 15 25 jo 35
13% 05 10 15 25 30
12% - 05 10 15 25
1% - - G5 10 15
20112

Pre tax adjusted Cash fiow per share

ROCE 4% 6% B% 10% 2%
15% 25 30 35 40 40
14 5% 20 25 30 35 40
14% 15 20 25 30 35
13 5% 10 15 20 25 30
13% 05 10 15 20 25
12 5% - Q5 10 15 20

The Commttee reviewed the Executive Directors’ grant policy in
preparation for making awards in 2011/12 It considered the level of
business performance that will be required over the next three years
to deliver the stretching plan targets, and balanced this against the
fghly competitive market-place for executive talent The Committee
agreed that the grant policy it approved for awards made in 2010/11
remains suitable for a further year Accordingly, for 2011/12, Justin
King will be granted a core award of 55 per cent of salary With the
exception of Darren Shapland, the Executive Directors reporting to
Justin King will each be granted a core award of 50 per cent of salary

Performance was assessed in May 2010 in respect of the Value
Builder Share Plan awards granted in 2007/08 Pre-tax agjusted
ROCE of 12 4 per cent and cash flow per share of 20 1 per cent were
achieved over the three-year performance period, which gave nse to
a perfarmance multiplier of 3 2 out of a maximum four tirnes This
performance outcome led to the vesting of 80 per cent of the total
award for all plan participants, including the Executive Directors
One half of the award becomes exercisable in May 2010, with the
remaining portion exercisable in May 2011 The number of shares
awarded from this grant cycle to the Executive Directors 1s set out
on page 45

The performance period for the 2008/09 Value Bulider Share Plan
grant ended in March 2011, and Its performance conditions were
assessed Pre-tax adyusted ROCE of 13 4 per cent and cash flow per
share of 99 per cent were achieved, resuthing in a performance
multipher of 19 out of a maximum four times This outcome has
resulted in 48 per cent of the total award vesting for all plan
participants, including the Executive Directors Qne half of the
award becomes exercisable in May 2011, with the remaining portion
exercisable in May 2012

iii) Variable remuneration - dormant share plan

Deferred Annuat Bonus Plan 2006

The Deferred Annual Bonus Plan previously applied to the top levels
ol management, including Executive Directors Its purpose was to
incentivise growth in relative TSR The plan i1s now dormant and the
{ast deferral took place in June 2009 using the bonus awards
earned for 2008/09

Following the year end, performance was tested in respect of the
deferral made in 2008/09 Over the three-year performance period
ending on 19 March 2011, the Company’s relative TSR performance
was ranked sixth within a comparative group of 13 companies This
resulted in 0 91 matching shares vesting for every deferred share,
out of a maximum of {wo matching shares Details of the Executive
Directors’ vested and outstanding awards under this incentive plan
are set out In the table on page 47

iv) All employee share plans

In order to encourage wider employee share ownership, the
Company provides two all employee share plans for colleagues,
namely the Savings Related Share Optien Plan ("SAYE") and the
All Employee Share Ownership Plan Executive Directors may
participate in these plans in the same way as all other colleagues
Justin King and Darren Shapland currently participate in both plans
Mike Coupe participates in SAYE As these are all employee plans
there are no performance conditions The Committee approves the
adoption or amendment of these plans and awards to Executive
Dhrectors

The 2005 (frive-year) SAYE reached maturity on 1 March 204t
Around 3,700 colleagues could use their savings and a tax-free
bonus to buy Sainsbury's shares at a 231 pence option price The
2007 (three-year) SAYE matured at the same time covering around
7,000 colleagues who could use thewr savings and a tax-free bonus
to buy Samnsbury's shares at a 331 pence option price Using the
market price on the date of the first exercise, the value of all the
shares subject to the maturity was nearly £27 milion The Company
currently has over 26,000 colleagues particrpating in the SAYE with
around 53,000 1ndividual savings contracts

In August 2008, the Company introduced a matching element to the
partnership element of the All Employee Share Ownership Plan on

a ‘buy four get one free’ basis This arrangement ceased in August
2010 These matching shares must be held for five years to receive
all of the relevant tax benefits and will be forfeited if the individual
resigns from the Company within the first three years Justin King
and Darren Shapland have each recewved 51 matching shares during
the year

Shareholding quidelines

The Committee introduced shareholding guidelines in 2006/07 to
create greater alignment of the Directors’ interests with those of
shareholders, which1s a key objective within the remuneration
policy It reviewed these guidehnes in 2009/10 and determined that
the level of shareholding expected of the Executive Directors would
rise with effect from 2010/11, from 1x salary to 2 5x salary for the
Chief Executive and from 1x salary tot 5x salary for the other
Executive Directors The shareholding guidelines in respect of the
Cperating Board Directors remain unchanged at 1x salary Newly-
appointed Directors have five years from their appointment date in
which to build up their shareholding

The table below sets out the Executive Directors’ shareholdings as
at the year end on 19 March 2011

Vatuation'
$harehalding (£000) Percentage of salary?
Justin King 1,399,878 4914 546%
Mike Coupe 798,285 2,802 S500%
John Rogers 145,998 512 121%
Darren Shapland 766,975 2,692 481%

1 The valuation is calculated against the closing mig market share price on I8 March
201 of 351 0 pence

2 The percentage of salary liures have been calculated using the salaries as at
i9 March 2011

Dilution

The Company ensures that the level of shares granted under the
Company’s share plans and the means of satisfying such awards
remains within best practice guidelines so that dilution from
employee share awards does not exceed ten per cent of the
Company’s 1ssued share capital for all-employee share plans and
five per cent in respect of executive share plans in any ten-year
roling peniad The Company moniters dilution levels on a regular
basis and the Committee reviews these at least once a year Up
to 19 March 2011, an estimated eight per cent of the Company's
issued share capital has been allocated for the purposes of all its
employee share plans over aten year period, and an estimated four
per cent in respect of its executive share plans
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Remuneration report continued

Performance graph

The graph below shows the TSR performance of an investment of
£100.n J Sainsbury plc shares over the last five years compared
with an equivalent investment in the FTSE 100 Index This has been
selected to provide an established and broad-based index

Service contracts

Justin King has a service contract which can be terminated by either
party by giving 12 months’ written notice If his service contract s
terminated without cause, the Company can request that he works
his notice peniod or takes a period of garden leave, or can pay an
amount in leu of notice equal to one times basic salary for the
nohice period plus 75 per cent of basic salary in lreu of all other
elements of remuneration, except share plans If he 1s dismissed
within six months of a change of control, the above sum will become
payable The contract contains restrictive covenants, which continue
for 12 months after termination

If the service contracts of either Darren Shapland or Mike Coupe
are terminated without cause, the maximum payment they would
recewe would be equal to one times basic salary for the 12-month
notice perod plus 5O per cent of basic salary in heu of all other
elements of remuneration, except share plans They are required
to mitigate theiwr losses and would receive phased payments,
which would be reduced or terminated if they secured alternative
employment during the notice period Therr contracts also contain
restnctive covenants, which continue for 12 months after
termination The contracts do not contain any specitic provisions
relating to change of contro!

Last year, the Commttee agreed that the termination provisions
within future Executive Directors' service agreements would state
that any severance payments would be lirited to one year's salary
and benetits, be made on a phased basis and be subject to
mitigation Asisthe current practice, if "good leaver” status s
given, long-term incentive awards that vest followmg a director's
employment termination will continue to beé pro-rated for time and
perfarmance Bonus awards will also be paid subject to time and
performance for the financial year in which office 1s held if the
indrvidualis considered to be a “good leaver ' The service contract
under which John Rogers has been appointed as Chief Financial
Officer follows these prowvisions in full, 1n addition, there are no
specific terms relating to change of control

The Executive Durectors' service contracts became effective on the
following dates

Justin King 29 March 2004
Mike Coupe 1 August 2007
John Rogers 19 July 2010
Darren Shapland 1 August 2005

Darren Shapland

As announced on 9 May 201, Darren Shapland will step down from
the Board at the Annual General Meeting on 13 July 2011 He will be
appointed to the position of Non-Executive Chairman of Sainsbury's
Bank and will receive a hixed annual fee of £150,000 plus benefits
As a result of this role change, he will not participate in any of the
Company's incenhves for 2011/12 Darren has also agreed to remain
available to provide consultancy services to the Group on matters

44 J Ssinsbury ple Annual Repart and Finan¢ial Statements 20N

unrelated to Sainsbury s Bank, to be separately remuneratedon a
per diem basis

It should be noted that Darren will not receve either a severance
payment or an ex gratia payment as a result of s change in
employment status

Darren’s outstanding awards, as granted prior to his departure from
the Board, wilt be treated in accordance with the relevant plan rules
Awards under the Value Builder Share Plan and the Deferred Annual
Bonus Plan will be subject to time pro-rating (calculated as at the
point of departure from the Board) The relevant performance
conditions will continue to apply and a service condition must be
satisfied, otherwise the shares will 1apse Shares granted to Darren
under the Deferred Share Award will be exercisable in full following
the end of the plan‘s retention period it a serwice condition 1s met,
otherwise they will be pro-rated on a time basis

External appointments

The Company’s normal practice 1s that Executive Directors may take
up one public company non executive role outside the Company,
subject to a consideration of the role and the time commitment
Directors are entitled to retain the fees earned from such
appointments Details of the Executive Directors' external fees

are set out on page 45

Chairman

David Tyler does not have a service contract, hus letter of appointment
became effective on10ctober 2009 and he became Chairman on
1November 2009 He has been appointed for an initial term of three
years, renewable on a 12-month rolling basts and thereafter by
mutual consent His appointment may be terminated at any time
upon the serving of sixmonths wntten notice by either party

David Tyler was appointed as Chawrman on a basic fee of £450,000
per annum His fee was reviewed gnthe anriversary of his
appointment during 2010/1 and it was not changed He devotes
such time as s necessary to perform his duties He does not
participate in any performance related incentive plans and he does
not receve any benents except for an annual medical assessment
and a colleague discount card

Non-Executive Directors

Non-Execubive Directors do not have service contracts They are
appointed for aninitial three-year period, which may be extended
for a further term by mutual consent The imtial appointments

and any subsequent re-appomntments are subject to election or

re election by shareholders Their appointments may be terminated
by the serving of three months’ notice by either party

Non-Executive Directors recesve a basic annual cash fee, additional
fees are paid to the Senior Independent Director and to the
Chawrmen of the Audit, Remuneration and Corporate Responsibifity
Committees Non-Executive Directors do not partrcipate in any
performance related incentive plans and receive no benefits other
than a colleague discount card

The Non-Executive Directors’ fees were last increased in September
2009, they were reviewed during 2010/11 and remain unchanged

Basic fee £55,000
Senior Independent Director fee £15,000
Chairman of Remuneration Committee fee £15,000
Chawrman of Audit Committee fee £15,000
Chairman of Corporate Responsibility Committee fee £10,000

The Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appointment became
effective on the following dates

Matt Bnttin 27 Januvary 200
Anna Ford 2 May 2006
Val Gooding W January 2007
Mary Harns 1 August 2007
Gary Hughes 1 January 2005
John McAdam 1 September 2005
Bob Stack 1January 2005




Remuneration report continued

The following section provides details of the remuneration, pension and share plan interests of the Directors for the 52 weeks ended 19 March
201 and has been audited

i) Directors’ remuneration
The remuneration of the Directors for the year was as follows

Cash components and benefits

Total cash and

Pensian benehts Deferred Total Tatal
Salary/fees Bonus™  supplement® Benefits® 2011 share award' 201 2010
Note £0CO £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 EOOO
Justin King 2m 900 520 270 3 1,721 934 2,655 3,348
Mike Coupe 544 213 136 17 N0 372 1,282 1,407
John Rogers 39 286 170 51 n 518 282 800 -
Darren Shapland n 560 202 140 17 a19 372 1,291 1,542
David Tyler 4 450 - - 1 451 - 451 21
Matt Brittin s 8 - - - 8 - 8 -
Anna Ford 65 - - - 65 - 65 62
Val Gooding 55 - - - 55 - 55 52
Mary Harris 55 - - - 55 - 55 52
Gary Hughes 70 - - - 70 - 70 65
John M¢Adam 70 - - - 70 - 70 65
Bob Stack 70 - - - 70 - 70 65
Philip Hampton 6 - - - - - - - 244
Total 2011 3133 1,105 597 77 4912 1,960 6,872
Total 2010 2,785 191 537 137 5,370 1,743 3

1 The deferred share award is an award of shares with the value shown above These shares are retained by the Company for two financizl years and will not become

exercisable by the participants untit after the year-end in 2013

Highest pard Durector

Appainted to the Board on 19 July 2010

Appointed to the Baard on 1 October 2009 and became Chairman on 1 November 2009

Appointed to the Board on 27 January 201t

Resigned from the Board on 1 November 2009

Includes performance bonuses earned in the period under review but pald following the end of the tinancial year

Justin King 1s not a member of the Company s pension plans and received 30 per cent of hls basic salary as a cash pension supplement In addition to this supptement

£440 (2010 E£440) of interest has been earned on a notional fund during the year fram his previous membership of 1he Executive Stakeholder Pension Plan Neither

Darren Shapland nor Mike Coupe are members of the Company s pension plans - each received 25 per cent of basic satary as a cash pension supptemnent John Rogers

1s a member of the Company s Stakeholder Pension Plan Contributions to the Stakeholder Plan by the Company in 2010/11an respect of his membership were £15,450

He received a cash supplement equal to 25 per cent of the amount by which his salary exceeded the Company 5 earnings cap (2010/11 €123 6¢0)

The totals for 2031 1n the case of John Rogers do not include deductions made from basic salary for Saving Money and Reducing Tax (*SMART ) pensions

I0 Benehtsinclude a combination of cash and non cash benefits Non cash benefits for John Rogers Darren Shapland and Mike Coupe includes private medical cover
Justin King recelved non cash benefits whichinclude company car benefits and private medical cover

1t Directors are entitled 1o retain the fees earned from non executive appointments outsede the Company Justin King was appointed a Non Executive Director of Staples
In¢ on 17 September 2007 He received US $75,000 for his services during 2010/11 (2009/10 $75 000} Dunng the year 1} 540 (2009/10 nil) of restricted Staples stock
was released to Justin and a further award over 8,653 shares was granted (2009/10 10 340 restricted shares awarded and 34,168 options) Justin King s also a Director
of Olympic Games and Paralympic Games Limited and a member of the London Orgamising Committee of the Olympic and Paralympic Games Justin recesved £12,000
(200910 €9 S00) during the year for his services which affer daductions for National Insurance was donated directly to charity Darren Shapland was appointed a
Non Executive Director of Ladbrokes plc on 18 November 2009 and receved ES8 800 for his services during 2010/11 (200910 £16,600)

Q- AWN

li} Long-term incentive plans

Long-term Incentive Plan 2006
The table below shows the conditional awards granted under this Plan, which would be released if the Company achieves the performance
targets for maximum vesting

Number of
dividend
Share price at shares Number

Maximum  date of award Number of allocated ol options  First exercise  Last exercise
Date of grant share award' pence shares lapsed 19 May 20102 released date date
Justin King 200607 380,844 5839 76,169 20109 172446 120510 nosi2
280508 630,876 3520 - - - 1os1 100513
240609 570,984 3140 - - - 00512 090514
21 0610 611,488 3293 - - - 090513 080515
Mike Coupe 2006 07 163,092 5835 32,619 8,61 73,847 120510 nosiz
280508 281,868 3520 - - - nos1 100513
240609 258,844 3140 - - - 100512 090514
210610 315,008 3293 - - - 090513 080515
John Rogers 200607 22,581 5835 - - - 120510 110512
280508 144,696 3520 - - - 1n1osn 100513
24 0609 137,036 340 - - - 100512 090514
210610 194,476 3293 - - - 090513 080515
Darren Shapland 200607 179,220 5835 35,844 9,463 81151 120510 110512
280508 296916 3520 - - - nosn 00513
240609 284,224 3140 - - - 100512 090514
210610 345,892 3293 - - - 090513 080515

The maxlmum share award assumaes full vesting

2 The performance conditions attaching to the award are return on capital employed and growth in cash flow per share Further informationis provided on pages 98 to 99
The performance of the award made In June 2007 was tested in May 2010 and a multipher of 3 2 was achieved The number of shares between the maximum multiplier (4 0)
and the multipher achleved have be¢n lapsed Half of the achieved award vested in May 2010 whilst the remainder of the achieved award will vest in May 2011 The number of
dividend shares on the first vesting was determined by a five day average share price from 13 to 19 May 2010

3 This frigure indicated the number of awards outstanding for John Rogers at his date of appointment

Note
- The Long term Incentive Plan 2006 1s 3 nit cost ophion plan The exercise price 1s nil
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Remunerationreport continued

The following table shows the options that were exercised dunng the year

Nurmber of Number of

Number of aptions options Mid market Gains an
aptions held released exerased  price on date aption Number of
20 March during the during the ot exercise exercises Lapsedduring  options held  Exercise price
2010 year year pence £000 the year 19 March 2011 pence
Justin King - 72,446 172,446 ELNY 588 - - nil
Mike Coupe - 73,847 73,847 3200 236 - - nil
Darren Shapland - 81,151 81,151 3523 286 - - nil

Note
- Some of the shares were sold 16 fund the participants income tax and Natienal Insurance fiabilities, and some or all of the remaining shares were retained

Deferred Share Award
The table below shows the number of deferred shares awarded to participants in May 2010 There are no further performance measures
attached to the awards They will be released in the torm of mi-cost options

Share price at
Deferred  dateci award First exercise  Last exercise

Date of grant share award pence date date
Justin King 200510 298,570 366 100512 090520
Mike Coupe 200510 108,281 3166 100512 090520
John Rogers 200510 57,325 3166 100512 090520
Darren Shapland 200510 18,897 3166 100512 090520

Notes
= There were no exercrses or lapses under this Ptan during the year
~  The exercise price 15 ml

Deferred Annual Bonus Plan
The table below shows the maximum number of shares conchtionally allocated to participants and what would be released to them inthe form
of nil cost options if the Company achieves the performance targets for maximum vesting

Maxmum Matching

Delerred matching Share price at share award
bonus share share dateof award lapsed during Firstexercise  Last exercise
Pate of grant award award' pence the year date date
Justin King 200607 86,026 - 172,052 - -
200608 158,042 316,084 32575 21031 210313
24 06 09 81,319 275,658 3400 200312 200314
Mike Coupe 200607 21,294 - 42,588 - -
2006 08 18,292 36,584 32575 21031 210313
24 06 09 23,280 78,920 3400 200312 200314
John Rogers 200608 7.513 15,026 32575 21031 210313
Darren Shapland 200607 29,033 - 58,066 - -
2006 08 52,043 104,086 32575 21031 210313
24 06 09 24,030 81,460 314 00 200312 200314

1 Themawmum matching share award 15 the maxmuem award that would become exercisable provided that the Company achieves first position within the comparator
group of Ahold Carrefour, Casino Delhaize D5G International Home Retall Group Kingfisher, Marks & Spencer, Metro Morrisons, Next and Tesco The Company s refative
performance is determined by reference to Total Shareholder Return

Notes

- There were no exercises of matching share awards under this Plan during the year

- A number of the shares deferred in June 2007 have been sold to fund the particlpants income tax and National lnsurance hatelitles The remainder were released to
participants on 26 March 2010

- The performance of the awards granted in June 2007 was tested and no matching shares have been awarded

- The 2008 deferred bonus share award was made on a gross basis The 2009 deferral was made on a net basis

- The exercise price is ail
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Remmumeration report continued

Hil) Saving-Retated Share Option Plan (“SAYE")

At the end of the year, the Directors’ SAYE share options were as {ollows

HNumber of Options Date
Mid market Galns on
Granted Exercised  price on date option
20 March auring the during the of exercise exercise Lapsed during Exercise price From which
2010 year year pence EQOO the year 19 March 207 pence exercisable Of expiry
Justin King 6969 - 6969 3686 10 - - - - -
- 3,030 - - - - 3,030 2970 010314 10814
Mike Coupe 3,324 - - - - - 3,324 2730 010313 30813
Darren Shapland 2,881 - 2,881 3459 1 - - - - -
3,324 - - - - - 3,324 2730 010313 310813

Note
- The SAYE Planis an all employee share ophion plan and has ne perfermance canditions as per HMRC Regulations

In the penod from 20 March 2010 to 19 March 201, the highest mid-market price of the Company’s shares was 395 O pence and the lowest
mid-market price was 312 9 pence At 19 March 2011 the Company's share price was 351 0 pence

Iv) Directors’ interests
The beneficial interests of the Directors and their families inthe shares of the Company are shown below

———————Ordinary shares?
20March 2010 19 March 2011 10 May 20112

Justin King 1777764 1,399,878 1,319,223
Mike Coupe 743,769 798,285 788,942
John Rogers 145998 145,998 142,160
Darren Shapland 885,851 766975 740,461
Dawvid Tyler 50,000 50,000 50,000
Matt Brittin - - -
Anna Ford 1,000 1,000 1,000
Val Gooding 1,320 1,320 1,320
Mary Harris 5,000 5.000 5,000
Gary Hughes 25,455 26,480 26,480
John McAdam 1,000 1,000 1,000
Bob Stack' 2,800 2,800 2,800

1 Heldin the form of 730 Amernican Depository Receipts

2 Shares deferred in 2008 under the Deferrec Annual Bonus Plan were released to participants and a number of shares were sotd to fund income tax and Nationa! Insurance
liablhities following the year end The totalincludes shares purchased under the Sainsbury s Share Purchase Plan between 19 March 2011 and 10 May 2011

3 Ordinary shares are benehicial holdings which include the Directors' persanal holdings and thase of their spouses and minor children They also include the beneficial
interests In shares which are hetd in trust under the Sainsbury s Share Purchase Plan

Notes

- Thetotals above for Justin King Darren Shapland and Mike Coupe include the deferred annual bonus shares purchased under the Plan which have to be held until the end
of the performance period

- The Execulive Direclors are potentral beneficiaries of the Company's employee benefit trust, which is used to satisfy awards under the Company s employee share plang
and they are therefore treated as interested 1n the & I million shares (2010 6 2 million} held by the Trustees

Approved by the Board on 10 May 201t

Bob Stack
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Bl Alah
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responstble for preparing the Annual Report, the
Remuneration report and the financial statements in accordance
with apphcable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year Under that law the Dtrectors have prepared
the Group and Company financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs”) as adopted by
the European Union Under company law the Direciors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that peniod In
prepanng these financial statements, the Directors are required to

¢ select suttable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

¢ state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the Eurcpean Union
have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements,

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless
itisinappropriate to presume that the Group and the Company wili
continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explainthe Group's and the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial pesition of the Company and the Group and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements and the
Remuneration report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and,

as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities
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The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of
the Company's website Legislation inthe United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemsnation of financial statements may
ditfer from legislation in other jurisdictions

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are hsted on
page 25 confirm that, to the best of therr knowledge

« the Group financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair
view of the assets, habilities, financial position and profit of the
Group, and

» the Directors' report contained in the Annual Report includes a fair
review of the development and performance of the business and the
position of the Group, together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertamnties that 1t faces

Tim Fallowfield
Company Secretary
10 May 2011




Independent Auditors’reportto the

members of J Sainsbury plc

We have audited the finanoial statements of J Sainsbury plc for the
52 weeks ended 19 March 2011 which comprise the Group income
statement, the Group and Company Statements of comprehensive
income, the Group and Company Balance sheets, the Group and
Company Cash flow statements, the Group and Company Statement
of changes in equity and the related notes The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in ther preparation 1s applicable
law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Unron and, as regards the Company
financial statements, as applied in accordance with the prowisions
of the Companies Act 2006

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors
responsitilities set out on page 48, the Directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements The Directors are
responsible for being satishied that the financial statements give a
true and fair view Our responsibility i1s to audit and express an
opinion on the financial statements in accordance with apphicable
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us to compty with the Auditing Practices Board's
Ettucal Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opimons, has been prepared for and only
for the Company's members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We
do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibilty for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report s
shown or Into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our pricr consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the finanoal statements are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate

to the Group’s and the Company's circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness
of sigmificant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the
overall presentation of the financial statements

Opimon on hinancial statements
In our opinion

¢ the financial statements qive a true and fair view of the state of the
Group s and of the Company's affairs as at 19 March 2011 and of the
Group's profit and Group's and Company's cash flows for the 52
weeks then ended,

* the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,

* the Company financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Unuon and
as apphed in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
2006, and

+ the financal statements have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the [AS Regulation

Optmon on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
Inour opinion

+ the part of the Remuneration report to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the Compamies Act 2006, and

* the information given in the Directors' report for the financial vear
for which the financial statements are prepared 1s conststent with
the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the fellowing

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if,
N QU OpINIgn

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company,
or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us, or

* the Company financial statements and the part of the
Remuneration report ta be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns, or

¢ certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specfied by law are
not made, or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are reguired to review

* the Directors’ statement, set out en page 29, in relation to going
concern,

s the parts of the Corporate governance statement relating to the
Company s compltance with the nine prowisions of the June 2008
Combined Code specified for our review, and

¢ certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on
Directors’ remuneration

Richard Hughes (Senjor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

10 May 201
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Group income statement

for the 52 weeks to 19 March 2011

201

2010

Note £m £m
Revenue 4 21,102 19,964
Cost of sales (19,942) (18.882)
Gross profit 1,160 1,082
Admunistrative expenses {417) (399}
Other income 108 27
Operating profit 5 851 710
Finance ncome & 32 33
Finance costs & (ne) (148)
Share of post-tax prohit from joint ventures 4 60 138
Profit before taxation 827 733
Analysed as
Underlying profit before tax 665 610
Profit on disposal of properties 3 108 27
Investment property fair value movements 3 39 123
Financing fair value movements 3 7 (15)
IAS 19 pension financing credit/icharge) 3 3 (24)
One off items 3 5 12
827 733
Income tax expense 8 {187) (148)
Profit for the financlal year 640 585
Earnings per share g pence pence
Basic 344 321
Diluted 338 36
Underlying basic 265 239
Underlying diluted 261 236
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Statements of comprehensive income

for the 52 weeks to 19 March 201

Group Campany
20m 2010 201 2010
Note £m £m £m £m
Profit for the period 640 585 280 250
Other comprehensive Incomef(expense)
Net actuanial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension scheme 10 29 (173) - -
Available-for-sale financial assets fair value movements
Group 14 43 2 7
Joint ventures 2 24 - -
Cash flow hedges effective portion of fair value movements
Group (8) ) - -
Joint ventures 2 - - -
Current tax onitems recognised directly in other comprehensive income 8 (1) 6 {n m
Deferred tax onitems recognised directly in other comprehensive income 8 (5} 21 - -
Total other comprehensive income/(expense) for the period (net of tax) 33 (72) 1 6
Total comprehensive income for the period 673 513 281 256
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Balancesheets
At 19 March 2011 and 20 March 2010

Group Company
200 2010 201 2010
Note Em £m £€m £m
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment n 8,784 8,203 42 42
Intangible assets 12 151 144 - -
Investments in subsidiaries 13 - - 7,309 7,276
investments in joint ventures 14 502 449 91 9
Available-for-sale financial assets 15 176 150 36 24
COther receivables 17 36 36 1,181 s
Derivative financial instruments 29 29 20 25 9
Deferred income tax asset 2 - - 1 1
9,678 9,002 8,685 8,568
Current assets
Inventories 16 812 702 - -
Trade and other receivables 7 343 215 1,069 566
Dernvative financial instruments 29 s2 43 43 32
Cash and cash equivalents 26b 501 B37 169 670
1,708 1,797 1,281 1,268
Non current assets held for sale 18 13 56 - -
1,721 1,853 1,281 1,268
Total assets 11,399 10,855 9,966 9,836
Current liabilities
Trade and cther payables 19 {2,597) (2,466) (4,443) {4,460)
Borrowings 20 (14) (73} {17} €)]
Denwvative financial instruments 29 (59) (41} (51} 40)
Taxes pavable (201) (200} (15} (N
Provisions 22 {11) (13} m (1)
(2,942) (2,793) (4,527) (4,511
Net current labilities ,221) (940) (3,246} (3,243)
Non-current liabilities
Cther payables 19 (120) (1086) (861} {821
Borrowings 20 (2,339 (2,357 (338) (323
Derivative financial instruments 29 - 2) - -
Deferred income tax liability 21 (172) (144 - -
Provistons 22 (62) (66) (19 (24)
Retirement benefit obligations 30 {(340) 421 - -
(3,033) (3,096) (1,218) (1,168)
Net assets 5424 4966 4,221 4,157
Equity
Called up share capital 23 535 532 535 532
Share premum account 23 1,048 1,033 1,048 1,033
Captal redemption reserve 24 680 680 680 680
Other reserves 24 (213) (242) 23 26
Retained earmings 25 3,374 2963 1,935 1,886
Total equity 5424 4,966 4,221 4,157

The financial statements on pages 50 to 102 were approved by the Board of Directors on 10 May 2011, and are signed onats behalf by

Justin King Chief Executive

John Rogers Chlef Financial Officer
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Cash flow statements

for the 52 weeks to 19 March 2011

Group Company

201 2010 201 200
Note Em £m £rn £m

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 26 1,138 1,206 (535} (259
Interest paid {126) amn (66} (&)
Corporation tax pard (158) 89) - -
Net cash generated from/f{used In) operating activitles 854 1,006 {601} (291)

Cash flows from Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,136) (1,036} (36) -
Purchase of intangble assets {15) [} - -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 282 139 36 -
Acquisition of and investment in subsidianes, net of cash acquired 12 n - - (&)
Investment in joint ventures (2) (2) - -
Investment in financsal assets (50) am (10) (10)
Interest received 19 18 a7 83
Dividends received 1 2 251 252
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (902) (900) 328 320

Cash flows from financing actlvities
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares 17 250 17 250
Repayment of short term borrowings on (36) - (35)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 45 235 45 235
Repayment of long-term borrowings (61) (74) {20} 20
Repayment of capital element of obligations under finance lease payments (3) (2) - -
interest elements of obligations under finance lease payments 4) (3 - -
Diwvidends paid 0 (269) (241) (269) (241
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities {286) 129 1227) 188
Net {decrease)/increase In cash and cash equivalents (334) 235 (500) 217
Opening cash and cash equivalents B34 599 669 452
Closing cash and cash equivalents 26 500 834 169 669
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Group statement of changes in equity

for the 52 weeks to 19 March 2011

Capital
Share redemption
Called up premium and other Retained
share capital account reserves earnings Tatal equity
Note Em Em £m £m £m
At 21 March 2010 532 1,033 438 2,963 4,966
Profit for the penod - - - 640 640
Other comprehensive income/{expense)
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension scheme (net of tax) 24 - - 26 - 26
Available-for-sale financia! assets fair value movements (net of tax)
Group 24 - - 1 - 1
Joint ventures 24 - - - 2
Cash flow hedges effective portion of changes in fair value {net of tax}
Group 24 - - (8) - (8}
Joint ventures 24 - - 2 - 2
Total comprehensive income/(expense} for the 52 weeks ended
19 March 2011 - - 33 640 673
Transactions with owners
bPindends paid W - - - {269) {269)
Amortisation of convertible bond equity component 24 - - 4) 4 -
Share-based payment (net of tax) 3 - - - 37 37
Allotted in respect of share option schemes 23125 3 15 - ) 17
At 19 March 201 535 1,048 467 3,374 5,424
At 22 March 2009 501 909 489 2477 4,376
Profit for the pernicd - - - 585 585
Other comprehensive income/{expense}
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension schemes (net of tax} 24 - - (125) - (125)
Available-for-sale financial assets fair value movemeants (net of tax)
Group 24 - - 32 - 32
Jomnt ventures 24 - - 24 - 24
Cash flow hedges etfective portion of changes in fair value (net of tax)
Group 24 - - [€)] - (3)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the 52 weeks ended
20 March 2010 - - (72) 585 513
Transactions with owners
Diwvidends paid 10 - - - (24%) (241)
Convertible bond - equity component - - 24 - 24
Amortisation of convertible bond equity component - - 3) 3 -
Share-based payment (net of tax) Y - - - 44 44
Shares 1ssued 2324 22 n3 102 - 237
Transfer to retained earmngs 24 - - (102) 102 -
Shares vested - - - 12 12
Allotted in respect of share option schemes 2125 9 n - a9 1
At 20 March 201D 532 1,033 438 2,963 4,966
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Company statement of changes in equity

for the 52 weeks to 19 March 2011

Capital
Share redemption
Cattedup premium and other Retained
share capital account reserves earmings Totat equity
Note Em £m Em Em Em
At 21 March 2010 532 1,033 706 1,886 4,157
Proft tor the penod - - - 280 280
Other comprehensive income/(expense)}
Available-tor-sale financial assets fair value movements (net of tax) 24 - - 1 - 1
Total comprehensive income/(expense)} for the 52 weeks ended
19 March 2011 - - 1 280 281
Transactions with owners
Dividends paid 10 - - - {269) {269)
Amortisation of convertible bond equity component - - (4) 4 -
Allotted in respect of share option schemes 2325 3 15 - 3as S3
Utihsed in respect of share option schemes - - - {n {n
At 19 March 2011 535 1,048 703 1,935 4,221
At 22 March 2009 501 909 679 1,737 3,826
Profit for the period - - - 250 250
Other comprehensive income/(expense)
Available-for-sale financial assets fair value movements {net of tax) 24 - - & - 6
Total comprehensive income/{expense) for the 52 weeks ended
20 March 2010 - - 6 250 256
Transactions with owners
Diwnidends paid 10 - - - (241) (241)
Convertible bond - equity component - - 24 - 24
Amortisation of convertible bond equity component - - 3 3 -
Sharesssued 2324 22 13 102 - 237
Transfer to retained earmings 24 - - (102} 102 -
Allotted mn respect of share option schemes 2325 9 1 - 42 62
Utiised in respect of share option schemes - - - (7) (7)
At 20 March 2010 532 1,033 706 1,886 4,157
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General information

J Sainsbury plcis a public hmited company (“the Company™)
incorporated in the United Kingdom, whose shares are publicly
traded on the London Stock Exchange The Company is domiciled
in the United Kingdom and its registered address1s 33 Holborn,
London ECIN 2HT, United Kingdom

The financial year represents the 52 weeks ta 19 March 2011 {prior
financial year 52 weeks to 20 March 2010) The consohdated
financial statements for the 52 weeks to 19 March 2011 compnise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidianes ("the Group™)
and the Group's share of the post-tax results of its jount ventures

The Group's principal activities are grocery and related retailing

2 Accounting policles

{a) Statement of compliance

The Group’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs™) as
adopted by the European Umon and Internabional Finangial
Reporting Interpretations Commuttee (“IFRICS") interpretations

and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to
companies reporting under IFRSs The Company's iinancial
statements have been prepared on the same basis and, as permitted
by Section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006, no income statement
15 presented for the Company

(b) Basis of preparation

The financial statements are presented in sterhing, rounded to the
nearest millien ("Em") unless otherwise stated They have been
prepared on a going concern basis under the histonical cost
convention, except for derivative financial Instruments, investment
properties, available for-sale financial assets, share-based
payments and retwement benefit plan assets that have been
measured at far value

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
reguires the use of judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amaunts of assets and hatulities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrymng values of assets and habilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources Actual results may differ from these estimates
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are sigmficant to the
financial statements are disclosed in note 2¢

New standards, interpretations and amendments to
published standards
Effective for the Group in these financial statements

*+ IFRS 3 '‘Business Combinations’ (revised) The revised standard
continues to apply the acquisition method to business
combinatiens but with some significant changes compared with
IFRS 3 For example, all payments to purchase a busmess are
recorded at fair value at the acquisition date, with contingent
payments subsequently re-measured through the Group
Income Statement There s a choice on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis to measure the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non controlling interest s
proportionate share of the acquiree s net assets All acquisition-
related costs are expensed as they are incurred

-+ IAS 27 ‘Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements' (revised)
requires the effects of all transactions with non-controlling
interests to be recorded in equity if there 1s no change in control
and these transactions will no longer result in goodwill or gains
and losses The standard also specifies the accounting when
control s lost Any remaining tnterest tnthe entity 1s re-measured
to fair value, and a gain or loss 1s recognised in the Group
Income Statement
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The following new standards, interpretations and amendments !
to pubhished standards were also effective for the Group for the
financial year beginming 21 March 2010

+ Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’

« Amendment to |AS 39, ‘Financial instruments Recognition
and measurement’

= IFRIC 17 ‘Distribution of non-cash assets to owners’
+ IFRIC 18 'Transfers of assets from customers’

+ Amendments to IFRS 2 ‘Share based Payment' relating to group
cash-settled share-based payment transactions which clanfy
how anindividual subsidiary 1n a group should acceunt for
some share based payment arrangements in 1ts own financial
statements

+ Amendments to certamn IFRSs and IASs anising from the Apni
2009 Annual improvements to IFRS by the International
Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"}

« Amendments to IFRS 5 'Non current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations’

= Amendments to IAS 32 *Classification of rights 1ssues’

The Group has considered the above new standards, interpretations
and amendments to published standards and concluded that they
are either not relevant to the Group or that they would not have a
significant impact on the Group's financial statements, apart from
additional disclosures

Effective for the Group for the financial year beginning
20 March 2011

+ IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures' revised definibion of related
parties

+ IFRIC 19 ‘Extinguishing financial habihties with equity
instruments’

» Amendments to IFRIC 14 ‘Prepayments of a minimum funding
requirement’

+ Amendments to certain IFRSs and 1ASs arising from the May 2010
Annual Improvements to 1FRS by the IASB

The Group has considered the above new standards, interpretations
and amendments to published standards that are not yet effective
and concluded that they are either not relevant to the Group or that
they would not have a sigmificant impact on the Group s financial
statements, apart from additional disclosures

The following new standards and interpretations have not yet
been endorsed by the EU:

« Amendments to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments Disclosures’
enhancing disclosures about transfers of financial assets

+ IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’

« Limited scope amendments to 1AS 12 ‘Income Taxes’

The accounting policies set out below and in note 3 have been
apphed consistently to all periods presented in the financial
statements by the Group and the Company

Subsidiaries

Substdiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights The
results of subsidiaries are included in the Group income statement
from the date of acquisition, or in the case of disposals, up to the
effective date of disposal Intercompany transactions and balances
between Group compames are ehminated upon consolidation




Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Accounting policies continued

The acguisition method of accounting 15 used to account for the
acquisition of subsicdharies by the Group The cost of acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity tnstruments
issued and habihibes incurred or assumed at the date of exchange
Identifiable assets and habihties acquired are measured at farr value
at the acquisihion date The excess of cost over the fair value of the
Greup's share of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired 1s
recorded as goodwill

Investments it subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss in the financial statements of the Company

Jeint ventures

Joint ventures are jaintly controlled entities in which the Group
has aninterest The Group's share of the post-tax results of its joint
ventures are included in the Group iIncome statement using the
equity method of accounting Where the Group transacts with a
Joint venture, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of

the Group's interest in the joint venture Losses incurred by the
joint ventures may provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred in which case approprate provision is made

for mpairment

Investments in joint ventures are carried in the Group balance
sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group's share
of net assets of the entity, less any impairment in value

Investments in joint ventures are carried in the Company balance
sheet at cost less any imparment foss

Revenue

Revenue consists of sales through retail cutiets and excludes Value
Added Tax Sales through retail outlets are shown net of returns,
the cost of Nectar reward pointsissued and redeemed, colleague
discounts, vouchers and sales made on an agency basis
Commission income is recagnised in revenue based on the terms
of the contract

Revenue is recogmsed when the ssgrificant risks and rewards of
goods and services have been passed to the buyer and it can be
measured reliably

The cost of Nectar points is treated as a deduction from sales and
part of the fair value of the consideration received s deferred and
subsequently recogrused over the period that the awards are
redeemed The fair vatue of the points awarded 1s determined
with reference to the fair value to the customer

Salnsbury’s Bank

Fees and commissians earned by Sainsbury’s Bank plc ("Sansbury's
Bank"), that are not integral to the yield, are recogmsed in the
income statement as the service 1s provided to the extent reliably
measurable Where there 15 a rnisk of potential claw back of
commussion of a related insurance product sold, an appropriate
element of the insurance commussion recevable is deferred
reflective of contractual provisions and expectations of future
cancellation or early settlement activity

Interest income

Interest iIncome 1s recogmised in the income statement for all
instruments measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method This calculation takes into account interest received or paid
and fees and commussions received or paid that are integral to the
yield as well asincremental transaction ¢osts

Cost of sales

Cost of sales consists of all costs to the point of sale including
warehouse and transportation costs and all the costs of operating
retail outlets

Supplier incentives, rebates and discounts are recogmsed within
cost of sales as they are earned The accrued value at the reporting
date 15 included in prepayments and accrued income

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings

Land and buitdings are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any recognised provision for impairment Propertiesn the
course of construction are held at cost less any recognised provision
for impairment Cost includes the oniginal purchase price of the
asset and the costs incurred attributable to bringing the asset to

its working condition for intended use This includes capitalised
borrowing costs

Fixtures, equipment and vehicles

Fixtures, equipment and vehicles are held at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any recognised provision for impairment Cost
includes the oniginal purchase price of the asset and the costs
attnbutable to bringing the asset to its working condition and

its intended use

Depreciation

Depreciation s calculated to wnite down the cost of the assets

to their residual values, on a straight-line method on the following
bases

Freehold bulldings and leasehold properties - 50 years, or the
lease term if shorter

+ Fixtures, equipment and vehicles - 3 to 15 years

+ Freehold land s not depreciated
Buidings under construction are not depreciated

Gams and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds
with the asset’s carrying amount and are recogmised within
operating profit

Intangible assets

Pharmacy licences

Pharmacy licences are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any recognised provision for impairment and
amortised on a straight-hine basis aver their useful econormic hfe
of 15 years within cost of sales

Computer software

Computer software is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any impairment loss Externally acquired computer software
and software licences are capitalised and amortised on a straight-
Ine basis over thesr useful economic lives of five to seven years
Costs relating to development of computer software for internal use
are capitalised once the recognition critenia of 1AS 38 ‘Intangible
Assets’ are met When the software is availlable for its intended use,
these costs are amortised over the estimated usetul life of the
software within administrative expenses

Other

Other intangible assets are carred at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any recognised provision for impairment They
are amortised on a straight line basis over their contractual useful
economic hives within cost of sales

Goodwlll

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the consideration
of an acquisition over the far value of the Group’s share of the

net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisthion Goodwillis recognised as an asset on the Group s
balance sheet in the year in which it anises, and 1s considered to have
anindefimte useful ife Goodwill Is tested for impawrment annually
and again whenever indicators of impairment are detected and

15 carned at cost less any accumulated recognised provision

for imparrment

Investment property

Investment properties are those properties held for capital
appreciation and/or to earnrental income They are initially
measured at ¢ost, including related transaction costs After imihial
recognition at cost, they are carried at thewr fair values based on
market value determined by professional valuers at each reporting
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Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Accounting policies continued

date The difference between the fair value of an investment
property at the reporting date and its carrying amount prior to
re-measurement 15 included within the income statement but 1s
excluded from underlying profit in order to provide a clear and
consistent presentation of the underlying performance of
Samnsbury's ongoing business for shareholders Currently, the only
tnvestment properties the Group holds are those contained withun
its joint ventures with Land Securities Group PLC and The British
Land Company PLC

Impairment of non-financial assets

Annually and agan whenever indicators of impairment are detected,
the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment and tntangible assets to determine whether there 1s any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If any
suchundication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, which s
the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, 15
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent
from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (*CGU") to which the asset belongs For
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets excluding
goodwill, the CGU s deemed to be each trading store For goodwll,
the CGU is deemed to be each retail chain of stores acquired

Anyimpairment charge 15 recogmised in the income statement in
the year in which it occurs Where an impairment loss, other than
an impairment loss on goodwill, subsequently reverses due to a
change in the original estimate, the carrying amount of the asset
15 Increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount

Capitalisation of interest

Interest costs that are directly attributatile to the acquisition or
construction of quahtying assets are capitalised to the cost of the
asset, gross of tax relief

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale and stated
at the lower of the carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell if
their carrying amaunt 1s to be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use Non-current assets
held for sale are not depreciated

Leased assets

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease
transter substantsally all the risks and rewards of ownership to

the Group All other leases are classified as operating leases

For property leases, the land and building elements are treated
separately to determine the appropriate lease classification

Finance leases

Assets funded through finance leases are capitalised as property,
plant and eguipment and depreciated over their estimated useful
lives or the lease term, whichever is shorter The amount capitahised
15 the lower of the fair value of the asset or the present value of the
mimimum lease payments during the lease term at the inception of
the lease The resulting lease oblgations are included in abihities
net of finance charges Finance costs on finance leases are charged
directly to the income statement

Operating leases

Assets leased under operating [eases are not recorded on the
balance sheet Rental payments are charged directly to the income
statement on a straight-hne basis over the lease term

Sale and leaseback

A sale and leaseback transaction 1s one where a vendor selts an
asset and immediately reacquires the use of that asset by entering
Into alease with the buyer The accounting treatment of the sale
and leaseback depends upon the substance of the transaction and
whether or not the sale was made at the asset s far value
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For sale and finance leasebacks, any apparent profit or loss from
the sale 1s deferred and amortised over the lease term For sale and
operating leasebacks, generally the assets are sold at far value,
and accordingly the profit or loss from the sale 1s recogrised
immediately in the Group income statement

Following imbial recogmitton, the lease treatment 1s consistent with
those principles described above

Lease Incentives

Lease incentives primarily include up-front cash payments or rent-
free penods Lease incentives are capitalised and spread over the
period of the lease term

Leases with predetermined fixed rental Increases

The Group has a number of leases with predetermined fixed rental
increases These rental increases are accounted for on a straight
line basts over the term of the lease

Operating lease income
Operating lease income consists of rentals from sub tenant
agreements and s recognised as earned

inventories

Inventonies are valued on a weighted average cost basis and carried
at the lower of cost and net reahsable value Costincludes all direct
expenditure and other appropriate attributable costs incurred in
bringing inventories to their present location and condition

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits,
investments in money market funds and deposits and other short-
term tighly hqued investments that are readily convertible toa
known amount of cash and are subject ta an insignificant nsk of
changes in value Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group's cash management are
included as a component of ¢cash and cash equivalents for the
purposes of the cash fiow statement

Current taxation

Current tax s accounted for on the basis of tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Current taxs
charged or credited to the income statement, except when it relates
to items charged to equity or other comprehensive income, 1nwhich
case the current tax 1s also dealt with in equity, or other
comprehensive income, respectively

Deterred taxation

Deferred tax i1s accounted for on the basis of temporary differences
anising from differences between the tax base and accounting base
of assets and habilibies

Deterred tax is recognised for all temporary differences, except to
the extent where it anses from the mtial recognition of an asset or
a hability in a transaction that 1s not a business combination and, at
the time of transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profit It s determuned using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset 1s
realised or the deferred income tax iatlity 1s settled

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 15 probable
that future taxable profits will be avallable against which the
temporary differences can be utilised

Deferred taxis charged or credited to the income statement, except
when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity or
other comprehensive income, 1n which case the deterred tax i1s also
dealt with in equity or other comprehensive income




Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Accounting policies cantinued

Deterred tax s provided on temporary differences associated with
investments tn subsidianies, branches, and joint ventures except
where the Group 1s able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Provisions

Prowisions are recogrised when there is a present legal or
constructive cbhgation as a result of past events, for which it 1s
probable that an outflow of ecanomic benefit will be required to
settle the obhgation, and where the amount of the obligation can
be reliably estimated

Onerous leases

Provisions for onerous leases, measured net of expected rental
income, are recognised when the property leased becomes vacant
and 15 no longer used in the operations of the business Provisions
for dilapidation costs are recogrised on a lease-by lease basis

Empleyee benefits

Pensions

The Group operates vanous defined benefit and defined
contribution pension schemes for its employees A defined benefit
scheme s a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit
that an employee will receive on retirement A defined contnbution
scheme 15 a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity

In respect of the defined benefit pension scheme, the pension
scheme surplus or deficit recognised in the balance sheet
represents the difference between the fair value of the plan assets
and the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
balance sheet date The defined benefit obligation s actuanally
calculated on an annual basis using the projected umit credit
method Plan assets are recorded at fair value

The income statement charge 1s split between an operating service
cost and a financing charge, which 1s the net of interest cost on
pension scheme habilities and expected return on plan assets
Actuanal gains and losses are recagnised in full in the period in
which they arise, inthe statement of comprehensive income

Payments to defined contribution pension schemes are charged as
an expense as they fall due Any contnbutions unpaid at the balance
sheet date are included as an accrual as at that date The Group

has no turther payment oblhgations once the contributtons have
been paid

Long service awards
The costs of long service awards are accrued over the penod the
service Is provided by the employee

Share-based payments

The Group provides benefits to employees (including Directors) of
the Group in the form of equity-settled and cash-settled share-based
payment transactions, whereby employees render services in
exchange for shares, nghts over shares or the value of those shares
in cash terms

For equity settled share-based payments the fair value of the
employee services rendered 15 determined by reference to the fair
value of the shares awarded or options granted, excluding the
impact of any non-market vesting conditions All share ophions are
valued using an option-pricing model (Black-Scholes or Monte
Carlo) This fair value 1s charged to the income statement over the
vesting penod of the share-based payment scheme

for cash-settled share-based payments the fair value of the
employee services rendered s determmined at each balance sheet
date and the charge recognised through the income statement over
the vesting penod of the share-based payment scheme, with the
corresponding increase In accruals

The value of the charge 15 acjustedin the income statement over the
remainder of the vesting penad ta reflect expected and actual levels
of options vesting, with the corresponding adjustments made in
equity and accruals

Foreign currencies

Foreign operations

On consolidation, assets and habilibes of foreign operations are
translated into sterling at year-end exchange rates The results of
foreign operations are translated into sterling at average rates of
exchange for the year The functional currency of the Company

15 sterling

Exchange differences ansing from the retranslation at year-end
exchange rates of the net investment in foreign operations, less
exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings or forward
contracts which are i substance part of the net investment ina
fereign operation, are taken to equity and are reported in the
statement of comprehensive income

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foretgn currencies are translated at
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the batance
sheet date are translated at the exchange rate ruling at that date
Foreign exchange differences ansing on translation are recognised
In the income statement

Financial instruments

Financial assets

The Group classtfies its financial assets in the following categories
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and recervables,
and available-for-sale ("AFS") AFS investments are initially
measured at fair value including transaction costs Financial assets
held at fair value through profit and loss are imtially recognised at
fair value and transactron costs are expensed

‘Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ include financial
assets held for trading and those designated at far value through
profit or loss at inception Derivatives are classified as held for
trading unless they are accounted for as an effective hedging
nstrument  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

are recorded at fair value, with any gains or losses recogrised in

the income statement in the period in which they arise

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
The Group has no intention of trading these loans and recevables
Subsequent to imitial recognition at fair value plus transaction costs,
these assets are carried at amortised cost less impairment using
the effective interest method Income from these financial assets

1s calculated on an etfective yield basis and 15 recogrused In the
Income statement

Available for-sale financial assets are non-denvatives that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories They are included in non current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the balance sheet date Subsequent to imthial recognition at fair
value plus transaction costs, these assets are recorded at farr value
with the movements in fair value recogmsed in other comprehensive
income untill the financoal asset 1s derecognmised or impaired at which
time the cumulative gan or loss previously recogrised in other
comprehensive income is recagnised in the income statement
Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recogrised in the iIncome
statement when the entity's right to receive payment 1s estabhshed
Interest on AFS debt instruments 15 recogrised using the effective
interest method
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Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Accounting policies continued

Financiaf assets are derecogmised when the nghts to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have exprred or where the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership

Trade recelvables

Trade receivables are imbially recognised at fair value and
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less provision for impairment

Financial liahilitles

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded initially at
fair value, which 1s generally the proceeds received, net of direct
1ssue costs Subsequently, these habihities are held at amortised cost
using the effective interest method

Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or
redemption and direct 1ssue costs are accounted for on an accrual
basts in the income statement using the effective interest method
and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the
extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise

The fair value of the habiity companent of a convertible bond s
determined using the market interest rate for an equivalent non-
convertible bond This amount 1s recorded as a liability on an
amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or matunty
of the bonds The remainder of the proceeds are allocated to the
converston aption This 1s recegmised and included in shareholders’
equity, net of income tax effects and is not subsequentty re-
measured

Issue costs are apportioned between the lability and the equity
components of the convertible bonds based on their carrying
amounts at the date of 1ssue The portion relating to the equity
component s charged directly against equity

Trade payables
Trade payables are initially recogrised at fair value and
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Impairment of financial assets

An assessment of whether there s objective evidence of impairment
1s carried out for all financial assets or groups of financial assets at
the balance sheet date This assessment may be of individual assets
¢individual impairment’) or of a portfolio of assets (‘collective
impairment’) A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
considered to be impaired if, and only if, there 1s objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred

alter the initial recognition of the asset (3 ’loss event’) and that

loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
{lows of the financial asset or group of hinancial assets that can be
reliably estimated

For indmdual impawrment the princtpal loss event 1s one or more
missed payments, although other loss events can also be taken into
account, including arrangements in place to pay less than the
contractual payments, fraud and bankruptcy or other financial
difficulty indicators An assessment of collective impairment will be
made of financial assets with similar nsk charactenstics For these
assets, portiolio loss expenence is used to provide objective
evidence of impairment
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Where there ts objective evidence that an impairment loss exists
on loans and recewvables, impairment provisions are made to
reduce the carrying value of financial assets to the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
ongnal effective interest rate

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the charge to the
income statement reflects the movement in the level of provisions
made, together waith amounts written off net of recoveries in

the year

In the case of equity investments classified as available for-sale, a
sigmificant or prolonged dechine in the tair value of the asset below
its cost is constdered in determining whether the asset s impaired If
any such evidence exists for availlable-for-sale financial assets, the
curnulative loss 1s removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement The cumulative loss 15 measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the income statement

Impairment losses recogrused in the iIncome statement on equity
nstruments are not reversed If, ina subseguent penod, the farr
value of a debt instrument classtfied as available-for-sale increases
and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in the income statement,
the impairment loss i1s reversed through the income statement

Interest will continue to accrue on all financial assets, based onthe
written down balance Interest is calculated using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the imparment lass To the extent that a provision may be increased
or decreased in subsequent periods, the recognition of interest will
be based on the latest balance net of provision

Fair vatue estimation
The methods and assumphions applied in determining the fair values
of financial assets and financial habihties are disclosed in note 29

Derivatlve financial instruments and hedge accounting

All derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair
value on the contract date and are also measured at {air value at
subsequent reporting dates

Hedge relationships are classified as cash flow hedges where the
derivative financial instruments hedge the exchange rate risk of
future highly probable inventory purchases denominated in foreign
currency Changes inthe fair value of derivative financial
instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future
cash flows are recogmised directiy in other comprehensive ncome
and the ineffective portion s recognised immediately in the income
statement If the cash flow hedge of a firm commitment or
forecasted transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial
asset or kability, then, at the time the asset or hability s recognised,
the associated gatns or losses on the derivative that had previously
been recogrused in other comprehensive income are included in the
nibial measurement of the asset or habihity

Hedge relahonships are classified as fair value hedges where the
derivative financial instruments hedge the change i the fair value
of a finannial asset or hatility due to movements ininterest rates
The ehanges in fair value of the hedging instrument are recognised
n the income statement




Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Accounting policies continued

The hedged item 15 alse adjusted for changes in fair value
attnbutable to the hedged risk, with the corresponding adjustment
made in the income statement

To qualty for hedge accounting, the Group documents at the
inception of the hedge, the hedging nsk management strategy, the
relationship between the hedging mstrument and the hedged item
or transaction and the nature of the nsks being hedged The Group
also documents the assessment of the effectiveness of the hedging
relationship, to show that the hedge has been and will be hughly
effective on an ongoing basts

Changes in the far value of derivative financial instruments that do
not quahfy for hedge accounting are recognised in the income
statement as finance iIncome or costs as they arise

Hedge accounting s discontinued when the hedging instrument
expires or Is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer quahfies for
hedqe accounting At that time, any cumulative gain or 10ss on the
hedging instrument recognised in other comprehensive iIncome 1s
retained tin equity until the forecasted transaction occurs If a
hedged transaction 1s no longer expected to occur, the net
cumulative gain or loss recegnised in other comprehensive income
15 transferred to the mcome statement for the period

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and hiabilties are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recogmsed amounts and there 1s an intention
to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the habihty
simultanecusly

{c) Judgements and estimates

The Group makes judgements and assumptions concerning the
future that impact the application of policies and reported amounts
The resulting accounting estimates calculated using these
Judgements and assumptions will, by defimition, seldem equal the
related actual results but are based on historical expenence and
expectations of future events

The judgements and key sources of eshimation uncertainty that
have a significant effect on the amounts recogmsed in the financial
statements are discussed below

Goodwill impairment

The Group s required to assess whether goodwill has suffered

any impairment loss, based on the recoverable amount of its CGUs
The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined based
on value in use calculations and these calculations require the

use of eshimates in relation to future cash flows and suitable
discount rates as disclosed in note 12 Actual cutcomes could

vary from these estimates

Impairment of assets

Financizl and non-financial assets are subject to impairment reviews
based on whether current or future events and circumstances
suggest that their recoverable amount may be less than thewr
carrying value Recoverable amount is based on a calculation

of expected future cash flows using suitable discount rates and
inciudes management assumptions and estimates of future
performance

Post-employment benefits

The Group operates various defined benefit schemes for its
employees The present value of the schemes’ liabilibes recogrused
at the balance sheet date 1s dependent on interest rates of hrgh
qualty corporate bonds The net financing charge recognised in the
Income statement 1s dependent on the interest rate of hugh quality
corporate bonds and an expectation of the weighted average
returns on the assets within the scheme Other key assumptions
within this calculation are based on market conditrons or estimates
of future events, including mortality rates, as set out in note 30

Provisions

Provisions have been made for onerous leases, dilapidations and
disposal costs These provisions are estimates and the actual costs
and timing of future cash flows are dependent on future events

Any difference between expectations and the actual future hability
wili be acceunted for in the peniod when such determination 1s made
Detail of provisions are set out in note 22

Income taxes

The Group recognises expected liabiities for tax based on an
estimation of the likely taxes due, which requires significant
judgement as to the ultimate tax determination of certain items
Where the actual lability ansing from these 1ssues differs from
these estimates, such differences will have an impact on income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the peniod when such determination
1s made Detall of the tax charge and deferred tax are set outin
notes 8 and 21 respectively
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Notes to the financial statements continued

3 Non-GAAP performance measures

Certanitems recognised in reported profit before tax can vary significantly from year to year and therefore create volatlity in reported
earnings which does not reflect the Group's underlying performance The Directors believe that the ‘underlying profit before tax’ (“UPBT")
and ‘underlying diluted and basic earnings per share' measures presented provide a clear and consistent presentation of the underlying
perfarmance of Sainsbury s ongoing business for shareholders Underlying profit 1s not defined by IFRS and therefore may not be directly
comparable with the ‘adjusted’ profit measures of other comparues The adjusted items are

+ Profit/loss on disposal of properties,

+ Investment property fair value movements - these reflect the difference between the fair value of an investment property at the reporting
date and its carrying amount at the previous reporting date,

+ Financing farr value movements - these are fair value gains and losses on non-denivative financial assets and habilities carried at amortised
cost, on denivatives relating to financing activities and on hedged items in fair value hedges,

« Impairment of goodwll,
+ The financing element of 1AS 19 'Employee Benefits', and

= One-off items - these are items which are matenial and infrequent 1n nature and do not relate to the Groups underlying performance

The adjustments made to reported profit before tax to arrive at underlying profit before tax are

201 2010
Em £m
Underiying profit before tax 665 610
Profit on disposal of properties 108 27
Investment property fair value movements 39 123
Financing fair value movements' 7 (15)
IAS 19 pension financing credit/(charge) 3 (24)
One-off items 5 12
Total adjustments 162 123
Profit before tax 827 733

1 Financing fair value movements for the financial year comprised a £10 million gain for the Group (2010 £012) milion loss) and £(3) million loss for the joint ventures
{2010 £(3) milhon loss}

One-off items
The £5 million one-off item in the current financial year relates to the release of a disposal provision which 15 no longer required

In the prior hinancial year, the Group reversed £12 mithon of costs associated with the Otfice of Fair Trading dairy inquiry

4 Segment reporting
The Group’s businesses are orgamsed mto three operating segments

* Retailing (Supermarkets and Converuence),
+ Financial services (Sainsbury's Bank joint venture), and

* Praperty investment (The British Land Company PLC joint venture and Land Secunties PLC joint venture)
Management have determined the operating segments based on the information provided to the Operating Board (the Chief Operating Decision
Maker for the Group) to make operattonal decisions en the management of the Group All matenial operations and assets are in the UK

The business of the Group 1s not subyect to tughly seasanal fluctuations although there is an increase in trading in the period leading up to
Christmas

The Group has continued to include additional voluntary disclosure analysing the Group's Financial services and Property investment joint
ventures into separate repertable segments

Revenue from operating segments 1s measured on a bas:s consistent with the income statement All revenue is generated by the sale of goods
and services

Segment results, assets and labilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis Segment capital expenditure 15 the total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment assets that are expected to be used for more
than one penod

The Operating Board assesses the performance of all segments on the basis of underlying profit before tax The reconcihation provided below
reconciles underlying operating profit from each of the segments disclosed to profit before tax

Due to the nature of its activities, the Group s not reliant on any individual major customers
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4 Segment reporting continued

52 weeks to 19 March 2011 Financlal Froperty

Retalling services  Investments Group

£m Em £m Em

Segment revenue 21,102 - - 21,102
Underlying operating profit 738 - - 738
Underlying finance income 19 - - 19
Underlying finance costs (116} - - (116)
Underlying share of post-tax profit from joint ventures - 1 13 24
Underlying profit before tax 641 n 13 665
Profit on dispesal of properties 108 - - 108
Investment property fair valug movements - - 39 39
Financing fatr value movements 10 - J) 7
One-off item (note 3) 5 - - 5
1AS 19 pension financing credit 3 - - 3
Profit before tax 767 n 49 827
Income tax expense (187)
Profit for the financial year 640
Assets 10,897 - - 10,897
Investment in joint ventures - ns 387 502
Segment assets 10,897 ns 387 11,399
Segment liabilities (5,975) - - (5,975)
Other segment items
Capital expenditure! 1,319 - - 1,319
Depreciation expense 468 - - 468
Amortisation expense 14 - - 14
Share based payments 35 - - 35
1 Capital expenditure consists of property plant and equipment additions of £1,297 million and intangibles additions of £22 millign
52 weeks to 20 March 2010 Finangtat Property

Retailing services Investments Group

£m £m £m £m

Segment revenue 19,964 - - 19,964
Underlying operating profit 671 - - 671
Underlying finance income 33 - - 33
Underlying finance costs m2) - - (112)
Underlying share of post-tax profit from joint ventures - 7 1 18
Underlying profit betore tax 592 7 " 610
Profit on disposal of properties 27 - - 27
Investment property fair value movements - - 123 123
Financing fair value movements 2 - (&) {15}
IAS 19 pension financing charge (24) - - (24}
One-off item (note 3) 12 - - 12
Profit before tax 595 7 131 733
Income tax expense (148)
Profit for the financial year 585
Assets 10,406 - - 10,406
Investment in joint ventures - 102 347 449
Segment assefs 10,406 102 347 10,855
Segment ltabilittes (5,889 - - (5,889}
Other segment items
Capital expenditure? 1,003 - - 1,003
Depreciation expense 466 - - 466
Amortisation expense 13 - - 13
Provision for impasrment of receivables 1 - - 1
Share-based payments 42 - - 42

2 Capital expenditure consists of property, plant and equipment addittons of €992 million and intangibles addifrons of EH midlion
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Notesto the financial statements continued

5 Operating profit
2omn 2010
Em Em
Operating profit 1s stated after charging/{crediting) the following items
Employee costs (note 7) 219 2,074
Depreciation expense (note 11) 468 466
Amortisation expense (note 12) 14 13
Profit on disposal of properties (note 3) {108) 2n
COperating lease rentals - land and buildings 405 388
- other leases 57 54
- sublease payments received {33) (37N
Foreign exchange gains/(losses) 5 6}
One-off items {note 3) (5) (12}
Group 205 2010
Em £m
Auditors’ remuneration
Audit and audit related services
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Group and the Company financial statements 02 02
Audit of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 05 a5
Audit related services pursuant te legislation o1 01
08 08
Non-audit services
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for all other services 0.2 05
10 13
& Finance income and finance costs
201 2010
Em £m
Interest on bank deposits and other financial assets 19 33
Financing fair value gains' 10 -
IAS 19 pension finanging crecit (note 30) 3 -
Finance income 32 33
Borrowing costs
Secured borrowings 97 (75)
Unsecured borrowings (39) 4n
Obligations under finance leases 4 [y}
Provisions - amortisation of discount (note 22) 3 [024]
{143) (27
Other finance costs
Interest capitalised - qualifying assets 27 15
IAS 19 pension financing charge (note 30) - (24)
Financing fair value losses’ - (12)
27 (21)
Finance costs 1e6) (148)

1 Fair valye gains and losses relate to fair value adjustments on non derivative financial assets and habilities carried at amortised cost and on derivatives refating to iinancing

achivities and hedged ltems in fair value hedges
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Notes to the financial statements continued

7 Employee costs

20n 2010
£m £m
Employee costs for the Group during the year amounted to
Wages and salanes, including bonus and termination benefits 1,859 1,822
Social security costs 132 128
Pension costs - defined contribution schemes 37 33
Pension costs - defined benefit schemes {note 30) 56 49
Share-based payments expense (note 31) as 42
2119 2,074
Number Number
000 000's
The average number of employees, including Directors, during the year were
Full-time 48,1 473
Part-time 100.3 99 6
148 4 1469
Full-time equivalent 99.3 973
Details of key management compensation can be found tn note 32
B8 Income tax expense
20m 2010
Em £m
Current tax expense
Current year 214 152
Qver provision in prior years {51) (73)
163 79
Deferred tax expense
Ornigination and reversal of temporary differences g 38
Under provision i prior years 15 kil
Total deferred tax (note 21) 24 69
TJotal income tax expense in income statement 187 148
Income tax expense on underlying profit 173 174
Tax onitems below
Profit on disposal of properties 3 (15)
Financing fair value movements 3 4)
1AS5 19 pension financing creditficharge) 1 7
Revaluation of detferred tax balances 7 -
Total income tax expense Inincome statement 187 148

The effective tax rate of 22 6 per cent (2010 20 2 per cent}is lower than (2010 iower than) the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK

The differences are explained below

2014 2010
£on £m
Profit before taxation 8271 733
Income tax at UK corporation tax rate of 28 0% (2010 28 0%) 232 205
Effectsof
Disallowed depreciation on UK properties 28 22
Investment property fair value movements (41} (34)
Qver proviston in prior years {35) 42)
Profit on disposal of property (27) )
Other - 1
Total income tax expense In Income statement 187 148

0On 22 June 2010, the Chancellor announced that the main rate of UK corporation tax would reduce from 28 G per cent to 27 Q per cent with
effect from 1 April 2011 This change was substantively enacted in July 2010 and hence the effect of the change on the deferred tax balances

has been included in the figures above
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Notesto the financial statements continued

8 Income tax expense continued

In additron to this, a number of further changes to the UK corporation tax system were announced in the March 2011 UK Budget Statement

A resolution passed by Parhament on 29 March 2011 reduced the main rate of corporation tax to 26 0 per cent from 1 Aprel 2011 Legislation to
reduce the main rate of corporation tax from 26 Q per cent te 25 G per cent from 1 April 2012 15 expected to be included mn the Finance Act 201
Further reduchions to the main rate are proposed to reduce the rate by 1 0 per cent per annum e 23 O per cent by 1 April 2014 None of these
expected rate reductions had been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and, therefore, ther effect 1s not sncluded in these financial
statements

The effect of a1 0 per cent reduction in the corporation tax rate on the deferred tax balances at the balance sheet date would reduce the
deferred tax labiity by £6 mullion which 1s primanily recognised in other comprehensive income

Income tax charged or credited to equity during the year is as follows

Share

based Pension Falr value
payments scheme movements Total
£m £m £m Em

52 weeks to 19 March 2011
Current tax recognised in equity [4}] - 1 -
Deferred tax recogrised in equity (1) 8 3 10
Revaluation of deferred tax balances - (5) (N (6}
Income tax charged to equity (2) 3 3 4
52 weeks to 20 March 2010
Current tax recognised in equity [&)) (17} 1 (19)
Deferred tax recognised in equity 1 (31} 10 (20)
Income tax charged to equity (2) (48} 11 (39)

The current and deferred tax in relahon to the Group's defined beneht pension scheme's actuanal gains and losses and fair value movements
(mn relation to available-for-sale financial assets) have been charged or credited through other comprehensive income
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9 Earnings per share
Bastc earnings per share 1s calculated by dividing the earmings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in 1ssue during the year, excluding those held by the Employee Share Ownership Plan trusts (note 25), which are treated as cancelled

For diluted earnings per share, the earmngs attnbutable t¢ the ordinary shareholders are adjusted by the interest on the convertible bonds

(net of tax) The weighted average number of ordinary shares inissue 15 adjusted to assume conversion of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares
These represent share options granted to employees where the exercise price s less than the average market price of the Company s ordinary
shares during the year and the number of shares that would be 1ssued if all convertible bonds are assumed {o be converted

Underlying earnings per share is provided by excluding the effect of any profit or loss on disposal of properties, investment property fair value
movements, imparment of goodwill, fiinancing fair value movements, 1AS 19 pension financing element and one-off items that are matenal and
infrequent in nature This alternative measure of earmings per share 15 presented to reflect the Group's underlying trading performance

All operations are continuing for the periods presented

zon 2010
miulen miiton

Werghted average number of shares i 1ssue 1,8587 18217
Werghted average number of dilutive share options 169 160
Weighted average number of dilutive convertible bonds 45 4 349
Total number of shares for calculating diluted earnings per share 1,921 0 1,8726
£m Em

Profit for the financial year 640 585
Add interest on convertible bonds, net of tax 10 6
Dijuted earnings for calculating diluted earnings per share 650 59
Em £m

Profit for the financial period attributable to equty holders of the parent 640 585

(Less)/add (net of tax)

Profit on disposal of properties (105) (42)
Investment property fair value movements (39 (123)
Financng fair value movements (4 W
IAS 19 pension financing (credit)/charge (2) 7
One-off items {5} (12)
Revaluation of deferred tax balances 7 -
Underlying profit after tax 492 436
Add interest on convertible bonds, net of tax 10 6
Diluted underlying profit after tax 502 442
pence pence

per share per share

Basic earnings 344 321
Diluted earmings 338 k1l
Underlying basic earnings 265 239
Underlying diluted earnings 261 236
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Notes to the financial statements continued

10 Dividend
20n 2010

pence pence 201 2010
par share per sharg £m Em

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year
Final didend of prior financial year 10 20 960 189 167
Interim dividend of current financiat year 4.30 400 80 74
14 50 13 60 269 241

After the balance sheet date, a final dwvidend of 10 80 pence per share (2010 10 20 pence per share) was proposed by the Directors in respect
of the 52 weeks to 19 March 2011, resulting in a tota! final proposed dividend of £201 mulhon (2010 £189 milken) The proposed final dividend
has not been included as a hability at 19 March 201

11 Property, plant and equipment

Group Graup Company
Landand  Fixtures and Group Land and
bulldings equipment Tatal buitdings
£m £m £m £m
Cost
At 21 March 2010 7927 5129 13,056 45
Additions 749 487 1,236 36
Acquisitions 6t - 61 -
Disposals (264) (509) 713 (36)
Transfer to assets held for sale a3 2} as) -
At 19 March 2011 8,460 5,105 13,565 45
Accumutated depreciation and impairment
At 21 March 2010 1,309 3,544 4,853 3
Depreciation expense for the year 138 330 468 -
Disposals 47) (490) (537) -
Transfer to assets held for sale @ m 3) -
At 19 March 2011 1,398 3,383 4,781 3
Net book value at 19 March 2011 7.062 1,722 8,784 42
Capital work-In-progress included above 380 102 482 -
Cost
At 22 March 2009 7,454 4,897 12,351 45
Additions 624 368 992 -
Disposals (95) (130) (225) -
Transfer to assets held for sale (56) (6) (62) -
At 20 March 2010 1927 5129 13,056 a5
Accumulated depreciation and Impalrment
At 22 March 2009 1,206 3,324 4,530 3
Depreciation expense for the year 125 341 466 -
Disposals (14) (118} (132) -
Transfer to assets held for sale (8) (3 an -
At 20 March 2010 1,309 3,544 4,853 3
Net book value at 20 March 2010 6,618 1,585 8,203 42
Capital work-In-progress included above 354 94 448 -
Group Group Company Company
201 2010 20n 2010
£m £m Em £m
The net book value of land and buildings comprised
Freehold land and building 5,367 5,046 42 42
Long leasehold 1,073 1,013 - -
Shaort leasehold 622 559 - -
7,062 6,618 42 42

On 21 June 2010 three compantes were acquired for a total consideration of £59 miition, of which £0 5 million was cash and the remainder being
satisfied by the transfer of properties from the Group These compames owned land and buildings valued at £59 million No goodwill arose

On 23 July 2010 a further company was acquired for a total consideration of £1 milhion This company included fand and buildings vatued at

£2 million £1million was paid in cash and goodwill of £1 million has been recognised (see note 12)
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11 Property, plant and equipment continued

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
In accordance with 1AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’, the Group has determined that far the purpases of impairment testing, each store1sa
cash-generating umit ("CGU") CGUs are tested for impairment at each reporting date if there are indications of impairment

The recoverable amounts for the CGUs are based on value in use which s calculated on the cash flows expected to be generated by the umits
using the latest budget and forecast data, the results of which are reviewed by the Board The key assumptions in the value 1n use calculation
are the discount rate, growth rates and expected changes in margin Changes in income and expenditure are based on past experience

and expectations of future changes in the market The forecasts are extrapolated beyond five years based on estimated long-term growth
rates of three per cent to four per cent The discount rate 15 based on the Group's pre-tax weighted average cost of capital of ten per cent
(2010 ten per cent)

Interest capitalised

Interest capitalised inctuded in additions amounted to £27 million {2010 E£15 mullion) for the Group and £ntl (2010 £nml) for the Company
Accumnulated interest capitalised included in the cost of property, plant and equipment net of disposals ameunted to £273 mithon (2010 £267
mullion) for the Group and Emil (2010 Emil) for the Company The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible
tor capitahisation s 5 @ per cent (2010 4 O per cent)

Security
Property, plant and equipment of 130 (2010 129 supermarket properties, with a net book value of £2,323 million (2010 £2,344 milkon) has
been pledged as security for the long-term financing {note 20}

tn addition, property, plant and equipment of a further six supermarket properties, with a net boak value of £69 million (2010 £70 millton) has
been pledged as security to underpin the residual value guarantee given by the Group with regards to 16 supermarket properties sold in March
2000 and ten supermarket properties sold in July 2000

On 17 June 2010, property, plant and equipment compnising eight supermarket properties, with a net book value of £167 million were
transferred to the Sainsbury's Property Scottish partnership (see note 30)

Analysls of assets held under finance leases

Group 2m 201 2010 2030
Landand  Fixtures and 20m Landand  Fixtures and 2010
bulkdings equipment Total ouildings equipment Tetal
£m £&m Em £m £m £m
Cost 48 15 63 50 15 65
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (22) (4) (26) (22) (4 23
Net book valug 26 " a7 28 14 42

J Salnsbury plc Annual Report and Finanoial Statements 2011 69

UOIJRLLIOJUI [RUOIJIPPE 9 SIUDLAIRIS |B1dueUl



UOIJRULIOU! |PUCHIPPE 3 SJUSWSIRIS |PIDURUI

Notes to the financial statements continued

12 Intangible assets

Group Goodwill Software Other Total
£m Em £m £m
Cost
At 21 March 2010 100 141 36 277
Additions - 1 10 21
Acquisitions (note 11) 1 - - 1
Disposals (1) - - (1)
At 19 March 2011 100 is2 46 298
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 21 March 2010 - 109 24 133
Amortisation expense for the year - 8 6 14
At 19 March 2011 - 17 30 147
Net book value at 19 March 2011 100 35 16 151
Cost
At 22 March 2009 14 131 35 280
Additions - 10 1 1n
Disposals (14) - - (14}
At 20 March 2010 100 141 36 277
Accumulated amortisation and impalrment
At 22 March 2009 - 98 22 120
Amortisation expense for the year - 1 2 13
At 20 March 2010 - 109 24 133
Net book value at 20 March 2010 100 32 12 144

Other intangibles primarnily compnse of pharmacy licences

The goodwill balance above relates primanly to the Group's acquisitions of Bells Stores Ltd, Jacksons Stores Ltd, JB Beaumont Ltd, SL Shaw
Ltd, Culcheth Provision Stores Ltd, Town Centre Retail (Bicester)} Ltd, SW Dewsbury Ltd and Portfolio Investments Ltd and s allocated to the
respective cash-generating units ("CGUs"} within the Retailing segment The CGUSs for this purpose are deemed to be the respective acquired

retai chains of stores The value of the goodwill was tested for impairment during the current financial year by means of comparing the
recoverable amount of each CGU to the carrying value of its goodwll

To calculate the CGU's value tn use, Board approved cash flows for the following financial year are assumed to inflate at the long-term average

growth rate for the UK food retail sector and are discounted at a pre-tax rate of ten per cent (2010 ten per cent) over a 25 year period

Changes in income and expenditure are based on past experience and expectations of future changes in the market Based on the operating

performance of the respective CGUs, no impairment toss was identified in the current inancial year (2010 £mil) The valuations indicate

sufficient headroom such that a reasonably possible change to key assumptions is unhkely to result in an impairment of the related goodwidl
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13 Investments in subsidiarles

Company 2011 2010
Em Em
Beginning of year T7.276 7,262
Additions 35 339
Disposal of subsidianies - (165)
Provision for diminution in value of investment @) (160)
Release of provision for diminution in vatue of iInvestment 2 -
End of year . 7,309 7,276
The Company's principal operating subsidiaries, all of which are directly owned by the Company, are
Share ol
ordinary
allotted Country of
capitatand registrabion or
votingnights (ncerporation
JS insurance Ltd 100% Isle of Man
JS Information Systems Ltd 100% England
Sainsbury’s Supermarkets Ltd 100%  England

All pnincipal operating subsidiaries operate in the countries of their registration or incorporation, and have been consolidated up to and as at
19 March 2011 The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in 5410 of the Companies Act 2006 only to disclose a list comprising solely
the principal subsidianes A full st of subsidiaries will be sent to Companies House with the next annual return

The Group has an interest in two partnerships, Sainsbury’s Property Scottish Partnershup and Sainsbury's Property Scottish Limited
Partnership, which are fully consolidated into these Group accounts The Group has taken advantage of the exemption conferred by Regulation
7 of the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 and has therefore not appended the accounts of these qualifying partnerships to these

accounts Separate accounts for these partnerships are not required to be, and have not been, filed at Companies House
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Notes to the financial statements continued

14 Investments In joint ventures

Group
share of
Group post Company
shares acqumsition GI’CILI',’J shargs
at cast reserves Total at cost
£m £m £m £m
At 21 March 2010 431 i8 449 91
Additions in year 2 - 2 -
Release of provision for diminution in value of investment - 1 1 -
Share of retaned profit
Underlying profit after tax - 24 24 -
Investment property fair value movements - 39 39 -
Financing fair value movements - 3 (3) -
- 60 60 -
Dwidends received - m m -
Unrealised profit on disposal of properties - 3 (13) -
Movements in other comprehensive income {note 24} - 4 4 -
At 19 March 2011 433 69 502 91
At 22 March 2009 429 (141) 288 9
Additions in year 2 - 2 -
Provision for diminution in value of investment - m 1)) -
Share of retained profit
Underlying profit after tax - i8 18 -
Investment property fair value movements - 123 123 -
Financing fair value movements - 3 3) -
- 138 138 -
Dvidends received - 2 2 -
Movements in other comprehensive income (note 24) - 24 24 -
At 20 March 2010 431 18 449 91
The Group's principal joint ventures were
Share of
ardinary Country al
alictted reglistration ar
Year end capltal Incorporastion
The Harvest Limited Partnership (property tnvestment) 31 March 50% England
BL Sainsbury Superstores Limited (property investment) 31 March 50% England

Sainsbury s Bank plc (financial services)

31December

50% England

Where relevant, management accounts for the joint ventures have been used to include the results up to 19 March 201

The Group's share of the assets, habihties, iIncome and expenses of its principal joint ventures are detailed betow

20m 2010

Em £m
Non-current assets 1,487 1,611
Current assets 1,767 1,824

Current habilities
Non-current habihties

(1,848) {2,092)
(90%9) (899)

Net assets 497 444
Income 196 186
Expenses (175) a7y
Investment property far value movements 39 123
Prohit after tax 60 138

Investments in joint ventures at 19 March 2011 include £5 milhon of gcodwitl (2010 £S5 million)

72  J Sainsbury pic Annual Report and Financial Statements 2011




Notes to the financial statements continued

15 Avallable-for-sale financial assets

Group Group Company Company
201 2010 201 2010
£m £m Em Em

Non-current
Interest bearing financial assets 36 24 36 24
Other financial asset 140 126 - -
176 150 36 24

The other financial asset represents the Group’s beneficial interest in a commercial property tnvestment pool The fair value of the other

frnancial asset 1s based on discounted cash flows assuming a property rental growth rate of 3 2 per cent (2010 3 1 per ¢cent) and a werghted
average cost of capital of ten per cent (2010 ten per cent) There were no disposals or impawrment provisions on available for-sale financial
assetsin either the current or the previous financial year (see note 28 for sensitivity analysis)

16 Inventories

208 2010
Em £m
Goods held for resale 812 702
The amount of inventories recogmised as an expense and charged to cost of sales for the 52 weeks to 19 March 2011 was £16,053 mithon
(2010 £15,192 milhon}
17 Recelvables
Trade and other receivables
Groyp Group Company Company
2011 2010 20m 2010
£m £Em £m £m
Non-current
Amounts due from Group entities - - 1,146 1,080
Other receivables 36 35 35 35
36 35 1181 1ms
Prepayments and accrued income - 1 - -
36 36 1,181 1,115
Current
Trade receivables 93 K - -
Amaounts due from Group entities - - 1,045 545
Other receivables 188 o 20 21
281 172 1,065 566
Prepayments and accrued income 62 43 4 -
343 215 1,069 566

Non-current other receivables of £36 mullion (2010 £35 mithon) compnise £5 rillion of floating rate subordinated undated loan capital

(2010 £5 mulhon} and £30 mullsion of floating rate subordinated dated loan capital due from Sainsbury’s Bank (2010 £30 mdiion} {note 32)

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are on commercaial terms Current other receivables are generally non-interest bearing, other
than the £20 million of floating rate subordinated undated loan capital due from Samsbury’s Bank (2010 £20 million) (note 32) and also include
a fixed term interest-bearing deposit of £40 mullion (2010 Enil) The carrying amounts of trade and other recevables are denominated in

sterling

The Group's exposure to credit nisk ansing from its retail operations s mimmal given that the customer base 1s large and unrelated and that the
overwhelming majonty of customer transactions are settled through cash or secure electrontc means New parties wishing to obtain credit
terms with the Group are credit checked prior to invoices being raised and credit kmits are deternined on anindividual basis Concentrations
of credit nsk with respect to trade and current other recewvables are limited due to the Group's customer base being large and unrelated
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Notesto the financial statements continued

17 Recelvables continued

Major counterparties are identified as follows

20m 20m 2010 2010

Nurnber of Balance Number of Balance

counterparties €m counterparties £

Trade receivables 3 34 1 9
Other receivables 2 58 1 18
Related parties 1 56 1 56

Sigmificant trade recewvables identified above relate to amounts recewvable from credit card compames and balances due from external suppliers

At 19 March 2011, significant other recervabiles identified were amounts due from the National Health Service of £18 million (2010 £18 mullion)
and an interest-beanng deposit of £40 milhon

Related party recewvables are from the Group’s Joint venture, Sainsbury’s Bank Loans are approved by the Investment Commuttee and are
determined by the Financial Services Authonity’s capital funding requirements

No major counterparty balances are considered overdue or impaired
18 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets held for safe of £13 million (2010 E56 mullion) consist of non current assets relating to properties held in the Retaiting
segment Sale of these assets 15 expected to occur in the finangial year beginming 20 March 2011

19 Payables
Trade and other payables

Group Group Company Company
20N 2010 zon 2010
Em £m £em £m

Current
Trade payables 1,836 1,782 - -
Amounts due to Group entities - - 4,421 4,446
Other payables 51 461 22 14
Accruals and deferred income 250 223 - -

2,597 2,466 4,443 4,460

Non-current

Amounts due to Group entities - - 861 821
Other payables 3 - - -
Accruals and deferred income 17 106 - -

120 106 a61 821

The Group's policy on payment of creditors 15 to agree terms of payment prior to commencing trade with a suppher and to abide by those terms
on the timely submission of satisfactory invoices

Deferred income relates to the accounting for leases with lixed rental increases and lease incentives on a straight ine basis over the term of
the lease
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Notesto the financial statements continued

20 Borrowings

Group 20m 2omn 201 2010 2010 2010
Current  Neon-current Total Current  Non current Tatal
Em £m £Em £m fm fm
Secured loans

Loan due 2018 40 1,047 1,087 a8 1,074 1,12
Loan due 2031 10 860 870 15 861 876

Unsecured loans
Bank overdrafts - 1 3 - 3
Bank loan due 2012 - 50 50 - 50 50
Bank loans due 2015 20 152 172 4 142 146
Convertible bond due 2014 - 176 176 1 m 172
Loan notes - - - 9 - 9
Finance lease obligations 3 54 57 3 59 62
Total borrowings 74 2,339 2,413 73 2,357 2,430
Company 201 zon 201 2010 2010 2010
Current  Mon current Total Current  Non current Total
£m £m £m Em £m Em
Bank overdrafts - - - 1 - 1
Bank loan due 2012 - 50 50 - 50 50
Bank loans due 2015 17 nz 129 1 102 103
Convertible bond due 2014 - 176 176 1 17 172
Total borrowings 17 338 355 3 323 326

Secured leans

The loans are secured on 130 (2010 129) supermarket properties (note 11y and comprise loans from two finance companies
- afixed rate amortising loan with an outstanding principal value of £1,069 million (2010 £1,100 mallion) at a weighted average rate of 498
per cent stepping up to 5 36 per cent from April 2013 with an eiffectrve interest rate of 5 24 per cent and carrying ameount of £1,087 million

(2010 £1,112 millton) with a final repayment date of July 2018, and

+ annflation inked amortising loan with an outstanding principal value of £840 million (2010 £850 million) at a fixed real rate of 2 36 per

cent where principal and interest are uphifted annually by RPI subject to a cap at five per cent and floor at il per cent with a carrying

amount of £870 million (2010 £876 mullron) with a final repayment date of April 2031

The Group has entered into interest rate swaps to convert £211 milhon (2010 £211 msllion) of the £1,069 millton (2010 £1,100 mullion) loan due
2018 from fixed to floating rates of interest These transactions have been accounted for as fair value hedges (note 29) In previous years,

£572 million of swaps accounted fer as fair value hedges were de-designated from their fair value hedging relationship The fair value of the
debt previously hedged by these swaps 1s being amortised over the remaining life of the loans, resulting in an amortisation charge to the income

statement inthe current financial year of £1 million (2010 £1mullion)

Bank overdrafts

Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand and bear interest at a spread above bank base rate

Bank loan due 2012

The bank loan due 2012 1s a bilateral Ioan with an outstanding principal of E50 milion due May 2012 at floating rates of interest subject to a cap
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Notes to the financial statements continued

20 Borrowings contrnued

Bank loans due 2015

The Group has three bank [oans due 2015, a £90 mitlion bilateral loan at floating rates of interest, a £40 million bilateral loan at floating rates of
Interest subject to a cap and a €50 milhon bilateral loan at floating rates of interest The €50 million toan has been swapped into a £45 mallion
sterhing floating rate loan with a cross currency swap Those transactions have been accounted for as fair value movements in future interest
payments deferred through the cash flow hedge reserve

Convertible bond due 2014

In July 2009, the Group issued £190 mullion of unsecured convertible bonds due July 2014 The bonds pay acoupon of 4 25 per cent payable
semi-annually Each bond is cenvertible into ordinary shares of J Sainsbury plc at any time up to 9 July 2014 with an initial conversion price of
418 5 pence

The Group has entered into interest rate swaps to convert all of the £190 million convertible bond from fixed to floating rates of interest
These transactions have been accounted for as fair value hedges (note 29)

The net proceeds of the convertible bond have been split into a lability component of £166 mithon and an eqity component of £24 mullion
The equity component represents the fair value of the embedded option to convert the bond into ordinary shares of the Company

201 200
€m £m
Liabity component as at 21 March 2010 and on initial recognition in July 2009 172 166
Interest expense 13 8
Interest paid {8) (4}
Other' {1) 2
Liabihity component as at 19 March 2011 and 20 March 2010 176 172

1 Otherrelates to fair value movements and lees

Borrowing facilities

In October 2010 the Group entered into a £690 million syndicated revolving credit facihity maturing sn October 2015 to provide standby ligurdity
At the same time, the existing £163 million syndicated revolving credit tacility (due May 201), the E400 million syndicated revolving credit facihty
(due February 2012} and the £50 million bilateral revolving credit facility (due May 2012) were cancelled

At 19 March 2011, no advance had been made under the new £690 mulhion borrowing facility (2010 £nil}

Obligatlons under finance leases

Present Present
value of value of
Mintmum Mimmum minimum minlmum
tanse lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
20m 2010 201 2010
£m £m £m Em
Amounts payable under finance leases
Within1year 7 7 3 3
Within 2 to 5 years inclusive 21 25 10 13
After S years 168 7y 44 46
196 209 57 62
Less future finance charges (139) (147}
Present value of lease obligations 57 62
Misclosed as
Current 3 3
Non-current 54 59
57 62

Finance leases have effective interest rates of 4 30 per cent to 900 per cent (2010 4 30 per cent to 9 00 per cent) The average remaining lease
term ts 62 years (2010 64 years)
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Notes to the financial statements continued

21 Deferred taxation

The movemnents in deferred income tax assets and habilities during the financial year, prior to the offsetting of the balances within the same tax

Junsdiction, are shown below

Group Accelerated tax Fair value Other
depreciation gains property Qther Tatal
£m £m Em £m fm
Deferred income tax liabilities
At 21 March 2010 77 (36) (84) (30} (327
Charge to income statement {15) - (€:}] ()] 26)
Charge to equity/other comprehensive income - 3) - - 3
Rate change adjustment to income statement 7 - 3 1 1
Rate change adjustment to equity/other comprehensive income - 1 - - 1
At 19 March 2011 {185) (38) (89) (32) (344)
At 22 March 2009 (138) (26) (93) (27) (284)
(Charge)/credit to income statement 39 - 9 3 (33)
Charge to equity/other comprehensive income - 0) - - (10}
At 20 March 2010 a7 (36) (84) 30) {327
Group Retirement
tenefit  Share based Capital
Provisions nbliqanons payment losses Total
Em £m £m £m Em
Deferred income tax assets
At 21 March 2010 3 ns 13 49 183
(Charge)/credit to income statement - (3] 4 5 2
(Charge)/credit to equity/other comprehensive Income - 8) 1 - €}
Rate change adjustment to income statement - 9 1)) 4] an
Rate change adjustment to equity/other comprehensive income - 5 - - ]
At 19 March 2011 3 99 17 53 72
At 22 March 2009 3 87 27 72 189
Charge to income statement - - 13) (23) (36)
Credit/(charge) to equity/other comprehensive income - 31 (1 - 30
At 20 March 2010 3 118 13 49 183
Net deferred income tax liability
At 19 March 2011 (172)
At 20 March 2010 (144)

J Sainsbury pic Annual Repor! and Financlal Statements 2011 77

UGIJEWLIOJU! [BUOIJIPPE X SIUSWS]EIS [RISUBUIY



Notes to the financial statements continued

21 Deferred taxation continued

Company Other property Total
£m £m
Deferred income tax fiabilitles
At 21 March 2010 (35) (35)
Rate change adjustment to income statement 1 1
At 19 March 2011 (34) (34)
At 22 March 2009 (65) {65)
Charge to income statement 30 30
At 20 March 2010 (35) (35)
Company Fair value Capital
losses losses Total
£m Em £m

Deferred Income tax assets

At 21 March 2010 i a5 36
Rate change adjustment to income statement - ) )
At 19 March 2011 1 34 35
At 22 March 2009 1 65 66
Charge to income statement - (30) 30
At 20 March 2010 1 35 36

£m

Net deferred Income tax asset
At 19 March 2011 1
At 20 March 2010 !

Deferred income tax assets have been recognised in respect of all income tax losses and other temporary differences giving rise to deferred
income tax assets because it 1s probable that these assets will be recovered Deferred income tax assets and habiities are only offset where
there 15 a legally enforceable nght of ofiset and there 15 an intention to settle the balances on a net basis
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Notes to the financial statements continued

22 Provisions

Group Group
Group  restructuring lang Company Company
onergus  and dispesal service Group oneroys disposal Company
leases provisians awards total leases proviston total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 21 March 2010 49 23 7 79 3 22 25
Chargef(credit) to incame statement
Additional provisions 13 - - 13 2 - 2
Unused amounts reversed §)] S} - (6) - (5) (5)
Utihsation of provision (15} M - (16) ) - 2)
Amortisation of discount 3 - - 3 - - -
At 19 March 2011 49 17 7 73 3 17 20
At 22 March 2009 37 32 7 76 4 24 28
Charge/f{credit) to ncome statement
Additional provisions 19 i - 20 - - -
Unused amounts reversed m m - (2) - m 1))
Utilisation of prowision €] &) - a7 M m 2
Amortisation of discount 4 - - 2 - - -
At 20 March 2010 49 23 7 79 3 22 25
Group Group Company Company
2on 2010 201 2010
£m £m £m £m
Disclosed as
Current 1" 13 1 1
Non-current 62 66 19 24
73 79 20 25

The onerous lease provision covers residual lease commitments of up to an average of 29 years (2010 32 vears), after allowance for existing or

anticipated sublet rental income

The restructuring provisions were fully utihsed 1n the ftnancial year ended 20 March 2010 The disposal provisions relate to indemnities ansing
from the disposal of subsiianies, the timing of utihsation of which1s encertain £5 mithion was released during the year

Long service awards are accrued over the period the service 1s provided by the employee
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Notes to the financial statements continued

23 Called up share capital and share premium account

Group and Company 201 2010 201 2010
mition rmullion £m £m

Authorised share capital

Ordinary shares of 284/; pence each (2010 284/; pence) 2,450 2,450 700 700
Preference B shares of 35 pence each (2010 35 pence) 2,100 2,100 735 735

Called up share capital
Allotted and fully pawd - ordinary shares 1,871 1,860 535 532

Share premlum account
Share premum 1,048 1,033

The movements in the called up share capital and share premum accounts are set out below

Orcinary Ordinary Share
shares shares premium
rmillion £m Em

At 21 March 2010 1,860 532 1,033
Allotted inrespect of share aption schemes 1 3 15
At 19 March 2011 1,87 535 1,048
At 22 March 2009 1,753 501 909
Issue of shares 78 22 13
Allotted in respect of share option schemes 29 9 1
At 20 March 2010 1,860 532 1,033

In the prior year, the Company 1ssued 78 1 million ordinary shares with a nominal value of 284/; pence each at £3 10 per share via an equity
placing This resulted in an increase in ordinary share capital of £22 million and share premium of £113 mullion net of transaction costs
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Notes to the financial statements continued

24 Capital redemption and other reserves

Group Capital Currency Actuarial Available Cash flow Group Converhible Total
redemption translation (losses}/ for sale hedge merger bond other
reserve reserve qalns assets reserve reserve reserve reserves
£Em Em £€m £m 